008 £ . IDM
§
Ifllf(lII/)!Ill//llfllI{/ﬁ!ﬂllﬂlﬂﬂﬂfﬂfﬂlﬂ/

MAY152007

We focus our energy on developing drugs to
combat cancer while maintaining quality of life.




Product Candidates

m Junovan™ in Osteosarcoma

* Meeting with Oncology Drug Advisory Committee (ODAC)
announced for May 9, 2007

* Submission of o New Drug Application {NDA) to the U.S.
Food and Dryg Administration for Junovan (Mifomurtide) in
fhe treatment of newly diognosed non-metostalic osteosar:
coma [Oct, 2006}

* Filing for European market approval of Mepact
{Mifomurtide, Junovan in the U.S.) for the treatment of non-
metustatic newly diognosed osteasarcoma (Nov. 2006}

* The FDA accepted the NDA for substuntive review, on o
standard review basis, contingent upon IDM commitment to
provide pharmocokinetic data for Junovan (Nov. 2006)

* "Osteosarcoma: State of the Art” symposium hosted by
IDM in conjunction with the International Society of Pediafric
Oncology (SIOP] {Sept. 2006}

* Signature of commerciclization agreement in Eastern
Europe and lsrael; IDM retains commercial rights in U.S.,
mainland Europe and Asia {Feb. and March. 2006)

m Uvidem® in Melanoma
Co-development with Sanofi-Aventis
* Completion of patient enroliment in 2 Phase Il clinical trials
(Nov. 2006-Feb. 2007)

- 38 patients in the U.S. with metastatic measurcble melo-
noma stage il and IV

- 53 patients in E.J. with resected stage Il or [ll melanoma
* Preliminary dato will be presented of the American Society
of Clinical Oncology [ASCO) in June 2007

Corporate Achievements

* Raised $12.9 Million in a private placement (Feb. 2007)

Corporate presentstions given at;
* BIO CEQ & Investor Conference {Feb. 2006)
* BioEquity Europe 2006 in Frankfurt (Moy 2004}

* Jefferies Life Sciences Conference in New York {June 2006)
* BIO lnvestor Forum in San Francisco {Oct 2006)

[DM 2006 Highlights

» Bexidem® in Bladder Cancer*
* Agreement with the FDA for Special Protocol Assessment in
the V.S, [June 2006)

u Collidem® in Colorectal Cancer*
* Phase /Il results presented ot Gastrointestinal-ASCO in San
Froncisco, CA {Jan. 2006)

w EP 2101 in Non-Small Cell Lung Cancer*
* Protoco! amended in early 2006 so that IDM can pursuve
treating long term survivors with EP-2101 in the trial and
close patient enrollment

* Preliminary data will be presented at ASCO in June 2007

*Decision to pend clinical development until collaborative partners
con ba found, to share the development cost, or other funding for those
programs becomes ovailable,

Product Pipeline

* Sold infectious disease assets to Pharmexa A/S for $12 million cash, IDM now is
focused on cancer immunotherapy (dlosed in Dec. 2005 and ennounced in Jan, 2006)

* Rodman & Renshaw 3rd Annual Heclth Care Conference in Monte Carlo (May 2006)

* Rodman & Renshaw Techvest 8th Annual Heclthcare Conlerence [Nov. 2006)
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To Ovur Shareholders

The year 2006 was marked by the completion of all the geals that we announced at the end of
2005. Our primary focus was to advance the development of Junovan in the treatment of osteosarcoma,
We filed @ New Drug Application (NDA} with the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) and we
submitted a Morketing Authorization Application [MAA) to the European Medicines Agency for Junovan
{Mepact in Europel. The FDA accepted our NDA filing for review and has scheduled an Oncology Drug
Advisory Committee [ODAC) meeting on May 9, 2007 to discuss Junovan. This is a crucial milestone for
IDM, and we are looking forward to presenting ond discussing the clinical sofety and efficacy data of
Junovan with the members of the ODAC and the FDA review team.

We believe Junovan has the potential to save lives -of children and young adults with bone cancer.
The results of a large Phase Il rondomized clinical study showed o statistically significant survival
advantage for patients with osteosarcoma who received Junovan when compared with the patients receiving
only chemotherapy. In addition to survival benefit, patients treated with Junovan experienced minimal
toxicity, suggesting a high benefit-to-risk ratio for Junovan.  The most meaningful endpoint to patients is
survival, and this is especially crucial when treating children and adolescents who can have a normal life
expectancy when they are cured of their disease, These young patients are otherwise healthy and when
diagnosed with bone cancer one-third of them will not survive the disease. No new drug in osteoscarcoma
has changed the standard of care for the last 20 years. If approved, Junovan would be the first innovation
in 2 decades in the treatment of osteasarcoma where there is a significant medical need. At IDM, we are
working as a team committed to gain approval and making Junovan available for the treatment of bone
cancer in children and young adults.

During 2006 we also made progress with Uvidem, the first of our cancer vaccine product
candidates. Uvidem is being developed in collaboration with Sanofi-Aventis for the treatment of melanoma,
the most commen skin concer. During 2006, we completed the enrollment of all patients in two Phase Ii
clinical studies, and preliminary clinical data will be presented at the ASCO meeting in June 2007. We
strongly believe that our data could bring new hope for melanoma patients and support the potential of
immunotherapy to treat or control their disease with minimal side effects and prolong their lives.

Consistent with our priorities, we contained our expenses by focusing our resources on our most
advanced cancer programs, Junovan and Uvidem. For the other produdt candidates in our pipeline, we are
following the patients who have been treated in earlier clinical trials and are seeking partmers to share the
cost associated with further clinical developments. This is the case for Bexidem in bladder cancer, Collidem
in colorectal cancer and EP-2101 in lung cancer. EP-2101 Phase Il preliminary results will also be
presented at the ASCO meeting in June 2007.

On the financial side, we started the year 2007 by closing a private financing of $12.9 million.
With our 2006 year-end cash balance of $10.2 million, and the proceeds from the financing, we estimate
that our cash position allows us to support the development of Junovan as it goes through the registration
process with the regulatory agencies.

In 2006, we built a solid foundation from which to creote future value and success for IDM. 2007
will be ¢ pivotal year for the company, with the outcome of the ODAC meeting in May, the presentation of
our data with two of our cancer vaccine product candidates at ASCO in June, and the potential marketing
opproval for Junovan before the end of the year. On behalf of IDM’s board of directors and management
team, | want to thank all of cur employees for their dedication and commitment, our clinical celloborators
and their patients who accepted to enter into our clinical studies, and you, our shareholders, for your
continued support.

Jean-Loup Romet-Lemonne, M.D.
CEO




Statements made in this document that are not strictly historical are “forward-looking” and invelve a high degree of risk
and uncertainty. These include statements regarding our ability to develop and commaercialize novel therapies, our goal of
helping patients win the fight against cancer while maintaining quality of life, the impact of Junovan on csteosarcoma
treatment and the utility of ciinical data from the study of our non-small cell lung cancer product. Actual results may differ
materially from the above forward-looking statements due to a number of important factors, including, but not limited to:
the timing of the FDA's and the EMEA's review of the submissions for marketing approval; our ability to respond to
questions raised by the FDA and EMEA in a satisfactory manner; the time needed to respond lo any issues raised by the
FDA and EMEA with regard to regulatory submissions for Junovan; the possibility that, although the FDA is not bound by
the decision of any advisory panel, a-recommendation by ODAC that is not supportive of approval of the marketing
application for Junovan would have a negative impact on the FDA's decision whether to approve the NDA for Junovan,
which would have a material and adverse affect on our business; the possibility that regulatory authorities may not
consider preclinical and early clinical development work conducted by Ciba-Geigy and efficacy data from the Phase Il trial
conducted by Children's Oncology Group, or the Phase Ill study conduct and analysis, to be adequate for their
assessment of Juncvan, which may cause delays in review, may result in a refusal to accept the filings for marketing
approval, may resu't in the regulatory authorities requiring us to conduct additional clinical trials, or may result in a
determination by the regulatory authorities that the data does not support markeling approval, whether regulatory
authorities wilt approve Junovan within the time frame expected by us or at all; and whether we will be able to
manufacture Junovan even if it is approved by regulatory authorities. Other risks affecting us and our drug development
programs include whether we or any of our collaborators will be able to develep pharmaceutical products using our
technologies, whether clinical trial results to date are predictive of results of any future clinical trials, risks associated with
completing clinical trials of product candidates, risks involved in the regulatory approval process for our product
candidates, the possibility that clinical testing may reveal undesirable and unintended side effects or other characteristics
that may prevent or limit the commercial use of proposed products; whether our cash resources will be sufficient to fund
operations as planned; whether any steps taken by us to contain costs will in fact result in sufficient reduction in
expenses; reliance on key employees, especially senior management; the uncertainty of our future access to capital; the
risk that we may nct secure or maintain relationships with collaborators, and our dependence on intellectual property.
These factors are more fully discussed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC for the year ended
December 31, 2006 and other periodic reports filed with the SEC. We expressly disclaim any intent or obligation to
update these forward-looking statements, except as required by law. '
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Item 1. Business

Forward Looking Statements

Except for the historical information contained herein, the following discussion contains forward-looking
statements that involve risks and uncertainties. These statements reflect management’s current views with respect to
future events and financial performance and actual results could differ materially from those discussed here. Factors
that could causge or contribute to such differences include, without limitation, those discussed in the description of
our business below and the sections entitled “Risk Factors” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” and in our other filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, or SEC. We expressly disclaim any intent or obligation to update these forward-looking statements,
except as required by law.

Junovan®, Dendritophages®, Bexidem®, Uvidem®, Eladem®, Collidem® and Osidem® are our registered
trademarks. All other trademarks or trade names appearing in this report are the property of their respective holders.

Unless specifically noted otherwise, as used throughout these consolidated financial statements, “Epimmune
Inc.” or “Epimmune” refers to the business, operations and financial results of Epimmune Inc. prior to the closing of
the share exchange transaction between Epimmune and shareholders of Immuno-Designed Molecules, S.A., on
August 16, 2003, referred to as the Combination, at which time Epimmune’s name was changed to IDM Pharma,
Inc.; “IDM 8.A.” or “Immuno-Designed Molecules, S.A.” refers to Immuno-Designed Molecules S.A_, a privately-
held French company, prior to such transaction; and “IDM,” the “Company” or “we,” “our,” “us’ or “its” refers to
the operations and financial results of IDM Pharma, Inc. and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis after the closing

of such transaction, and IDM S.A. prior to the closing of such transactions, as the context requires.

LI

Overview

We are a biopharmaceutical company focused on developing innovative products to treat and control cancer
while maintaining the patient’s quality of life. We were incorporated in Delaware in July 1987.

Our lead product candidate, Junovan (mifamurtide for injection), known as Mepact in Europe, is part of a new
family of immunotherapeutic agents that are designed to destroy residual cancer cells by activating the body’s
natural defenses. Junovan activates certain immune cells called macrophages in vivo {meaning inside the body), in
order to enhance their ability to destroy cancer cells. We are developing Junovan for the treatment of osteosarcoma,
the most common type of bone cancer. This rare, aggressive bone tumor principally affects adolescents and young
adults. Junovan has received orphan drug designation in the United States and the European Union for this
indication, permitting it to benefit from a set of laws encouraging the development of treatments for rare diseases. In
October 2006, we submitted a New Drug Application, or NDA, in electronic Common Technical Document (eCTD)
format to the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, referred to as the FDA, for Junovan, requesting approval for its
use in the treatment of newly diagnosed resectable high-grade osteosarcoma patients in combination with multiple
agent chemotherapy.

The FDA has accepted the NDA file for substantive review, on a standard review basis, contingent upon our
commitment to provide pharmacokinetic data for the to-be-marketed Junovan product. The pharmacokinetic data in
the submission were collected following administration of the product previously manufactured by Ciba-Geigy.
The additional data that we have committed to obtain will provide information on the pharmacokinetic behavior of
the IDM-manufactured product when administered in the clinical setting. Following the submission of the NDA ,we
submitted a Marketing Authorization Application, or MAA, for Mepact to the European Medicines Agency, or
EMEA. The EMEA has determined the application is valid and the review procedure was started in late November
2006.

The Junovan marketing applications include efficacy and safety data from 678 patients with non-metastatic
resectable osteosarcoma, 332 of whom received Junovan, and from 115 patients with metastatic or unresectable
osteosarcoma, 39 of whom received Junovan in the controlled Phase 11 clinical trial conducted by the Pediatric
Oncology Group (POG) and the Children’s Oncology Group (COG), sponsored by the Division of Cancer
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Treatment and Diagnosis of the National Cancer Institute (NCI). Statistical analyses of these data indicate that the
use of Junovan prolongs disease-free and overall survival of osteosarcoma patients. The biological effects and
safety of Junovan are further supported by data from 17 Phase I and II clinical studies performed by Ciba-Geigy in
which an additional 248 patients received at least one dose of Junovan.

We expect that the drug regulatory agencies in the United States and Europe would make a decision regarding
marketing approval for Junovan by the end of 2007. In the United States, the FDA may decide to get the advice of an
advisory panel prior to making their decision regarding approval of an NDA, and we have been advised that the
Oncology Drugs Advisory Committee of the FDA, or ODAC, will review Junovan. However, the timing of these
events is subject to risks and uncertainties regarding development, regulatory matters, manufacturing and com-
mercialization, including the timing of the drug regulatory agencies’ review of the regulatory filing, our ability to
respond to questions raised by the drug regulatory agencies in a manner satisfactory to the drug regulatory agencies,
the time needed to respond to any issues raised by the drug regulatory agencies with regard to regulatory
submissions for Junovan, and the possibility that the drug regulatory agencies may not consider preclinical and
early clinical development work and existing efficacy data or the Phase III study conduct and analysis as adequate
for their assessment of Junovan. These factors may cause delays in review, may result in the regulatory authorities
requiring us to conduct additional clinical trials, or may result in a determination by the regulatory authorities that
the data does not support marketing approval. As a result, we may not receive necessary approvals from the FDA,
the EMEA or similar drug regulatory agencies for the marketing and commercialization of Junovan when expected
or at all, and, even if Junovan is approved by regulatory authorities, there is a further risk that we may not be able to
manufacture Junovan.

We have an agreement with Novartis granting us an exclusive, worldwide license to intellectual property rights
relating to Junovan. We have exclusive worldwide sales and marketing rights for Junovan, except in the UK, Ireland,
Israel and South East Europe where we licensed distribution rights to third parties.

We are jointly developing Uvidem, a cell-based vaccine product candidate based on Dendritophages, with
sanofi-aventis S.A, or sanofi-aventis. Dendritophages, which are a type of specialized immune cells derived from a
patient’s own white blood cells called dendritic cells, are exposed to tumor cell antigens in our production facility
and then reinjected into the patient in order to stimulate the immune system to recognize and kill tumor cells that
display these antigens on their surface. We recently announced the completion of patient enrollment in two Phase 11
clinical trials of Uvidem for the treatment of melanoma. Sanofi-aventis has worldwide marketing rights to Uvidem
in melanoma.

We are focusing our research and development activities primarily on Junovan and our collaboration with
sanofi-aventis for Uvidem in order to contain our expenses. As a result, we have put on hold further development of
our other product candidates, including Collidem for treatment of colorectal cancer and Bexidem, a product
candidate for which we completed the Phase 11 stage of a Phase II/III clinical trial for the treatment of superficial
bladder cancer in Europe following treatment of all patients in the trial. until collaborative partners can be found or
other funding for those programs becomes available.

We control proprietary technology rights in the following areas:

» for our products that are designed to destroy residual cancer cells, we have rights to both non-cellular
immunotherapies that stimulate the immune system non-specifically such as Junovan, and cellular immu-
notherapies that use activated macrophages, such as Bexidem,

« for our Dendritophage products that are designed to prevent tumor recurrence, we have rights to specific
immunotherapies using dendritic cell vaccines, a type of therapeutic cancer vaccine, and

« for our synthetic vaccines, we have rights to specific combinations of peptides and analogs of peptides calted
epitopes. '

We have entered into a number of collaborations with academic and non-academic institutions and pharma-
ceutical companies, which are described in more detail under “Collaboration Agreements and Licenses” below. One
of our key collaboratinns is with sanofi-aventis for the development and commercialization of Cell Drugs, a term we
use to refer to therapeutic products derived from a patient’s own white blood cells, which includes MAK cells and
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Dendritophages, over a ten-year period. As of December 31, 2006, sanofi-aventis owned approximately 14.8% of
our common stock. We also have an agreement with Medarex, Inc., a leader in the development of antibody-based
therapies. As of December 31, 2006, Medarex owned approximately 19.6% of our common stock.

In February 2007 we completed a private placement in which we received approximately $12.9 million in
gross proceeds from the sale of 4,566,995 shares of IDM common stock and warrants to purchase up to
782,568 shares of IDM common stock.

Industry and Scientific Background
Overview

Cancer is a group of related diseases characterized by uncontrolled proliferation of abnormal cells. It is caused
or promoted by both internal factors, such as immune conditions, hormones and inherited mutations and external
factors, such as tobacco, radiation, chemicals and viruses. Cancer cells accumulate locally, forming tumors, and can
spread throughout the body, a process known as metastasis. Proliferating tumors can destroy normal tissue and
organs and ultimately result in death.

Each year, there are an estimated 10 million new cases of cancer globally, of which almost half are in Asia,
slightly over a quarter in Europe and 14% in North America, based on information from the World Health
Organization.

According to the American Cancer Society, cancer is the second leading cause of death in the United States,
exceeded only by heart disease. The cancer death rate was 4% higher in 2000 than in 1950, according to American
Cancer Society estimates, despite a decrease in death rates for other major chronic diseases during this period. The
American Cancer Society also estimates that more than 1.4 million people in the United States will be diagnosed
with cancer in 2007 and about 560,000 people will die from the disease. According to the American Cancer Society,
lung and bronchus cancer is expected to be the most common fatal cancer in men, representing approximately 31%
of cancer deaths, followed by prostate (9%) and colon and rectal cancers (9%). In women, lung and bronchus cancer
is also expected to be the most common fatal cancer, representing approximately 26% of cancer deaths, followed by
breast (15%) and colon and rectal cancers {10%). As cancer is a disease that may progress slowly, the total number
of people living with cancer significantly exceeds the number of patients diagnosed with cancer in a given year.

The treatment of cancer is characterized by a considerable unmet medical need because traditional therapies
generally do not cure advanced cancer and their benefits are often limited by the side effects associated with their
use. The goal for effective cancer treatment is the complete elimination of cancer cells at the site of tumor origin, as
well as at sites to which they have spread. Many kinds of malignant cancer can be put into remission, meaning there
is no clinical evidence of disease, using current standard therapies such as surgery, chemotherapy, radiation therapy
and hormone therapy. However, many malignant cancers will recur as a result of microscopic deposits of tumor cells
that remain undetected or tumor regrowth. In addition, many tumors are inoperable or resistant to chemotherapy
either from the beginning of treatment, or after prolonged treatment. Moreover, radiation and chemotherapy are
highly 1oxic and affect healthy cells as well as cancer cells, causing impairment of the immune system and severe
side effects in rapidly dividing tissues such as blood cells and cells lining the digestive tract.

Osteosarcoma

About 3% of all childhood cancers are osteosarcoma. Because osteosarcoma usually develops from osteo-
blasts, it most commonly develops in teenagers who are experiencing their adolescent growth spurt, Osteosarcoma
is an orphan disease and there are approximately 1,000 new cases of osteosarcoma in the United States each year. A
similar incidence of the disease exists in Europe. According to the Children’s Oncology Group, the survival of
children with osteosarcoma has remained at 60-65% since the mid-1980s. The standard treatment for osteosarcoma
is tumor resection with combination chemotherapy before and after surgery.

Melanoma

Melanoma is the most serious form of skin cancer. Around 62,000 new cases were diagnosed in 2002 in Europe
and atmost 17,000 people in Europe died from the disease. According to American Cancer Society statistics, in
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2007 in the United States, almost 59,940 new cases are expected to be diagnosed and it is estimated that
approximately 8,110 people will die from the disease.

Lung cancer

Cancer of the tungs continues to be a major health problem with a very high mortality rate and represents the
leading cause of cancer death in the United States. According to the American Cancer Society, approximately
213,380 new lung cancer cases will be diagnosed in the United States in 2007, and an estimated 160,390 patients
will die from lung cancer. The American Cancer Society also estimates that non-small cell lung cancer, or NSCLC,
represents 87% of all tung cancers.

The Immune System and Our Therapeutic Approaches

Our core area of expertise lies in understanding and enhancing immune response. The human immune system
plays a crucial role in the body’s defense against cancer and infectious diseases. The immune system has multiple
mechanisms for combating diseases, including macrophage-based and lymphocyte-based immune responses. Our
products are designed to enhance the body’s natural immune defenses against cancer by stimulating these two
response mechanisms, as described below,

Macrophages are large white blood cells capable of ingesting microbes and diseased cells, including cancer
cells. They begin their life in the bone marrow; enter the blood where they are known as monocytes and then mature
into macrophages upon entering tissues. Some macrophages are naturally attracted by tumors, where they can either
facilitate tumor growth or destroy tumor cells. Macrophage activators can be used to manipulate this dual function
of macrophages. The ability of macrophages to destroy tumor cells can be harnessed by activating macrophages
inside the patient’s body or outside the body and reinjecting them into the patient,

Qur lead product candidate, Junovan, is one of a family of macrophage activators, or immune system
stimulants, that activate macrophages inside the body. Junovan is a fully synthetic chemical entity based on
immunostimulatory components and designed to activate macrophages. It is administered in a formulation that
promotes selective delivery to tissue macrophages most prominent in the lung and liver. Extensive development of
Junovan has been completed, including a large randomized Phase I1I study in patients with osteosarcoma. We have
submitted filings in the United States and the European Union requesting approval to market Junovan for use in the
treatment of newly diagnosed resectable high-grade osteosarcoma patients in combination with multiple agent
chemotherapy. Junovan has received orphan drug designation in the United States and the European Union for use
in this cancer indication.

Macrophages can also be activated outside the human body (ex-vivo). We have developed a process for
activating macrophages to convert them into Monocyte-derived Activated Killer cells, or MAK cells, by with-
drawing a patient’s monocytes and activating them ex-vivo using a synthetic version of a natural activator called
gamma interferon. MAK cells have the property to recognize and destroy tumor cells. Pharmacological studies of
tumor-bearing rodents have shown evidence of significant regression of experimental tumors after treatment with
MAK cells. Phase I/11 clinical trials were undertaken in human patients with mesothelioma, a type of lung cancer
usually associated with exposure to asbestos, bladder cancer and ovarian cancer. These studies established thai local
injection of up to one billion MAK cells in the pleural cavity, bladder or peritoneum is well-tolerated. No significant
serious adverse events were attributed to the MAK cell products administered in the more than 100 patients treated
50 far by local injection in these locations. We have one MAK cell product candidate, Bexidem, We completed a
Phase 11 clinical trial of Bexidem for the treatment of superficial bladder cancer and have put further development of
Bexidem on hold until a collaborative partner or further funding for the project is found.

In the field of clinical immunology it is generally agreed that an efficient vaccine must include three key
components:

* one or several antigens against which an immune reaction will be triggered,

* a delivery vehicle which will deliver the anligen to the appropriate immune system cells at the correct
time, and )




* an immune system stimulant which will enhance the elicited immune reaction.
We have assembled a broad platform of patented technologies covering all three components.

Tumor control or regression following immunotherapy is associated with cellular and antibody mediated or
humoral immune reactions. Specialized immune cells called T lymphocytes, also known as T cells, circulate in the
bloodstream and throughout the body to target and destroy tumor cells or pathogens that they have been “educated”
to recognize. This recognition occurs when circulating T lymphocytes are specifically attracted to antigen
fragments, known as antigen-specific epitopes, which are presented on the surface of cancer cells or cells infected
with pathogens. T cells become educated and activated when they are first presented such specific epitopes by other
immune system cells called dendritic cells. For this exposure to be effective, the epitopes must be located on specific
molecules, called MHC molecules, present on the surface of dendritic cells. Educated T cells initially circulate in
the blood and then remain in the lymph nodes in order to preserve an immune memory, thereby facilitating a long-
lived immune response that can mediate its effect upon reappearance of the same pathogen or tumor.

Through our agreement with Pharmexa, we have access to an epitope identification system called EIS® to
rapidly identify antigen-specific epitopes from the genetic information of tumor-associated antigens. Using EIS, we
have identified epitopes for a number of indications, including lung, colon and breast cancers. The identified
epitopes include those that are recognized by cytotoxic T cells called CTL epitopes, and those recognized by helper
T cells called HTL epitopes. Among the identified epitopes, those that are selected have the highest affinity for their
interaction with MHC molecules and are therefore the most potent for inducing immune responses, EIS is also used
to modify epitopes to increase ability to induce immune responses. In order to elicit helper T cell activation, we also
have access to PADRE through a license from Pharmexa. The PADRE technology consists of a family of proprietary
molecules that are potent, synthetic, universal epitopes for helper T-cells. When combined with vaccines, PADRE
assists in boosting the helper T cell response, which in turn augments both cellular and antibody responses.

We have developed a method for the ex vive generation of monocyte-derived dendritic cells, or Dendrito-
phages, using IL-13, a biological compound that contributes to the transformation of white blood cells into
Dendritophages. In our good manufacturing practices, or GMP, compliant manufacturing facilities, we generate
Dendritophages and expose them to relevant antigens or epitopes before reinjection into the patient. The effects of
Dendritophages toaded with a recombinant protein, tumor cell lysates which are a type of cell extract, or epitopes
have been or are currently being studied in Phase /11 clinical trials. We are jointly developing one of our products
based on Dendritophages, Uvidem, with sanofi-aventis. We recently announced the completion of patient enroll-
ment in two Phase II clinical trials of Uvidem for the treatment of melanoma. We also have a second product
candidate based on Dendritophages, Collidem, which completed Phase I/II development for the treatment of
colorectal cancer. Pretiminary Uvidem Phase I data in melanoma have been accepted for oral presentation at the
American Society of Clinical Oncology, or ASCO, in 2007,

Advantages of Qur Approaches

We believe that our immunotherapy products represent a significant innovation in the development and
delivery of cancer therapeutics and consider them to be complementary to existing approaches for the following
reasons:

« Multiple and Complementary Product Categories. We use different innovative approaches to fight cancer.
We use both ex vivo and in vivo activation of immune cells to stimulate and enhance the body’s natural
defenses. We are developing products to destroy residual cancer cells, such as our macrophage activators and
our MAK-based products, and products to prevent tumor recurrence, such as our synthetic-peptides-based or
Dendritophage-based cancer treatments.

« Unique Macrophage-Based Approach. To our knowledge, we are the only company that is developing
products based on activation of macrophages. These include our MAK cell products and Junovan.

« Benefits of Ex-Vivo Engineering of Dendritophages. Our Dendritophages are produced outside the body
and therefore in isolation from the potential negative effects of cancer on dendritic cell function. As a result,
we believe that they should continue to function after injection into a cancer patient to trigger a broad
immune response.




Potential Product Synergies. Our immune system stimulants, such as Junovan, have independent ther-
apeutic activity as well as the potential to enhance the activity of some of our Cell Drugs. If successful, these
products could be used alone and in combination, increasing their potential value,

» Low Toxicity and Well-Tolerated. Unlike chemotherapy and other conventional cancer treatments, our
multiple approaches to immunotherapy have been shown in clinical trials to have low toxicity and to be well-
tolerated. '

Designed to Treat a Wide Variety of Cancers. Because our MAK cells are not tumor specific and because
our Dendritophages can be loaded with a variety of antigens or synthetic peptides, we are able to develop
new product opportunities for the treatment of a variety of cancers,

» Use of Epitopes in Vaccine Development. By selectively modifying epitopes included in our synthetic
vaccines, we believe we can enhance the desired immune response, and by using multiple epitopes from
multiple tumor-associated antigens, increase the likeiihood that the vaccine will continue to elicit an
effective immune response. '

Product Development Programs

We have submitied applications in the United States and the European Union requesting approval to market
Junovan, our lead product development candidate, for use in the treatment of newly diagneosed resectable high-grade
osteosarcoma patients in combination with multiple agent chemotherapy. Our preclinical and clinical stage product
development programs are summarized in the following table. We are focusing our research and development
activities primarily on Junovan and our collaboration with sanofi-aventis for Uvidem and, in order to contain our
expenses, have put on hold further development of Bexidem and other product candidates until collaborative
partners can be found or other funding for these programs becomes available.




Product Candidate

Description

Primary Indication(s}

Status*

Marketing Rights

Product Candidates

to Destroy
Residual Cancer
Celils
Junovan.......... Liposomal muramyl- Osteosarcoma NDA filed in U.S.; IDM + Cambridge
tripeptide MAA filed in EU Labs (United
phosphatidylethanol- Kingdom and
aming Ireland), Medison
Pharma (Israel) and
Genesis Pharma
(South East Europe)
Bextdem ......... MAK Bladder cancer Phase 11 IDM
Product Candidates
to Stimulate an
Immune
Response and
Prevent Tumor
Recurrence )
Uvidem.......... Dendritophage + Melanoma Phase 11 sanofi-aventis
melanoma tumor cell
: lysates
EP-2101 ......... Multiple tumor- Non-Small Cell Phase Il IDM
associated CTL Lung cancer
epitopes
Collidem ......... Dendritophages + Colorectal cancer Phase I/11 IDM

tumor associated
antigen peptides

Human clinical trials are usually conducted in three sequential phases that may overlap. In Phase [, the drug is
typically introduced into healthy human subjects to determine the initial safety profile, identify side effects and
evaluate dosage tolerance, distribution and metabolism, In Phase II, the drug is studied in a limited patient
population with the target disease to determine preliminary efficacy and optimal dosages and to expand the
safety profile. In certain cases, regulatory authorities may permit Phase I and Phase II to be combined into a
single Phase /II trial by accepting a Phase II protocol in which the first few patients are more specifically tested
for safety and tolerance. This is particularly true in instances where it may be inappropriate to conduct Phase I
studies in normal volunteers, such as is the case with our cellular products. In Phase III, large-scale comparative
trials are conducted in patients with the target disease to provide sufficient data for the proof of efficacy and
safety required for product approval by regulatory agencies. Regulatory authorities may permit Phase 11 and
Phase III trials to be combined into a single Phase II/TIT trial by accepting a protocol that typically includes a
planned interim analysis after an initial group of patients (Phase II) is treated to help guide a decision about
continuation or modification for the Phase III portion. Preclinical studies involve laboratory evaluation of
product characteristics and laboratory and/or animal studies to assess the potential efficacy and safety of the
product, as well as development of manufacturing processes for clinical production.

Our Clinical Stage Products

Our Product Candidates to Destroy Residual Cancer Cells

Junovan for Treatment of Osteosarcoma.  Junovan is an immune system stimulant that we are developing for

the treatment of osteosarcoma, which is a rare aggressive bone tumor that occurs primarily in adolescents and young

adults. Current standard therapy includes surgical removal of the primary tumor and systemic chemotherapy. Long-
term disease-free survivil can be achieved in approximately up 10 65% of patients diagnosed without metastases.
The others will relapse, typically with metastases in the lungs. When the lung nodules can be completely removed,
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the S5-year survival rate is between 20% and 45%, but is reduced to less than 5% for those patients that are
inoperable. The incidence of osteosarcoma is low, with approximately 1,000 new cases per year in the United States,
mostly among children and adolescents, qualifying Junovan for orphan drug designation in the United States for this
disease in 2001. We have also received orphan drug designation for Junovan in the European Union in 2004. This
designation allows us to benefit from certain advantages during product development and defined years of market
exclusivity after marketing approval in both geographies. Financial advantages include reduced or waived fees
associated with the filing of an MAA and we can also benefit from tax incentives for as much as 50% of clinical
development costs.

In October 2006, we submitted an NDA in eCTD format to the FDA for Junovan, requesting approval for its
use in the treatment of newly diagnosed resectable high-grade osteosarcoma patients in combination with multiple
agent chemotherapy. The FDA has accepted the NDA file for substantive review, on a standard review basis,
contingent upon our commitment to provide pharmacokinetic data for the to-be-marketed Junovan product. The
pharmacokinetic data in the submission were collected following administration of the product previously
manufactured by Ciba-Geigy now Novartis. The additional data that we have committed to obtain will provide
information on the pharmacokinetic behavior of the IDM-manufactured product when administered in the clinical
setting. Following the submission of the NDA, in November 2006 we submitted an MAA for Mepact to the EMEA.

We expect that the drug regulatory agencies in the United States and the European Union would make a
decision regarding marketing approval for Junovan by the end of 2007. In the United States, the FDA may decide to
get the advice of an advisory panel prior to making their decision regarding approval of an NDA, and we have been
advised that the Oncology Drugs Advisory Committee of the FDA, or ODAC, will review Junovan. However, the
timing of these events is subject to risks and uncertainties regarding development, regulatory matters, manufac-
turing and commercialization, including the timing of the drug regulatory agencies’ review of the regulatory filing,
our ability to respond to questions raised by the drug regulatory agencies in a manner satisfactory to the drug
regulatory agencies, the time needed to respond to any issues raised by the drug regulatory agencies with regard to
regulatory submissions for Junovan, and the possibility that the drug regulatory agencies may not consider
preclinical and early clinical development work and existing safety and efficacy data or the Phase 11l study conduct
and analysis as adequate for their assessment of Junovan. These factors may cause delays in review, may result in
the regulatory authorities requiring us to conduct additional clinical trials, or may result in a determination by the
regulatory authorities that the data does not support marketing approval. As a result, we may not receive necessary
approvals from the FDA, the EMEA or similar drug regulatory agencies for the marketing and commercialization of
Junovan when expected or at all, and, even if Junovan is approved by regulatory authorities, there is a further risk
that we may not be able to manufacture Junovan.

A randomized Phase I study of Junovan for the treatment of newly diagnosed osteosarcoma in combination
with a three- or four-drug chemotherapy regimen was conducted by Children’s Oncology Group, under an
investigational new drug application, or IND, granted by the FDA and held by the National Cancer Institute, prior to
our purchase of Junovan in 2003. Statistical analyses indicate that the use of Junovan prolongs the disease-free and
overall survival of osteosarcoma patients. Junovan is currently limited for clinical investigational use only; its safety
and efficacy have not been approved for commercial distribution by any regulatory agencies. We submitted an NDA
with the FDA and an MAA with the EMEA in the fourth quarter of 2006.

The NDA and MAA for Junovan (Mepact in Europe) are based on disease-free survival and overall survival
benefits observed in the Phase III study. We can make no assurances that the FDA or any other regulatory body will
find the Phase III trial results and other data on Junovan described below sufficient to support approval for
marketing Junovan.

Six hundred and seventy-eight patients with newly diagnosed non-metastatic respectable high grade osteosa-
rcoma were treated with Junovan in combination with chemotherapy following surgery at a dose between 2mg/m? +
2mg twice a week for 12 weeks and then once a week for 24 weeks. With a median follow up of almost 5 years,
patients receiving Junovan had a significant improvement in Disease Free Survival (DFS) (p<0.0245) and Overall
Survival (OS) (p<<0.0183). At 6 years, the probability of survival when Junovan is combined with adjuvant
chemotherapy is 77% (95%C1;72-83%) compared to 66% (95%CI;59-73%) without Junovan, a clinically mean-
ingful finding in pediatric population where the longer the survival, the greater the chance that the patient is cured of
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cancer. Additional survival data from the COG (median 7.7 years) support the survival benefit of Junovan in the
treatment of non-metastatic osteosarcoma. Junovan was generally well tolerated. The most common adverse events
include chills, fever, nausea, vomiting, myalgia, headache, tachycardia (fast heart rate) hypo- and hypertension,
fatigue and shortness-of-breath, generally mild to moderate in nature and consistent with the activation of
monocytes and macrophages by Junovan.

In a single-arm non-randomized Phase II triat conducted at M.D. Anderson Cancer Center, patients with
recurring fung metastases who had been rendered disease free by surgical excision were given either 12 or 24 weeks
of Junovan therapy. The median time to relapse for 16 patients who had received 24 weeks of Junovan was
9.0 months, compared to 6.8 months for 12 patients receiving 12 wecks of therapy and 4.5 months for a historical
control group of 21 patients that had been treated post-operatively with chemotherapy. Of the patients that received
Junovan for 24 weeks, 56% survived five years after completion of therapy, compared to 25% of patients who
received 12 weeks of treatment. Only two of 21 patients in the control group, or 9.5%, experienced long-term
survival. The most significant side effects included chills, fever, headache, muscular pain and fatigue, all of which
occurred primarily during the first administration. In a second Phase II study conducted at M.D. Anderson Cancer
Center and Memorial Sloan-Kettering Cancer Center, patients with relapsed osteosarcoma were treated with a
combination of Junovan and ifosfamide. This study demonstrated that Junovan and ifosfamide can be administered
together safely and provided the basis for proceeding to the randomized Phase III study in newly diagnosed
osteosarcoma patients.

Overall, almost 400 patients with advanced malignancies, of which more than half were under an IND and for
which we have detailed data, have been treated in Phase I/II trials with Junovan, In general, Junovan demonstrated
acceptable tolerability, even when administered once weekly up to six months. These studies, conducted in the
United States, Canada, Belgium, Germany and France, established the safety profile of Junovan and provided
information for dosing schedules.

Preclinical studies with Junovan in mice and dogs demonstrated tumor regression in mice with lung and lymph
node disease and 36% long-term survival (greater than one year) in dogs with spontaneous osteosarcoma treated
with a combination of surgery, chemotherapy and Junovan. We believe Junovan may have potential for treatment of
other types of cancer, because it targets pulmonary macrophages. We anticipate we may explore its use in the
treatment of cancers that are prone to lung or liver metastases, such as breast, gastrointestinal and renal cancers.

Bexidem for Treatment of ‘Superficial Bladder Cancer. Bexidem is a cell-based immunotherapeutic con-
sisting of MAK cells derived from a patient’s own white blood cells. This Cell Drug is in development as an
adjuvant treatment after transurethral resection, or TUR, for patients with superficial bladder cancer.

The initial treatment for patients with superficial bladder cancer is surgical removal of tumors by TUR, which
is often sufficient for low-risk tumors. The risk of recurrence and progression of the disease is correlated to the stage
and grade of tumors as well as to their number. Intravesical therapies are most often used after TUR in patients with
multiple tumors, with recurrent tumors or with high-risk tumors. BCG, an immunestimulant initially developed as a
vaccine to prevent tuberculosis, is a commonly used treatment for superficial bladder tumors, especially certain
aggressive tumors. Several studies have shown that BCG therapy following tumeor removal, compared to tumor
removal alone, provides therapeutic benefit. However, recurrence-free survival is only observed in 48% of treated
patients. Furthermore, significant toxicities are associated with BCG intravesical therapy. As a result, many bladder
cancer patients fail BCG therapy or are unable to complete it because of toxicity. There is therefore considerable
unmet medical need for treatment of recurring superficial bladder cancer.

In a pilot Phase I/II study, we evaluated the ability of Bexidem to reduce tuinor recurrence in superficial
bladder cancer. Based upon proof of concept in this trial demonstrating a good tolerance of the intravesical
treatment and potential clinical efficacy provided the basis for commencement of a European, multicenter, open-
label, randomized Phase II/1[I study that compares Bexidem to intravesical BCG therapy in patients with
intermediate to high risk of recurrence of superficial papillary bladder cancer after complete transurethral resection,
We completed the recruitment of 138 patients for the Phase-II stage of this study in Europe in December 2005. All
patients completed the treatment in the second half of 2006.
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In November 2005, we filed a Special Protoco] Assessment, or SPA, request for a Phase [I/111 clinical study of
Bexidem planned in the United States. The SPA is a process that provides the trial sponsor with binding written
agreement from the FDA that the design and analysis of the study are adequate to support a license application
submission if the study is performed according to the SPA specifications. We received the SPA in June 2006. This
randomized, controlled, multi-center pivotal trial plans to include approximately 300 patients with superficial
bladder cancer with a history of failure of BCG therapy. The primary endpoint is time to recurrence,

We do not plan to proceed with further development of Bexidem until a collaborative partner can be found or
other funding becomes available. We arc secking a partner to share Bexidem Phase III clinical development
activities and costs with us.

Products to Prevent Tumor Recurrence

Uvidem for Treatment of Melanoma. Uvidem is a Cell Drug made from a patient’s own cells and consists of
Dendritophages loaded with melanoma cell antigens using cell lines licensed to us by third parties. Uvidem is in
Phase 11 clinical trials for the treatment of melanoma. We are jointly developing Uvidem with sanofi-aventis.

The outcome of melanoma treatment depends on the stage of disease. Patients with metastatic, or stage [V,
disease have a five-year survival rate of about 15%. The tréatment of metastatic melanoma remains challenging.
The standard chemotherapy treatments have response rates of about 15-25% with generally short-lived responses
ranging from three to six months. Multiple drug combinations have been tested; however the current data suggest
that while these combinations may increase the clinical response rate, there is insufficient data to demonstrate clear
survival advantage.

We are conducting two Phase TE clinical trials of Uvidem in melanoma. The first Phase 1l clinical trial, which is
on-going in the United States, includes 38 patients with malignant melanoma and is meant to assess Uvidem’s
clinical activity and safety in patients with in-transit or low volume metastatic melanoma. The preliminary results of
this trial have been accepted for oral presentation at ASCO, 2007. The second Phase II clinical trial, on-going in
Europe, is a randomized trial to compare the induction of immune responses by Uvidem alone or in combination
with low doses of pegylated interferon alpha in 53 patients with stage [I/IIl melanoma patients. We announced
completion of patient enrollment in both Phase 11 trials in February 2007.

We completed a randomized Phase /1 safety study that compares immune responses with two different
versions of Uvidem in stage IV melanoma patients. Out of the 49 treated patients, no significant adverse events
related to the treatment have been reported. Disease stabilizations were observed in 10 patients representing 20% of
all treated patients. Furthermore, 14 patients out of 40 who were analyzed were immune responders.

We also completed a single arm Phase I/1I study in 15 patients with stage 1V metastatic melanoma using
Dendritophages loaded with melanoma antigens. The product was well-tolerated with no major product-related
toxicities reported. Increases in immune responses were detected after administration of Uvidem in some patients.
Signs of activity were observed, with one patient in complete remission for more than 18 months and one patient
with stable disease for 10 months.

EP-2101 for Non-Small Cell Lung Cancer. The current course of treatment for lung cancer includes surgery,
if appropriate, followed by various regimens of radiation and chemotherapy to try to destroy cancer cells. High dose
chemotherapy causes well-known adverse side effects such as hair loss, decreased function of various organs, and a
substantial suppression of the immune system, leading to susceptibility to infection.

In a Phase I/TI clinical trial of EP-2101, a therapeutic, multi-epitope vaccine in NSCLC and colorectal cancer
patients, final safety data showed that the EP-2101 vaccine was safe and well tolerated in the 24 patients who were
treated with the vaccine. Final immunogenicity data from the patients analyzed showed that the vaccine was
immunogenic and effective at inducing strong and broad CTL responses in at least 50% of the patients.

Based on these immune responses, a Phase Il clinical protocol was initiated in advanced stage NSCLC
patients. The primary endpoints for this trial are safety and overall survival, with progression-free survival, and
immunogenicity of vaccine epitopes being secondary endpoints. In February 2006 we determined that the number
of patients enrolled and treated in the study represented a sufficient study population to guide our future
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devetopment of EP-2101, and the study was closed to further enrollment earlier than initially planned. In addition,
the clinical protocol was amended to extend the treatment of patients who completed one-year on study without
disease progression, to allow for a second course of treatment. Additional follow up data will be obtained from this
protocol amendment, which will also help us to assess potential benefit.

We presented preliminary data on the immune responses in the Phase II trial at the International Society for the
Biological Therapy of Cancer meeting held in Los Angeles in October 2006. These data confirm the data from the
Phase I/1I trial, showing the vaccine to be immunogenic, inducing broad CTL responses that were detected out to
one year. The complete analysis of immune responses in this trial has been accepted for poster presentation at ASCO
2007. We do not ptan to proceed with further development of EP-2101 until a collaborative partner can be found or
other funding becomes available.

EP-2101 is composed of multipte tumor-specific CTL epitopes that were selected from tumor-associated
antigens. Some of the epitopes have been modified to create analogs in order to enhance the potency of the T cell
response induced by the vaccine. EP-2101 is delivered as an injection of peptide epitopes in combination with
conventional adjuvant. In addition, the vaccine candidate includes the PADRE universal helper T cell epitope we
have licensed from Pharmexa.

Collidem for Treatment of Colorectal Cancer. Collidem is a Cell Drug that for which we have completed
Phase V1T development for the treatment of advanced colorectal cancer. Collidem is composed of Dendritophages
that have been loaded with six CTL epitopes from three tumor associated antigens, or TAA, including two
proprietary native epitopes and four modified, or analog, epitopes. Tolerance to TAA. which is a failure of the
immune system to recognize the cancer as diseased tissue, may be broken by using these analog epitopes which
enhance the potency of the T cell response. The dendritic cells are also loaded with PADRE as an immunostimulant.
A control antigen is included to assess general immune function in the patients.

The peptides used in Collidem, originally licensed to IDM S.A. by Epimmune prior to our Combination,
represent tumor-associated antigens that are expressed in breast, colon and lung cancers, with the highest expression
of antigens being in colon cancer. These peptides, in combination with our Dendritophages, have been shown 10
induce potent immune responses ex vivo, and one of the peptides, in combination with dendritic cells, has been
shown to induce immune responses that were correlated with clinical responses in patients with colon cancer.

We completed a Phase I/11 trial of Collidem and reported the results of that trial at the ASCO Gastrointestinal
Cancers Symposium in January 2006. This pilot study in very advanced patients met its end point showing a well-
tolerated treatment with the induction of immune responses. We do not plan to proceed with further development of
Collidem until a collaborative partner can be found or other funding becomes available.

Product Manufacturing
We rely on two methods for manufacturing our product candidates: outsourcing and in-house manufacturing.
Junovan and EP-2101 are product candidates for which we rely on outsourced'manufacturing.

MTP-PE is the active ingredient in Junovan. MTP-PE is a fully synthetic analogue of muramyldipeptide, a
naturally occurring component of bacterial cell walls that is synthesized in a multi-step process. Junovan is a
liposomal formulation of MTP-PE combined with two synthetic lipids, a type of organic compound. When saline is
added to the final product, the lipids form liposomes, which are spherical vessels used to deliver MTP-PE to
macrophages and monocytes. In seeking regulatory approval for Junovan, we have established outsourcing
arrangements with third parties to provide us with our supply and manufacturing needs for commercialization
of Junovan,

Currently we have contracts with third-party suppliers for the manufacture of the active ingredient (MTP-PE),
excipients and final product for Junovan. We also have an agreement with another supplier for performing the key
tests necessary for the excipients release of Junovan. We have not identified other vendors that might provide these
products and services should the ability of our current contractors to manufacture and test MTP-PE and/or Junovan
be impatred. Delays or impairment of our ability to continue manufacturing or testing could be caused by physical
damage or impairment of our supplier facilities, departure of key staff, failure to renew manufacturing agreements
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‘with them or other unforeseen circumstances. Such impairment could significantly impact our ability to com-
mercialize Junovan should we receive regulatory approval to do so. Even if we were able to identify potential
alternative suppliers, it would take a significant amount of time and resources to initiate and validate all of the
required processes and activities to bring the new supplier on-line, resulting in interruptions in the availability of
Junovan.

For our EP-2101 vaccine candidate, the peptides are assembled using standard chemistry for solid phase
peptide synthesis. The 10 peptides are dissolved into one of three solvent systems, and the three peptide-contaiming
pools are sterilized by filtration. Under aseptic conditions, the three peptide pools are combined and then
homogenized with an adjuvant to form the EP-2101 drug product.

For in-house manufacturing, we rely on licensing and collaboration agreements with our partners to supply us
with certain ancillary components and raw materials required for our manufacturing processes, including biological
products, chemical compounds, antibodies and antigens.

We have pioneered the development of an efficient manufacturing process for generating our Cell Drugs.
Under this process, white blood cells are collected from a patient at a clinical site and then stimulated ex vive at our
manufacturing facilities. In the stimulation process for MAK cell products, white blood cells are cultured for seven
days in a solution containing a stimulating factor called Granulocyte Macrophage Colony Stimulating Factor, or
GM-CSF, that causes them to transform intc macrophages. Later in the process, a synthetic version of gamma
interferon, a natural compound that activates macrophages, is added in order to enhance the ability of the
macrophages to kill cancer cells. We have also developed a similar process for producing Dendritophages, during
which white blood cells are cultured for seven days in a solution containing GM-CSF and 1L-13. Together, these
compounds cause white blood cells to transform into Dendritophages. Both of these processes are undertaken in
centralized manufacturing facilities under GMP conditions.

We rely on external suppliers for the production of 1L-13, which is used in the manufacturing of our
Dendritophage product candidates. We believe that we currently possess enough IL-13 for our short- to medium-
term needs. However, once any of our Dendritophage product candidates enter into Phase 11 clinical trials, we will
require a supply of 1L-13 that conforms to GMP. We have an agreement with Biotecnol aimed at developing a GMP
compliant IL- 13 manufacturing process, which is described in more detail under “Collaboration Agreements and
Licenses™ below.

We also rely on external suppliers for the production of melanoma cell-line lysates which are used in the
manufacturing of Uvidem. We believe that we currently possess enough lysates for our shert-term needs. However,
in order to initiate further clinical trials of Uvidem, we will require a supply of lysates that conforms to GMP. We
have an agreement with a third party supplier aimed at manufacturing GMP compliant lysates. Should the ability of
this contractor to manufacture lysates be impaired, we would experience significant delays in the Uvidem
development program. Even if we were able to identify potential alternative suppliers, it would take a significant
amount of time and resources to initiate and validate all of the required processes and activities to bring the new
supplier on-line, resulting in interruptions in the availability of lysates

We have been able to produce large quantities of Cell Drugs, which can be divided into individual doses and
frozen for delivery and subsequent administration. We have produced Cell Drugs in our own facilities for our
research and development programs, preclinical testing and clinical trials. Following manufacture, the final product
is shipped to the clinical center for administration to the patient. We currently have one clinical scale manufacturing
facility operational in Paris, France, and a second such facility in Irvine, California.

We have a comprehensive process development program for Cell Drugs to support the improvement and
enhancement of our manufacturing methods concurrently with clinical development on an ongoing basis. These
development projects are focused on increased automation towards higher throughput, increased consistency and
safety, and decreased labor requirements for processing. In support of later phase trials, we anticipate expanding our
current facilities or constructing commercial scale manufacturing plants in the United States and Europe as
necessary to meet our future needs, although we have no near-term plans to do s0.
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Marketing and Sales

We currently have no marketing, sales or distribution capabilities. We plan to market Junovan and our Cell
Drugs and other immunotherapy products either directly or through collaborations with third parties. We have
initiated such collaborations through our agreement with Cambridge Laboratories for the distribution of Junovan in
the UK and Ireland, with Medison Pharma for the distribution of Junovan in [srael and with Genesis Pharma for the
distribution of Junovan in South East Europe. We are currently evaluating the possibility of commercializing
Junovan in other geographic areas through collaborations with other third parties. If we were to commercialize any
of our products ourselves, we would have to develop marketing and sales capabilities on our own or hire a third parny
1o provide sales personnel instead of developing our own staff.

Collaboration Agreements and Licenses

We plan to continue to develop collaborations with academic and non-academic institutions and pharma-
ceutical companies as appropriate to secure access to specific technologies and compounds that we require for our
research and development. We rely heavily on our collaboration partners, most impertantly sanofi-aventis, to aid us
in clinical trials, manufacturing our products and for certain proprietary technology. If our product candidates
receive marketing approval, we may also rely on collaboration partners to market our products. In addition, in the
ordinary course of our business, we enter into collaborations with third parties for the conduct of clinical trials and
for the supply and production of certain of our product candidates or their components. Our principal collaborations
and licenses are described below.

Collaboration with sanofi-aventis

In July 2001, we entered into an agreement, referred to as the 2001 Agreement, with sanofi-aventis, or sanofi, a
French pharmaceutical company, for the development and commercialization of up to 20 Cell Drugs over a 10-year
period. For each Cell Drug for which sanofi chooses to exercise the joint development option under the
collaboration, we will receive milestone payments and reimbursement of certain expenses, as described below.
In return, upen securing marketing approval for any Cell Drug developed under the collaboration, sanofi will have a
further option for an exclusive worldwide license to commercialize that product.

In connection with the 2001 Agreement, sanofi invested approximately $33 million in our subsidiary and as a
result of the Combination, owned approximately 14.8% of our outstanding commaon stock as of December 31, 2006.

Sanofi has remaining opticons to participate in the clinical development of up to ten (or up to two per year) Cell
Drugs through 2011, With respect to any Cell Drug Program, sanofi’s option is exercisable at the beginning of
clinical development of the product related to that program, following presentation by us to sanofi of a satisfactory
development plan including proof of concept in vitre and safety in vivo. One such option was exercised by sanofi
for the ongoing development of Uvidem for treatment of melanoma.

For all but two of the 20 Cell Drug Programs, sanofi will pay us an up-front payment upon exercising its option
for any Cell Drug Program and further milestone payments are scheduled upon successful completion of Phase 1, 11
and I clinical trials (followed by a decision to commercialize). Sanofi may select the two Cell Drug Programs for
which such payments are not required, but the two programs may-not be chosen consecutively.

With respect to each of the Cell Drug Programs, sanofi will pay us a final milestone payment once marketing
approvals for a selected product have been obtained. Part of this payment will be made upon obtaining FDA
approval and the rest upon obtaining approval from the EMEA or from the regulatory authorities of a certain number
of countries in Europe. The precise amount to be paid will be determined when such regulatory approvals are
granted and will reflect the marketing potential of the specific product. In addition, the amount may be supple-
mented later to reflect increased market potential, expansion of the product’s indications or the territory for which it
is approved.

We retain al! operational responsibility for the development of any Cell Drug Program selected by sanofi,
which we carry out in accordance with the development plan decided upon at the time the option is exercised. Sanofi
bears all costs of clinical development (other than certain intellectual property costs), which it becomes obligated to
pay beginning on the date on which it exercises its option.
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At any stage of development, sanofi may terminate its participation in a given Cell Drug Program without
penalty and without affecting its ability to exercise its remaining options with respect to other Cell Drug Programs,
in which case all rights to such Cell Drug Program will automatically revert to us. Should we then seek a partner to
develop such Cell Drug Program, sanofi will have a right of first refusal exercisable with respect to no more than
three Cell Drug Programs over any offer made by such potential partner in connection with such Cell Drug Program,
including the right to replace such partner within 60 days. If sanofi chooses not to exercise this right of first refusal,
we would be allowed to enter into the contemplated collaboration with a third party only in accordance with the
terms and conditions presented to sanofi.

Generally, in case of disagreement concerning the conduct of a Cell Drug Program, we are able to reclaim
sanofi’s rights over the results of such Cell Drug Program upon paying sanofi an amount set by ‘an appointed expert.
However, in case of a disagreement over the continued development of a Cell Drug Program for new or expanded
indications, either pariner may undertake further clinical development unilaterally at its own cost and would receive
a royalty from the other party.

Upon securing marketing approval for a product developed under a Cell Drug Program, sanofi will have an
option for an exclusive worldwide license, with the right to sub-license, to commercialize that product. If sanofi
does not exercise this option, all rights to the product will automatically revert to us. Qur compensation for granting
commercialization rights to sanofi will consist solely of the transfer price we will obtain for acting as exclusive
manufacturer of the relevant product. This transfer price will comprise: (i) the supply cost, including all royalties
due to third parties, (ii) royalties due to us on net sales, and (iii) trademark royalties. If the supply costs, as
determined by an independent expert, exceed a certain percentage of the sale price, the total transfer price will be
increased correspondingly up to a maximum percentage of the sale price. Upon reaching such maximum
percentage, if no agreement is reached as to how to proceed, sanofi may abandon commercialization of such
product, whereupon all rights to the product will revert automatically to us, although we will not be allowed to
commercialize on the basis of a transfer price lower than the one proposed to sanofi, If the supply cost decreases, we
will share the resulting additional profit margin equally with sanofi.

If sanofi decides not to commercialize a product, or otherwise fails to commercialize the products in the United
States or the European market, all rights to such products in such market will revert to us upon notification to sanofi.
Sanofi may discontinue commercialization a1 any time without penalty, at which time all rights will automatically
revert to us.

Prior to the 2001 Agreement, we had entered into a protocol with sanofi, referred to as the 1999 Protocol,
which was replaced by an agreement signed on November 30, 2001, referred to as the IL-13 Agreement. Under the
IL-13 Agreement, sanofi agreed to provide us with a non-exclusive license to [L-13 intellectual property to meet our
requirements through commercialization, including a right to sub-license with sanofi’s approval. In exchange,
sanofi was issued shares in our subsidiary, IDM 3.A., and granted warrants to purchase additional shares of
IDM S.A. capital stock. These warrants were exercised on August 12, 2005, prior to the Combination, in exchange
for a new license agreement for our use of IL-13 in Phase I1I clinical trials and for the commercialization of our
products using IL-13. This exercise was recorded as an increase of our stockholders’ equity for $2.0 million,
corresponding to the value of the stock received by sanofi-aventis calculated using the fair value of our shares in the
Combination. The license to IL-13, which was valued at the same amount, was written off as an impairment charge
in the third quarter of 2005 in accordance with our established policies since it had no alternative future use.

To the extent that we and/or one of our partners other than sanofi selt any products using IL-13, whether for
therapeutic or non-therapeutic use, we will pay royalties to sanofi. The IL-13 Agreement will remain in force until
the expiration of the last IL-13 patent. However, it may be terminated upon termination of the 2001 Agreement, at
which point the 1999 Agreement would come into force again, resulting primarily in an increase in the amount of
our royalty obligations on products using IL-13 and the re-entry into force of sanofi’s option for an exclusive license

to commercialize those products in Europe, or under various other circumstances.

Collaboration with Medarex

In July 2000, we entered into an Amended and Restated Technology Access Agreement, as amended, referred
to as the ARTA Agreement, with Medarex, Inc., a New Jersey-based biopharmaceutical company, and GenPharm
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International, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Medarex, Inc., with Medarex, Inc. and GenPharm, Inc. referred to
collectively as Medarex.

Under the ARTA Agreement, Medarex granted us licenses to manufacture and commercialize several
antibodies developed by Medarex. In addition, we agreed to expend a specific amount related to a research
and development program with respect to any of the antibodies or products licensed under the ARTA Agreement. As
of December 31, 2006, we had met our obligations with respect to such expenditure and program. Unless earlier
terminated, the ARTA Agreement remains in force on a country-by-country and product-by-product basis until
expiration of the last patent covering any product contemplated by the agreement.

In consideration for Medarex’s granting of the licenses and certain payments made by Medarex, IDM 5. A.
issued shares and units to Medarex, pursuant to the Unit Purchase Agreement signed with Medarex in July 2000.
Each *“unit” comprised one IDM S.A. share and 19 warrants, each warrant giving the right to subscribe for one bond
convertible into or redeemable for one IDM S.A. share, at a price of $10.01 per bond, from September 11, 2002
through September 10, 2012. These warrants were exercised on August 12, 2005, prior to the Combination, all of the
bonds were converted, and Medarex owned approximately 19.6% of our outstanding common stock as of
December 31, 2006.

We also signed a Devetopment Collaboration and Supply Agreement with Medarex in May 2002, referred to as
the DCS Agreement, under which we agreed to collaborate and share information with Medarex for the devel-
opment of dendritic cell products using anti-CTLA-4 antibody, which is administered alone or in conjunction with
anticancer vaccines to boost immune response, Medarex has primary responsibility for developing the commercial
scale manufactuoring process for the anti-CTLA-4 antibody for Phase 111 and commercialization, while we have
primary responsibility for preclinical and clinical trials related to the dendritic cell products.

Under the DCS Agreement, each party granted to the other the right to use and reference marketing
authorization approvals for dendritic cell products jointly developed under the DCS Agreement using the anti-
CTLA-4 antibody, together with information of either party that is relevant to the development of dendritic cell
products. In addition, each party granted to the other certain limited worldwide exclusive licenses under patents
related to the collaboration. In consideration of the rights and licenses granted by each party to the other, we agreed
to pay to Medarex certain milestone payments upon approval of the first biologic license application or equivalent in
the United States, upon regulatory approval for marketing in the European Union, and upon regulatory approval for
marketing in Japan. If Medarex grants a sublicense under the rights and licenses granted to Medarex by us under the
DCS Agreement to a third party for the research, development or commercialization of a product based on
Dendritophages for prostate cancer, Medarex has agreed to pay us a certain percentage of net revenues received
from the sub-licensee. Further, if Medarex grants a sublicense to a third party under certain of our patents or joint
patents, then Medarex has agreed to pay us a percentage of net revenues received from the sub-licensee, which
percentage varies depending on the characteristics of the sublicense.

The DCS Agreement is effective until May 2007.

License Agreement with Novartis

Through the acquisition of certain assets relating to Junovan from Jenner Biotherapies, Inc. in April 2003, we
obtained an exclusive worldwide license from Ciba-Geigy Ltd., now known as Novartis, covering patent rights to
compounds that we use in the production of Junovan and Jenact. Under the license agreement, we are required to
make certain milestone payments with respect to each of these compounds vpon completion of specific devel-
opment milestones, which payments may be staged so that milestone payments do not exceed a specified portion of
gross profits based on sales of the applicable product in any year. We also agreed to pay royalties with respect to net
sales of the licensed products. Part of the milestone payments may be credited against these royalty obligations.
With respect to Junovan, we are required to make milestone payments and, as of December 31, 2006 have achieved
two milestones totaling $750,000 that would be payable in the event that Junovan is successfully commercialized.
No amount has been recorded in the Company’s financial statements for these milestone payments because, under
the terms of the agreement, the payment is not required to be made until the achievement of gross profit related to
the product. Unless earlier terminated, the license agreement shall continue on a country-by-country and
product-by-product basis until there are no remaining royalty payments in each country covered by the patents
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obtained under the agreement. In addition to certain standard termination clauses, we may terminate the agreement
with respect to any patent upon 60 days’ written notice.

Ceollaboration with Biotecnol

In March 2001, we entered into a Prototype Production Contract with Biotecnol S.A., or Biotecnol, a
Portuguese company specializing in the general use of Escherichia coli, or E-coli, as a host for the expression of
proteins. The objective of the contract is to develop a process for the production of IL-13 using E-coli as a host.
Under the terms of this contract, we paid a success fee to Biotecnol in August 2002.

We have been pursuing 11.-13 development in cotlaboration with Biotecnol since April 2003, based on a Letter
of Intent we executed with Biotecnol on March 2003, In November 2003, we and Biotecnol entered into an [L-13
Development and Manufacturing Agreement, referred to as the 2003 Agreement. This agreement aims at
developing a GMP IL-13 process and its future manufacturing and is effective for five years, commencing upon
the release of the first finished product batch which meets the contractual specifications and includes recombinant
IL-13 formulated in vials usable for Phase III clinical trials, referred to as clinical grade 1L-13.

Under the 2003 Agreement, Biotecnol will complete development of clinical grade IL-13 according to a
program of GMP manufacturing, control, testing and release, as defined with advice from sanofi-aventis. Under the
terms of the 2003 Agreement, Biotecnol will use a subcontractor for GMP manufacturing. The 2003 Agreement
provides that we will provide financial support payable upon the occurrence of certain milestone events and based
on the decisions of the parties to continue development. ’

Once development of the IL-13 production process is completed, Biotecnol will oversee the ongoing
management of the outsourcing of manufacturing and release of the finished product for a renewable five-year
period beginning with the release of the first finished product batch.

We may decide not to renew the outsourcing of IL-13 to Biotecno! after the end of the manufacturing period,
upon payment of cancellation fees. The amount of cancellation fees shall be agreed upon between the parties and
may not exceed the management fee of one finished product batch. This amount decreases by 20% per year
thereafter.

Either party may terminate the 2003 Agreement on the basis of a recommendation from the joint management
committee if certain program specifications and targets are not met and/or before manufacturing of the first product
batch is initiated. We are also entitled to terminate the 2003 Agreement at any time during the manufacturing period
if the finished product stability is not satisfactory. Biotecnol is entitled to terminate the process performance at any
time by providing 18 months’ prior notice. In addition, either we or Biotecnol may terminate the 2003 Agreement
with immediate effect upon written notice on or at any time after the occurrence of certain events, such as breach of
contract or liquidation.

License Agreement with Eli Lilly

Through the acquisition of certain assets of Jenner Biotherapies, Inc., we obtained a co-exclusive worldwide
license from Eli Lilly and Company for patent rights and biological materials relating to the development of
products based on Kalikrein Surface Antigen (KSA). Under this agreement, we will be obligated to pay royalties on
net sales if we commercialize a KSA product. In addition, we will be required to pay milestone payments upon
certain clinical or regulatory events for a KSA product. Part of one of the milestone payments may be credited
against our royalty obligations, Unless earlier terminated, the license agreement shall continue until the latest
expiration of any patent right in its scope. In addition to certain standard termination clauses, we may terminate the
license agreement with respect to any country and/or any patent right in its scope upon 60 days’ notice.

Other Agreements and Licenses

We also have licenses 1o use other products we require to produce certain of our Cell Drugs. For example, we
have an exclusive worldwide license from the Institut National de la Santé et de la Recherche Médicale, or
INSERM, and non-exclusive worldwide licenses from the Colorado Oncology Foundation and the Sloan-Kettering
Institute for the use of their melanoma cell lines to produce lysates. Lysates from the melanoma cell lines licensed to
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us from these third parties are already used in our Cell Drug Uvidem. Under each of our license agreements with
INSERM, the Colorado Oncology Foundation and the Sloan-Kettering Institute, we have agreed to pay royalties on
sales of products using the applicable technology.

We have an Intellectual Property Licensing and Framework Agreement with Institut de Recherche Pierre Fabre
and Pierre Fabre Médicament S.A., together, referred to as Pierre Fabre, under which we have a worldwide
exclusive license for the use of FMKp, a certain portion of the membrane of a specific bacteria, as a maturation
agent for our Dendritophages. Pierre Fabre agreed to supply us with necessary quantities of research grade FMKp
and back-up compounds for our research and development activities at no additional cost, and with clinical trial
supplies of FMKp at a price to be negotiated between the parties. Under this agreement, we paid Pierre Fabre up-
front payments and agreed to pay an annual maintenance fee as well as milestone payments. We further agreed to
pay Pierre Fabre success fees when Cell Drugs requiring FMKp are marketed.

We entered into a Cooperative Research and Development Agreement, or CRADA, with the Walter Reed
Army Institute of Research for research and developments in the field of liposomal vaccine formulations using our
liposomal KSA vaccine.

In July 2001, we entered into a development and supply agreement with Stedim 5.A., a French company
specializing in the design and manufacture of flexible single-use plastic bags, medical devices and related
ancillaries for the medical and pharmaceutical industries. Under this agreement, Stedim will design, manufacture
and sell to us specialized sterile plastic bags and ancillary products used in manufacturing our cell-based products.
In return, we agreed to purchase the products from Stedim exclusively. We have also agreed not to apply for any
patents on the products or technology provided by Stedim.

Government Research Funding

In 2003, we received a grant through a French Government sponsored program to conduct research related to
dendritic cell therapy in solid tumors.

A European Union research grant related to our Dendritophage and liposomal KSA technologies was received
in December 2003, We expect to receive approximately $0.7 million in total through this grant which program was
extended until the end of June 2007. ’

In March 2004, we received a grant from the NCI to define and conduct preclinical testing of a multi-epitope,
clinical vaccine candidate for ovarian and breast cancer. We are collaborating with investigators at the Mayo Clinic
on the program with an objective of designing a vaccine to induce HTL responses directed against multiple tumor
associated antigens in order to prevent or delay disease recurrence after surgery and chemotherapy.

In May 2004, we received a grant from the NCI to support our continuing and detailed analysis of the immune
responsiveness of patients immunized with our multi-epitope cancer vaccine candidate, EP-2101, in the Phase I/
clinical trials we conducted with the vaccine.

. In January 2007, we received a grant through a new French Government sponsored program o conduct
research and clinical studies related to macrophages with antibodies and cancer vaccine antigen formulations. We
expect to receive approximately $1.3 million in total over 3 years under this grant.

Acquisition of Certain Assets from Jenner Biotherapies

In March 2003, we entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement with Jenner Biotherapies, Inc., a biotechnology
company, now dissolved, that was devoted to the development of cancer vaccines and macrophage activators.
Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, we purchased certain assets of Jenner Biotherapies, including its lead
product candidate, Junovan, and various agreements, patents, licenses and other intellectual property rights
associated with Jenner Biotherapies’ cancer vaccine programs. The assets were acquired for shares in our
subsidiary, IDM S.A., and Jenner’s successors now own shares of our common stock as a resuli of the Combination,
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Intellectual Property

Patents

Patents and othzr proprietary rights are critical to our business. We maintain a policy of filing patent
applications to protect our technology and products, including our Cell Drugs and other product candidates,
processes for preparing our product candidates, pharmaceutical compositions containing such products and, in the
United States, methods of treatment of the human body. Some of our patent applications cover key technologics
underlying the products in our developmental pipeline and are issued or pending in jurisdictions that are key to our
business. We classify our patents and proprietary rights into four groups: dendritic cells, macrophages, cellular
technology and immuno-designed molecules. The dendritic cell group contains patents and applications related to
Dendritophages. The macrophage group of patents focuses on monocyte-derived macrophages and protects
methods for their preparation and their use, including combinations with antibodies. The cellular technology
group of patents contains patents and applications protecting different methods or kits usable for preparation of
dendritic cells as well as for macrophages. The immuno-designed molecules family of patents represents immune
system stimulants and new complexes allowing for efficient modification of cells. It also includes the patents
acquired from Jenner Biotherapies, in particular those covering Junovan, Jenact and certain tumor antigens, such as
prostate specific antigen, or PSA, and KSA.

Our policy is to extend patent coverage to countries that represent market opportunities for our products and/or
our technology, in order to be able to sell licenses or form partnering alliances for joint development of our
technologies in related fields. We also rely on trade secrets, confidentiality agreements and other measures to
protect our technology and products.

The original patents covering Junovan expired and only the patent relating specifically to liposomal formu-
lation of Junovan will remain valid until 2007 in the United States, with a possible extension for up to five years,
However, if we receive regulatory approval for Junovan and choose to commercialize it,-we wil) have a seven-year
period of marketing exclusivity for Junovan for the treatment of ostecsarcoma in the United States as a result of
Junovan’s designation as an orphan drug for osteosarcoma by the FDA. This seven-year period would begin on the
date that our marketing application for Junovan is approved by the FDA. During this period, the FDA would be
barred from approving a third-party’s marketing application for the same drug for the same application. The FDA
would not, however, be barred from approving a third-party’s marketing application for Junovan for a type of cancer
other than osteosarcoma or for a drug other than Junovan for the treatment of osteosarcoma, if it is shown to be more
effective. Similarly, we will have a 10-year marketing exclusivity in Europe as a result of Junovan’s designation as
an orphan drug for osteosarcoma by the EMEA. Furthermore, in August 2005 we filed a new patent application for
an improved Junovan manufacturing process. The orphan drug designation in the United States and Europe for
Junovan and the manufacturing process patent may not provide us with adequate protection from competitive
products.

Most issued patents granted, or deemed to be granted, by the European Patent Office, or EPO, can be validated
as individual patents in eight key countries within Europe. As a result of multi-country validation of our EPO
patents (coupled with our issued patents and patent applications in non-European countries), our patent portfolio
comprised, as of January 2007, a total of 129 issued patents and 75 patent applications.

In addition, we have been granted licenses to patents covering several products by our collaboration partners.
We have exclusive or non-exclusive rights to 135 licensed patents (109 issued, 26 pending) covering leading and
dendritic cell differentiation/maturation technologies as well as tumor antigens. We also have two licenses covering
tumor epitopes, one from the National Institutes of Health, or NIH, and one from the Ludwig Institute for Cancer
Research.

With respect to our technology, know-how and data, we have chosen to protect our interests by relying on
confidentiality agreements with our employees, consultants and certain contractors. In addition, we have a policy of
entering into confidentiality agreements with our collaborators and licensees.

18




Trademarks -

As of February, 2007, we have 17 trademarks, including trademarks registered in the United States, Canada,
France, Switzerland, Australia, Japan, Israel and Hungary, as well as Community Trademarks registered in all of the
countries of the European Union. Our portfolio includes the following trademarks registered in the following
countries:

» [.D.M., The Immunogenics Company: France, the European Union, Canada, Switzerland, Australia, Israel
and Hungary;

 Junovan: United States, the European Union, Switzerland, Australia and Hungary;
» Mepact: United States, the European Union, Switzerland and Hungary;

« MAK: United States, Japan, European Union, Canada and Australia;

s Dendritophage: United States, Canada, France, and the European Union.

We have also filed a trademark application in the European Union covering the IDM logo, as well as trademark
applications in Canada and Japan covering five names for our Cell Drugs, Uvidem, Bexidem, Collidem, Eladem and
Osidem, which are registered in the United States and the European Union.

Government Regulation

Our research and development, preclinical testing, clinical trials, facilities and manufacturing and marketing
of our products are, and will be, subject to extensive regulation by numerous governmental authorities including
those in the United States and the European Union. The FDA, the EMEA and regulatory authorities in other
countries impose substantial requirements on the development, clinical testing, manufacturing and marketing of
products such as those we propose to develop. If we do not comply with applicable requirements, we may be fined,
our products may be recalled or seized, our production may be totally or partially suspended, the relevant regulatory
agency may refuse to approve our marketing applications or allow us to distribute our products, and we may be
criminally prosecuted. Regulatory authorities also have the authority to revoke previously granted marketing
authorizations due to a failure to comply with regulatory standards.

Although specific procedures differ in detail from country to country, the devetopment of human therapeutic
drugs follows essentially the same procedures and is subject to similar regulatory requirements throughout much of
the world. In order to obtain approval of a product, we typically must, among other requirements, submit proof of
safety and efficacy as well as detailed information on the manufacture, control and composition of the product. In
most cases, this proof entails extensive preclinical, clinical and laboratory tests. The path of a new drug from basic
research to market includes five stages: (i) research, (ii) preclinical testing and manufacturing, (iii) human clinical
trials, (iv) regulatory approval and (v) commercialization.

Regulatory authorities may also require post-approval testing and surveillance to monitor the effects and safety
of approved products or may place conditions on any approvals that could restrict the commercial applications of
these products. Regulatory authorities may withdraw product approvals if we fail to comply with the terms and
conditions of any regulatory approvals granted or encounter problems following initial approval. With respect to
patented products or technologies, delays imposed by the governmental approval process may materially reduce the
period during which we will have the exclusive right to exploit them.

Regulation of Clinical Trials .

Human clinical trials are usually conducted in three sequential phases that may overlap. In Phase I, the drug is
typically introduced into healthy human subjects or patients with the disease to be treated to determine the initial
safety profile identify side effects and evaluate dosage tolerance, distribution and metabolism. In Phase II, the drug
is studied in a limited patient population with the target disease to determine preliminary efficacy and optimal
dosages and to expand the safety profile. In certain cases, regulatory authorities may permit Phase 1 and Phase [l to
be combined into a single Phase I/I1 trial by accepting a Phase Il protocol in which the first few patients are more
specifically tested for safety and tolerance. This is likely to occur when it would not be appropriate to conduct

19




Phase | studies on healthy human subjects, as is the case with our cellular products. In Phase 11, large-scale
comparative trials are conducted in patients with the target disease to provide sufficient data for the proof of efficacy
and safety required by regulatory agencies for marketing approvat. Regulatory authorities may permit Phase II and
Phase 111 10 be combined into a single Phase II/III trial by accepting a Phase 111 protocol in which a limited group of
patients is first treated, and the results are evaluated. The total number of patients to be studied in order for the
Phase Il trial to be significant is determined baszd on these results. Post marketing clinical trials may also be
needed for purposes such as to elucidate the incidence of adverse reactions, to explore a specific pharmacological
effect, or to obtain more information of a circumscribed nature. In most countries, clinical trials must be conducted
in accordance with the Good Clinical Practices requirements published by the International Conference on the
Harmonisation of Technical Requirements for Registration of Pharmaceuticals for Human Use. ’

Regulatory approval is required for the conduct of clinical trials. Regulatory authorities may block, suspend or
require substantial modifications to clinical trial protocols proposed by companies seeking to test products. In the
United States, in particular, an IND setting forth protocols for proposed clinical trials must be filed with the FDA
and must become effective before human clinical trials may begin. If the FDA does not object to an IND application,
the application becomes effective 30 days followiny its receipt by the FDA. At any time during this 30-day waiting
period or at any time thereafter, the FDA may halt proposed or ongoing clinical trials. Such a halt, called a clinical
hold, continues in effect until and unless the FDA’s concerns are adequately addressed. In addition, the Institutional
Review Board, or IRB, used by any clinical site may delay or may permanently or temporarily halt clinical irials
should safety or regulatory concerns arise. Imposition by the FDA of a clinical hold, or a similar delay imposed by
the IRB at a clinical site or by the regulatory authorities of another jurisdiction, could delay, or even prevent, the
conduct of clinical trials and, therefore, product dzvelopment,

Regulation of Marketing Approval

Results of preclinical and clinical trials are submitted to the FDA in the United States or the EMEA in the
European Union along with, among other things, detailed information relating to the manufacture and testing of the
praduct candidate, in the form of a marketing authorization application. The preparation of necessary marketing
applications and processing of those applications by the relevant regulatory authority are expensive and typically
take several years to complete.

Since 1938, the regulation, for commercialization of new drugs in the United States has been based on the
NDA submittal process. The FDA’s Center for Drug Evaluation and Research, or CDER, is responsible for
reviewing and approving Junovan as an oncology drug product under an NDA since Junovan is classitied as a small
molecule drug after it was reclassified by the FDA from classification as a biological drug. The goals of the NDA are
to provide enough information to permit FDA reviewer to assess the following key aspects:

* whether the drug is safe and effective in its proposed use(s), and whether the benefits of the drug outweigh
the risks '

« whether the drug’s proposed labeling (package insert) is appropriate, and what it should contain; and

= whether the methods used in manufacturing the drug and the controls used to maintain the drug’s quality are
adequate to preserve the drug’s identity, strength, quality, and purity.

Cellular products that are under development are subject to review and approval by the Center for Biologics
Evaluation and Research, or CBER, a division of the FDA, prior to the conduct of human clinical trials (as INDs)
and marketing {as BLAs). The establishment of marketed human cellular products is subject to registration and
listing requirements. Manufacturers for these products are expected to comply with GMPs and the requirements for
donor suitability, and the proposed current Good Tissue Practice.

Orphan Drugs

The Orphan Drug Act of 1983 encompasses a set of laws that encourages the development of treatments for
rare diseases. The FDA grants orphan drug status for any drug intended for rare diseases or conditions affecting less
than 200,000 persons per year in the United States. The Orphan Drug Act also provides an opportunity to obtain
grant funding from the U.S. government to defray costs of clinical trial expenses, tax credits for clinical research
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expenses, potential waiver of the FDA's application user fee and seven years of marketing exclusivity in the event of
market approval. Financial advantages include reduced or waived fees associated with the filing of an MAA and we
can also benefit from tax incentives for as much as 50% of clinical development costs.

In the European Union, a comparable legislative framework was established to promote the development of
products for rare and serious diseases in 1999. A medicinal product will qualify for orphan drug treatment in the
European Union if its sponsor shows in an application to the EMEA that the drug is intended for the treatment of a
disease affecting not more than five in 10,000 persons in the European Union and that there currently exists no
satisfactory method of treating the condition. Orphan drug designation in the European Union gives the possibility
to benefit from a ten-year exclusive marketing period during which no directly competitive similar products could
be placed on the European Union market, as well as regulatory fee exemptions and other incentives to commer-
cialization. Our tead product candidate, Junovan, has received orphan drug designation for osteosarcoma in both the
United States and the European Union.

A centralized procedure has been created in the European Union since 1995 for the regulatory approval of
specified human medicinal products such as Junovan. This procedure prescribes a single application, a single
evaluation and a single authorization allowing a company to market its therapeutic product in all the Member States
of the European Union. Given that our Cell Drugs are novel treatments, we are not certain whether they would be
able to benefit from this regulation. If they cannot, then we would have to apply for regulatory approval in individual
Member States of the European Union. Should we obtain approval in a particular Member State, we may be able to
benefit from a European Union mutual recognition procedure for other Member States.

We are also subject to the ongoing regulatory requirements of the FDA and other regulatory agencies. In the
United States, the FDA may inspect the manufacturing facilities for product candidates prior to approving a BLA or
NDA to ensure that the facilities are in compliance with the GMPs. The FDA will continue to periodically inspect
drug and biologic manufacturing facilities following approval of a BLA or NDA to ensure compliance with FDA
regulations with, among other things, quality control and record keeping. The failure of manufacturers to comply
with current FDA requirements may lead to Jegal or regulatory action, including suspension of manufacturing and
the recall of products.

If we receive regulatory approval and are successful in marketing our product candidates, including our lead
product candidate, Junovan, in the United States, we will be subject to strict regulation of labeling, advertising,
promotion, marketing, product distribution and post marketing surveillance. In the United States, such regulation of
drug products and biologics is monitored and enforced by the FDA and the Federal Trade Commission, or FTC. The
FDA and FTC have broad enforcement powers relating to the regulation of areas including direct-to-consumer
advertising, off-labe! promotion and industry sponsored scientific and educational activities. Violations of current
regulations can result in warnings, orders to correct regulatory shortcomings, seizures of products, injunctions and
criminal prosecution.

Environmental and Health and Safety Laws and Regulations

We are also subject to environmental and health and safety laws and regulations governing, among other
things, the use. storage, handling, discharge and disposal of hazardous materials, including chemicals and
biological and radioactive materials in the countries in which we operate, which si gnificantly impact our operations.
In each of these areas, federal, state and local regulatory agencies have broad powers to enforce current regulations
and to invoke penalties for compliance failures,

Competition

The biotechnology and pharmaceutical sector is characterized by rapidly evolving technology and intense
competition. Many entities, including pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, academic institutions and
other research organizations have products on the market and are actively engaged in the discovery, research and
development and commercialization of immunotherapy and other novel approaches and products for the treatment
of cancer. Should Junovan or any of our product candidates be approved for marketing, they would most likely
directly compete, on an indication-by-indication basis, against other immunotherapy products, and to a lesser extent
against more established cancer therapies, including chemotherapy and hormonal therapy.
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Several biotechnology companies have products that utilize similar technologies and/or personalized medicine
techniques for the treatment of cancer. Dendreon Corporation’s most advanced cancer vaccine, Provenge, com-
pleted two Phase HII clinical trials for prostate cancer and the company completed its BLA filing in November 2006.
AVAX Technologies Inc.’s autologous therapeutic platform vaccines are in clinical trials for melanoma and non-
small cell lung cancer and commercially approved in Switzerland for melanoma. Intracel’s OncoVax, currently
approved for administration in the Netherlands, Switzerland and Israel, is in a pivotal Phase III trial in the U.S. for
colon cancer. Cell Genesys Inc.” GVAX vaccine that includes genetically modified tumor cells, is currently in a
Phase 111 trial for prostate cancer and in trials for acute and chronic myelogenous leukemia and pancreatic cancer.
Antigenics Inc’s. Oncophage, containing peptides isolated from the patient’s tumor, completed Phase 11 trials in
kidney cancer and melanoma.

Other innovative therapies either under development or recently introduced onto the market, including
monoclonal antibodies, angiogenesis inhibitors and epidermal growth factor inhibitors could also represent
competition for our products, although it is likely that many of these modalities will be used in combination.

Many of our competitors developing cancer therapies have significantly greater financial, manufacturing,
marketing and product research resources and experience than we do. Large pharmaceutical companies in particular
have substantially more extensive experience in clinical testing and in obtaining regulatory approvals than we do.
Accordingly, competirors may obtain regulatory approvals for and commercialize their cancer treatments faster
than us.

‘We must compete with other companies to acquire rights to products and technologies in the cancer treatment -
field, which is extremely competitive, which drives up the prices necessary to acquire products and technologies.
We also compete with other pharmaceutical companies and academic institutions to recruit and retain highly
qualified scientific, technical and management personnel.

Financial Information About Geographic Areas
Long-lived Assels

Other than goodwill, which is 100% held at our U.S. parent level, since the Combination on August 16, 2005
approximately 97% of our long-lived assets, including, property, patents, trademarks and other intangible assets,
and research and development tax credits, were held at our French subsidiary, IDM, S.A.

Risks Associated with Foreign Operations

Cur operations in the U.S, are conducted and reported in U.S. dollars while those of our French subsidiary are
denominated in euros. When we consolidate and report results, we translate the results and balances of our
subsidiary into U.S. dollars. We do not hedge currency exchange rate exposure, including against the euro, and any
unfavorable currency ¢xchange rate movements of the dollar versus the euro could negatively impact our dollar
denominated cash balzances.

Employees

As of December 31, 2006, we had 32 full-time employees in the United States. Of this total, 24 were research
and development staff and 8 were general and administrative staff.

As of December 31, 2006, our French subsidiary, IDM S.A. had 49 full-time and 4 part-time employees in
France. Of this total, 42 were research and development staff and 11 were geperal and administrative staff.
Employment contracts with all of our employees in France are subject to the provisions of the French Convention
Collective de ' Industrie Pharmaceutique (the Collective Agreement for the Pharmaceutical Industry).

Available Information

Our website address is www.idm-biotech.com. We make available free of charge through our website our annuai
report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q), current reports on Form 8-K, and all amendments to these
reports as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC.
Information contained on, or accessible through, our website is not part of this report or our other filings with the SEC.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

We wish to caution readers that the following important factors, among others, in some cases have affecied our
results and in the future could cause our actual results and needs to vary materially from Jorward-looking
statements made from time to time by us on the basis of management's then-current expectations. The business in
which we are engaged is in a rapidly changing and competitive market and involves a high degree of risk, and
accuracy with respect to forward-looking projections is difficult.

Our lead product candidate, Junovan, may never obtain regulatory approval.

In October 2006, we submitted an NDA to the FDA for Junovan, requesting approval for its use in the treatment
of newly diagnosed resectable high grade osteosarcoma patients following surgical resection in combination with
multiple agent chemotherapy. The FDA has accepted the NDA file for substantive review, on a standard review
basis, contingent upon our commitment to provide pharmacokinetic data for the to-be-marketed Junovan product.
Following the submission of the NDA, we submitted an MAA for Mepact to the EMEA. The EMEA has determined
the application is valid and the review procedure was started in late November 2006. The Junovan marketing
applications include efficacy and safety data from a Phase III clinical trial conducted by the Pediatric Oncology
Group (POG) and the Children’s Oncology Group (COG), sponsored by the Division of Cancer Treatment and
Diagnosis of the National Cancer Institute (NCI), prior to our purchase of Junovan from Jenner Biotherapies, Inc. in
2003. Regulatory authorities in the United States and the European Union may not consider preclinical and early
clinical development work conducted by Ciba-Geigy and efficacy and safety data from the Phase 11l clinical trial or
the Phase I1I study conduct and analysis to be adequate for their assessment of Junovan, which may cause delays in
review, may result in the regulatory authorities requiring us to conduct additional pre-clinical or clinical trials, or
may result in a determination by the regulatory authorities that the data does not support marketing approval. Other
risks relating to the timing of regulatory approval of Junovan include our ability and time needed to respond to
questions raised during review with regard to regulatory submissions for Junovan. In the United States, the FDA
may decide to get the advice of an advisory panel prior to making their decision regarding approval of an NDA, and
we have been advised that the Oncology Drugs Advisory Committee of the FDA, or ODAC, will review Junovan.
Although the FDA is not bound by the decision of any advisory panel, a recommendation by ODAC that is not
supportive of approval of the NDA for Junovan may have a negative impact on the FDA’s decision whether to
approve the NDA for Junovan, which would have a material and adverse affect on our business. We may not receive
necessary approvals from the FDA, the EMEA or similar drug regulatory agencies for the marketing and
commercialization of Junovan when expected or at all. We do not expect any regulatory approval of Junovan
to occur before late 2007.

Manufacturing of Junovan and Junovan components for IDM by third party suppliers is based on the
specifications and processes established during the Phase III trial. We have produced Junovan materials that meet
the same specifications as the product used in pivotal clinical trials. We submitted data showing comparability of the
new (IDM) and the old (Ciba-Geigy) materials in the NDA and MAA so that the data generated during preclinical
and clinical development can be used to support regulatory marketing approval. If the FDA or EMEA does not agree
with our assessment of the comparability results, the approval in the intended geographies would be delayed.

The development of Junovan suitable for commercial distribution, the review of our marketing approval
applications by the FDA and the EMEA and stringent manufacturing requirements have required and will continue
to require significant investments of time and money, as well as the focus and attention of key personnel. If we fail to
receive or are delayed in receiving regulatory approval for Junovan, our financial condition and results of operations
will be significantly and adversely affected.

Even if we receive regulatory approval for Junovan, we may not be able to commercialize it immediately
or market it successfully.

We expect to depend in the medium term on the commercialization of Junovan for the majority of our
revenues, assuming that Junovan receives regulatory approval. Junovan is the only product candidate for which we
have submitted an MAA. Any revenues generated will be limited by our ability to, in time, develop our own
commercial organization or find a partner for the commercialization of the product. In addition, the number of
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patients with osteosarcoma, the ability to obtain appropriate pricing and reimbursement for Junovan, and the rate of
adoption of the products are risks associated with the commercialization of Junovan. We may also face competition
from new treatment or new investigational approaches with existing therapies.

We currently do not have operational sales and marketing infrastructure for Junovan and may not have secured

‘ this capability immediately following receipt of any regulatory approval for Junovan. In order to commercialize

Junovan, we need to find a partner who has EU and US operational commercial abilities or otherwise arrange for the

commercialization ourselves. If we are unable to commercialize Junovan promptly after receipt of any regulatory

approval for Junovan, any delay would materially adversely affect our business and financial position due to
‘ reduced or delayed revenues from Junovan sales.

Junovan has received orphan drug designation in the United States and in Europe, which would provide us with
a seven-year period of exclusive marketing in the United States commencing on the date of FDA approval and a
10-year period of exclusive marketing in Europe commencing on the date of EMEA approval. This would apply
only to osteosarcoma, the indication for which Junovan has been designated as an orphan product, However, we
may lose this marketing exclusivity should a new treatment be developed which is proven to be more effective than
Junovan. In addition, although cur patents protect the liposomal formulation of Junovan until 2007 in the United
| States, with a possible extension until 2012 in the United States, the European patents for the liposomal formulation
of Junovan expired in 2005 and certain other patents covering the active ingredient in Junovan expired at the end of
! 2003. As a result, if a competitor develops a new formulation for Junovan, we may face generic competition
| following the expiration of market exclusivity under the orphan drug designation, which we expect to occur in 2014
with respect to the United States and 2017 with respect to Europe. If we are not able to commercialize Junovan
successfully, we may not bring to market our other product candidates for several years, if ever, and our prospects
will be harmed as a result.

Our substantial additional capital requirements and potentially limited access to financing may harm
our ability to develop products and fund our operations, and if we do not obtain additional funding we
may be required to sell our assets or our company, or dissolve and liguidate all of our assets.

We will continue to spend substantial amounts on research and development, including amounts spent for
manufacturing clinical supplies, conducting clinical trials for our product candidates, advancing development of
certain sponsored and partnered programs and the commercialization of Junovan once it has received regulatory
approval. While we have taken appropriate steps designed to contain such expenses, we cannot be certain that we
will reduce our expenses sufficiently in light of our available funds, and we will nonetheless need to raise additional
funding. We do not have committed external sources of funding and may not be able to obtain any additional
funding, especially if volatile market conditions persist for biotechnology companies. We believe our existing cash
resources, including approximately $12.9 million raised through a private placement of our common stock in
February 2007, are sufficient to meet our cash requirements into the second quaﬂer of 2008. Our future operational
and capital requircments will depend on many factors, including:

« whether we are able to secure additional financing on favorable terms, or at all;

« The costs associated with, and the success of, obtaining marketing approval and, as applicable, pricing
approval, for Junovan for the treatment of osteosarcoma in the United States, Europe and other jurisdictions
and the timing of any such approval;

» the success or failure of the product launch and commercialization of Junovan;

* the costs associated with the launch and the commercialization of Junovan in the United States, Europe and
other jurisdictions upon obtaining marketing approval;

« the costs associated with our clinical trials for our product candidates, including our Dendritophages and
lung cancer vaccine candidates:;

« progress with other preclinical testing and clinical trials in the future;
« our ability to establish and maintain collaboration and license agreements and any government contracts and

grants;
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the actual revenue we receive under our collaboration and license agreements;

« the actual costs we incur under our collaboration agreements;
» the time and costs involved in cbtaining regulatory approvals for our products;

« the costs involved in filing, prosecuting, enforcing and defending patent claims and any other proprietary
rights;

+ competing technological and market developments; and
« the magnitude of our immunotherapeutic product discovery and development programs.

We will likely seek additional funding, which may be accomplished through equity or debt financings,
government research grants and/or collaboration and license agreements and may also consider various business
alternatives, including merger and acquisition transactions. We may not be able to obtain additional financing or
accomplish any other business transaction we decide to pursue on terms that are favorable to us or at all. For
example, the terms of the February 2007 $12.9 million private placement of our common stock include a right of
first refusal in favor of the purchasers in that private placement for certain future equity offerings we may undertake
for six months following the effective date of a resale registration statement we have filed in connection with that
private placement, as well as various penalties equal to up to approximately $1.6 million on an annual basis that may
become due if, among other things, the resale registration staterment is not declared effective within 90 days after the
date of the closing of the private placement or is not available for resale by the purchasers in the private placement
under certain conditions set forth in the unit purchase agreement related to the private placement. In addition, we
may not be able to enter into additional collaborations to reduce our funding requirements. If we acquire funds by
issuing securities, dilution to existing stockholders will result. If we raise funds through additional collaborations
and license agreements, we will likely have to relinquish some or ail of the rights to our product candidates or
technologies that we may have otherwise developed ourselves.

Our failure to obtain additional funding may require us to delay, reduce the scope of or eliminate one or more of
our current research and development projects, sell certain of our assets (including one or more of our drug
programs or technologies), sell our company, or dissolve and liquidate all of our assets. For example, given
constraints on our cash resources, in late 2006 we put on hold further development of Bexidem® and other product
candidates as we reallocated existing capital to the development of our lead product candidate, Junovan. '

If we fail to adequately address our liquidity concerns, then our independent auditors may issue a qualified
opinion, to the effect that there is substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. A qualified
opinion could itself have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows, Furthermore, our failure to raise adequate capital would have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows, and could cause us to discontinue operations or declare
bankruptcy.

The process of developing immunotherapeutic products requires significant research and development,
preclinical testing and clinical trials, all of which are extremely expensive and time-consuming and may
not result in a commercial product. ’

Our product candidates other than Junovan are at early stages of development, and we may fail to develop and
successfully commercialize safe and effective treatments based on these products or other technology. For each
product candidate, we must demonstrate safety and efficacy in humans through extensive clinical testing, which is
very expensive, can take many years and has an uncertain outcome. We may experience numerous unforeseen
events during or as a result of the testing process that could delay or prevent testing or commercialization of our
products, including:

» the results of preclinical studies may be inconclusive, or they may not be indicative of results that will be
obtained in human clinical trials;

« after reviewing test results, we may abandon projects that we might previously have believed 1o be
promising; N
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» after reviewing test results, our collaborators may abandon projects that we might believe are still promising
and we would either have to bear the operating expenses and capital requirements of continued development
of our therapeutic cancer vaccines or abandon the projects outright;

* we, our collaborators or government regulators may suspend or terminate clinical trials if the participating
subjects or patients are being exposed to unacceptable health risks;

= clinical trials may be delayed as a result of difficulties in identifying and enrolling patients who meet trial
eligibility criteria;

» safety and efficacy results attained in early human clinical trials may not be indicative of results that are
obtained in later clinical trials; and

« the effects of our product candidates may not be the desired effects or may include undesirable side effects
that preciude regulatory approval or limit their commercial use, if approved.

The data collected from clinical trials may not be sufficient to support regulatory approval of any of our
products, and the regulatory agencies may not ultimately approve any of our products for commercial sale, which
will adversely affect our business and prospects. If we fail to commence or complete, or experience delays in, any of
our planned clinical trials, our operating income, stock price and ability to conduct business as currently planned
could be materially and adversely affected.

Our principal source of revenues and cash receipts is a collaboration agreement under which our part-
ner has limited obligations.

The principal source of revenues and cash receipts for us is the July 2001 collaboration agreement between our
subsidiary, IDM §.A., and sanofi-aventis. For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, on a consolidated basis,
" sanofi-aventis represented approximately 99% and 80%, respectively, of our revenue. Sanofi-aventis has the
remaining option to jointly develop and commercialize up to ten (or up to two per year) of our Cell Drugs, a term we
use to refer to therapeutic products derived from a patients own white blood cells through 2011. To date sanofi-
aventis has exercised an option for one product candidate, Uvidem. Under the collaboration agreement, sanofi-
aventis has no obligation to participate in the development of additional Cell Drugs. If we are not successful in
developing commercially viable product candidates, sanofi-aventis may not elect to exercise additional options. If
we fail to meet further milestones in the clinical development of Uvidem, sanofi-aventis will have no further
milestone obligations with respect to Uvidem, Additionally, sanofi-aventis may terminate its participation in any
given development program at any time without penalty and without affecting its unexercised options for other
product candidates. If sanofi-aventis does not exercise additional options, or if we are not successful in achieving
additional development milestones for Uvidem, we will not receive additional payments from sanofi-aventis and
our prospects, revenues and operating cash flows will be significantly and negatively affected.

Our revenues and operating results are likely to fluctuate,

Our revenues and operating results have fluctuated in the past, and our revenues and operating results are likely
to continue to do so in the future. This is due to the non-recurring nature of these revenues, which are derived
principally from payments made under the collaboration agreement with sanofi-aventis and from government
grants and contracts, We expect that our only sources of revenues until commercialization of our first immuno-
therapy product will be:

-« any payments from sanofi-aventis and any other current or future collaborative partners;
* any government and European Union grants and contracts; and
* investment income,

These revenues have varied considerably from one period to another and may continue to do so because they
depend on the terms of the particular agreement or grant, or the performance of the particular investment. In
addition, termination of any of these arrangements would have a significant impact on our prospects, revenues and
results of operations. As a result, we believe that revenues in any period may not be a reliable indicator of our future
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performance. Deviations in our results of operations from those expected by securities analysts or investors also
could have a material adverse effect on the market price of our commen stock.

Our history of operating losses and our expectation of continuing losses may hurt our ability to reach
profitability or continue operations.

We have experienced significant operating losses since our inception. Qur cumulative net loss was $178.5 mil-
lion as of December 31, 2006. It is likely that we will continue to incur substantial net operating losses for the
foreseeable future, which may adversely affect our ability to continue operations. We have not generated revenues
from the commercialization of any product. All of our revenues to date have consisted of contract research and
development revenues, license and milestone payments, research grants, certain asset divestitures and interest
income. Substantially all of our revenues for the foreseeable future are expected to result from similar sources. To
achieve profitable operations, we, alone or with collaborators, must successfully identify, develop, register and
market proprietary products. We do not expect to generate revenues from the commercialization of any product
until the end of 2007 at the earliest, assuming that one or more regulatory agencies approve Junovan’s commer-
cialization, which may not occur when expected or at all. We may not be able to generate sufficient product revenue
to become profitable. Even if we do achieve profitability, we may not be able to sustain or increase our profitability
on a quarterly or yearly basis.

If we lose our key scientific and management personnel or are unable to attract and retain qualified
personnel, it could delay or hurt our research and product development efforts.

We are dependent on the principal members of our scientific and management staff, including Dr. Jean-Loup
Romet-Lemonne, Chief Executive Officer, Dr. Bonnie Mills, Vice President, Clinical Operations and General
Manager, U.S., and Mr. Hervé Duchesne de Lamotte, Acting Principal Financial and Accounting Officer and
General Manager and Vice President Finance, Europe. We have previously entered into employment contracts with
the aforementioned scientific and management staff, which we believe provide them incentives to remain as
employees with us, although there can be no assurance they will do so. We currently do not have a Chief Financial
Officer and Mr. Hervé Duchesne de Lamotte is serving as our principal financial and accounting officer on an
interim basis until we hire a Chief Financial Officer. We are currently engaged in a search for a new Chief Financial
Officer. We do not maintain key person life insurance on the life of any employee. Our ability to develop
immunotherapeutic products and vaccines and achieve our other business objectives also depends in part on the
continued service of our key scientific and management personnel and our ability to identify hire and retain
additional qualified personnel, We do not have employment agreements with our non-management scientific
personnel. There is intense competition for qualified personnel in chemistry, biochemistry, molecular biology,.
immunology and other areas of our proposed activities, and we may not be able to continue to attract and retain such
personnel necessary for the development of our business. Because of the intense competition for qualified personnel
among technology-based businesses, particularly in the Southern California area, we may not be successful in
adding technical personnel as needed to meet the staffing requirements of additional collaborative relationships.
Our failure to attract and retain key personnel could delay or be significantly detrimental to our product
development programs and could cause our stock price to decline.

Unexpected or undesirable side effects or other characteristics of our products and technology may delay
or otherwise hurt the development of our drug candidates, or may expese us to significant liability that
could cause us to incur significant costs.

Certain immunotherapy products may produce serious side effects. Many antibody-based therapies have
shown toxicity in clinical trials. If our immunotherapy product candidates prove to be ineffective, or if they result in
unacceptable side effects, we will not be able to successfully commercialize them and our prospects will be
significantly and adversely affected. In addition, there may be side effects in our current or future clinical trials that
may be discovered only after long-term exposure, even though our safety tests may indicate favorable results. We
may also encounter technological challenges relating to these technologies and applications in our research and
development programs that we may not be able to resolve. Any such unexpected side effects or technological
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challenges may delay or otherwise adversely affect the development, regulatory approval or commercialization of
our drug candidates.

Our business will expose us to potential product liability risks that are inherent in the testing, manufacturing
and marketing of human therapeutic products. While we currently have product liability insurance for our clinical
trials, we cannot be sure that we will be able to maintain such insurance on acceptable terms or obtain acceptable
insurance as we progress through product development and commercialization, or that our insurance will provide
adequate coverage against potential liabilities, either in human clinical trials or following commercialization of any
products we may develop.

Adverse publicity regarding the safety or side effects of the technology approach or products of others
could negatively impact us and cause the price of our common stock to decline.

Despite any favorable safety tests that may be completed with respect to our product candidates, adverse’
publicity regarding immunotherapeutic products or other products being developed or marketed by others could
negatively affect vs. If other researchers’ studies raise or substantiate concerns over the safety or side effects of our
technology approach or product development efforts generally, our reputation and public support for our ¢linical
trials or products could be harmed, which would adversely impact our business and could cause the price of our:
common stock to decline.

Our treatment approach may not prove effective.

Our immunotherapeutic treatment approach is largely untested. To date, only a limited number of immu-
notherapeutic antibody-based and vaccine-based products designed to fight cancer have been approved for
commercialization, and for only a few specific types of cancer. The basis for most immunotherapeutic treatment
approaches being developed for the treatment of cancer is the discovery that cancer cells express more of certain
proteins, known as anligens, on their surfaces, which may allow them to be distinguished from normal cells.
Immunotherapy is desizned either to manipulate the body’s immune cells to target antigens and destroy the cancer
cells that over express them or to activate the body’s immune system generally, However, immunotherapy has tailed
in the past for a number of reasons, including:

* the targeted amigens are not sufficiently different from those normal cells to cause an immune reaction;

* the tumor cells do not express the targeted antigen or other target structures at all or in sufficient quantities to
be recognized by immune system cells, such as T cells or macrophages;

» the immune response stimulated by the immunotherapeutic agent is not strong enough to destroy all of the
cancer cells; or

« cancer cells may, through various biochemical mechanisms, escape an immune response.
y g

Our strategy involves identifying multiple epitopes in order to create our vaccines. Unless we identify the
correct epitopes and combine them in the correct manner to stimulate desired immune responses, we may never
develop a vaccine that is safe or effective in any of the indications that we are pursuing,

If we cannot enter into and maintain strategic collaborations on acceptable terms in the future, we may
not be able to develop products in markets where it would be too costly or complex to do so on our own.

We will need to enter into and maintain collaborative arrangements with pharmaceutical and biotechnology
companies or other strategic partners both for development and for commercialization of potential products in
markets where it would be too costly or complex to do 50 on our own. Currently, our most significant collaboration
is with sanofi-aventis. If we are not able to maintain our existing strategic collaborations and enter into new
collaberations on acceptable terms, we may be forced to abandon development and commercialization of some
product candidates and our business will be harmed.
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If our collaboration or license arrangements are unsuccessful, our revenues and product development
may be limited.

Collaborations and license arrangements generally pose the following risks:

« collaborations and licensee arrangements may be terminated, in which case we will experience increased
operating expenses and capital requirements if we elect to pursue further development of the product
candidate;

» collaborators and licensees may delay clinical trials and prolong clinical development, under fund a clinical
trial program, stop a clinical trial or abandon a product candidate;

« expected revenue might not be generated because milestones may not be achieved and product candidates
may not be developed,

+ collaborators and licensees could independently develop, or develop with third parties, products that could
compete with our future products;

« the terms of our contracts with current or future collaborators and licensees may not be favorable to us in the
future; '

+ a collaborator or licensee with marketing and distribution rights to one or more of our products may not
commit enough resources to the marketing and distribution of our products, limiting our potential revenues
from the commercialization of a product; and

« disputes may arise delaying or terminating the research, development or commercialization of our product
candidates, or result in significant and costly litigation or arbitration.

We may not be able to license technology necessary to develop products.

We may be required to enter into licenses or other collaborations with third parties in order to access
technology that is necessary to successfully develop certain of our products. We may not successfully negotiate
acceptable licenses or other collaborative arrangements that will allow us to access such technologies. If we cannot
obtain and maintain license rights on acceptable terms to access necessary technologies, we may be prevented from
developing some product candidates. In addition, any technologies accessed through such licenses or other
collaborations may not help us achieve our product development goals.

Our supplies of certain materials necessary to our business may be limited and key raw materials of
desired quantity and quality may be difficult to obtain.

We have entered into several arrangements for the supply of various materials, chemical compounds,
antibodies and antigens that are necessary to manufacture our product candidates.

Currently we have contracts with third-party suppliers for the manufacture of the active ingredient (MTP-PE},
excipients and final product for Junovan. We also have an agreement with another supplier for performing the key
tests necessary for the release of Junovan. We have not identified other vendors that might provide these products
and services should the ability of our current contractors to manufacture and test MTP-PE and/or Junovan be
impaired. Delays or impairment of our ability to continue manufacturing or testing could be caused by physical
damage or impairment of our supplier facilities, departure of key staff, failure to renew manufacturing agreements
with them or other unforeseen circumstances. Such impairment could significantly impact our ability to com-
mercialize Junovan should we receive regulatory approval to do so. Even if we were able to identify potential
alternative suppliers, it would take a significant amount of time and resources to initiate and validate all of the
required processes and activities to bring the new supplier on-lin, resulting in interruptions in the availability of
Junovan.

We also rely on external suppliers for the production of melanoma cell-line lysates which are used in the
manufacturing of Uvidem. We believe that we currently possess enough lysates for our short-term needs. However,
in order to initiate further clinical trials of Uvidem, we will require a supply of lysates that conforms to GMP. We
have an agreement with a third party supplier aimed at manufacturing GMP compliant lysates. Should the ability of
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this contractor to manufacture lysates be impaired, we would experience significant delays in the Uvidem
development program. Even if we were able to identify potential alternative suppliers, it would take a significant
amount of time and resources to initiate and validate all of the required processes and activities 1o bring the new
supplier on-line, resulting in interruptions in the availability of lysates.

We also rely on external suppliers for the production of IL-13, which is used in the manufacturing of our
Dendritophage product candidates. We believe that we currently possess enough IL-13 for our short- to medium-
term needs. However, once our Dendritophage product candidates enter into Phase IIT clinical trials, we will require
a supply of IL-13 that conforms to GMP. In 2003, we entered into an IL-13 Development and Manufacturing
Agreement with Biotecnol aimed at developing @ GMP compliant IL-13 manufacturing process. Under the
agreement, Biotecnol has agreed to complete development of GMP IL-13 according to a program of GMP
manufacturing, control, testing and release, as defined with advice from sanofi-aventis, and we have agreed to
provide financial support payable upon the occurrence of certain milestone events and based on the decisions of the
parties to continue development. Once development of the IL-13 production process is completed, Biotecnol will
oversee the ongoing management of the outsourcing of manufacturing and release of the finished product for a
renewable five-year period beginning with the release of the first finished product batch. Either party may terminate
the [L-13 Development and Manuofacturing Agreement on the basis of a recommendation from a joint management
committee if certain program specifications and targets are not met and/or before manufacturing of the first product
batch is initiated. We are also entitled to terminate the IL-13 Development and Manufacturing Agreement at any
time during the manufacturing period if the finished product stability does not reach two years. Biotecnol is entitled
to terminate the process performance at any time by providing 18 months’ prior notice. In addition, either Biotecnol
or we may terminate the agreement with immediate effect upon written notice on or at any time after the occurrence
of certain events, such as breach of contract or liquidation. There are no assurances that Biotecnol will successfully
manufacture GMP IL-13, or that it will be able to produce sufficient quantities of GMP IL-13 if it is successful.
Without a sufficient supply of GMP IL-13, we would not be able to conduct Phase III clinical trials of our
Dendritophage product candidates.

We have one sole source supplier for a component of our EP-2101 non-small cell lung cancer vaccine. This
material is not supplied under a long-term contract but we have not had difficulties obtaining the material in a timely
manner in the past. The supplier also provides the same material to other customers and we do not believe we are at
risk of lesing this supplier. We have several other suppliers that are currently our sole sources for the materials they
supply, though we believe alternate suppliers could be developed in a reasonable period of time.

Supply of any of these products could be limited, interrupted or restricted in certain geographic regions, In
such a case, we may not be able to obtain from other manufacturers alternative materials, chemical compounds,
components, antibodies or antigens of acceptable quality, in commercial quantities and at an acceptable cost. If our
key suppliers or manufacturers fail to perform, or if the supply of products or materials is limited or interrupted, we
may not be able 1o produce or market our preducts on a timely and competitive basis.

If we and/or our collaborators cannot cost-eifectively manufacture our immunotherapeutic product can-
didates in commercial quantities or for clinical trials in compliance with regulatory requirements, we
and/or our collaborators may not be able to successfully commercialize the products.

We have not commercialized any products, and we do not have the experience, resources or facilities to
manufacture therapeutic vaccines and other products on a commercial scale. We will not be able to commerciaiize
any products and earn product revenues unless our collaborators or we demonstrate the ability to manufacture
commercial quantities in accordance with regulatory requirements. Among the other requirements for regulatory
approval is the requirement that prospective manufacturers conform to the GMP requirements of the respective
regulatory agencies. In complying with GMP requirements, manufacturers must continue to expend time, money
and effort in production, record keeping and quality control to assure that the product meets applicable speci-
fications and other requirements.

We are currently dependent on third parties for the production and testing of our lead product candidate,
Junovan and Junovan components. We may not be able to enter into future subcontracting agreements for the
commercial supply of Junovan or certain of our other products, or to do so on terms that are acceptable to us. If we
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are unable to enter into acceptable subcontracting agreements, we will not be able to successfully commercialize
Junovan or any of our other products. In addition, reliance on third-party manufacturers poses additional risks which
we would not face if we produced our products ourselves, including:

« non-compliance by these third parties with regulatory and quality control standards;
« breach by these third parties of their agreements with vs; and
« Termination or non-renewal of these agreements for reasons beyond our control.

If products manufactured by third-party suppliers fail to comply with regulatory standards, sanctions could be
imposed on us. These sanctions could include fines, injunctions, civil penalties, failure of regulatory authorities to
~ grant marketing approval of our product candidates, delays, suspension or withdrawal of approvals, license
revocation, seizures or recalls of our products, operating restrictions and criminal prosecutions, any of which could
significantly and adversely affect our business. If we change manufacturers for Junovan, we will be required to
undergo revalidation of the manufacturing process and procedures in accordance with GMP. This revalidation could
be costly and time-consuming and require the attention of our key personnel. If revalidation is not successful, we
may be forced to look for an alternative supplier, which could delay the marketing of Junovan or increase our
manufacturing costs. We will also need to demonstrate through preclinical studies that Junovan as produced by the
new manufacturers is comparable to the materials used in the Phase IlI clinical trial. New clinical studies may also
be required if comparability cannot be fully demonstrated by preclinical studies.

We prepare our Cell Drugs, including Bexidem and our Dendritophages, in our own facilities for purposes of
our research and development programs, preclinical testing and clinical trials. We currently have one clinical scale
facility for Cell Drug manufacturing in Paris, France and a second one in Irvine, California that produce
investigational drugs for a limited number of patients in our clinical trials. We expect to construct commercial
scale manufacturing plants in Europe and the United States in the future, but we may not be able to successfully
carry out such construction. As a result, we may not be able to manufacture our Cell Drugs on acceptable economic
terms or on a sufficient scale for our needs.

We cannot be sure that we can manufacture, either on our own or through contracts with outside parties, our
immunotherapeutic product candidates at a cost or in quantities that are commercially viable.
We are subject to extensive and uncertain government regulation and we may not be able to obtain
necessary regulatory approvals.

To date, none of our potential products have been approved for marketing by any regulatory agencies. We
cannot be sure that we will receive the regulatory approvals necessary to commercialize any of our potential
products. Our product candidates will be subject to extensive governmental regulation, and the applicable
regulatory requirements are uncertain and subject to change. The FDA and the EMEA maintain rigorous
requirements for, among other things, the research and development, preclinical testing and clinical trials,
manufacture, safety, efficacy, record keeping, labeling, marketing, sale and distribution of therapeutic products.
Failure to meet ongoing regulatory requirements or obtain and maintain regulatory approval of our products could
harm our business. In particular, the United States is the world’s largest pharmaceutical market. Without FDA
approval, we would be unable to access the U.S. market. In addition, noncompliance with initial or continuing
requirements can result in, among other things:

« fines and penalties;

« injunctions;

+ seizure of products;

« total or partial suspension of product marketing;

» failure of a regulatory agency to grant marketing authorization;
« withdrawal of marketing approvals; and

= criminal prosecution,
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The regulatory process for new drug products, including the required preclinical studies and clinical testing, is
lengthy, uncertain and expensive. We will be required to submit extensive product characterization, manufacturing
and control, and preclinical and clinical data and supportive information for each indication in order to establish the
potential product’s safety and effectiveness. The approval process may result in long-term commitments for post-
marketing studies. A

To market any drug products outside of the United States and the European Union, we and our collaborators
will also be subject to numerous and varying foreign regulatory requirements, implemented by foreign health
authorities, governing the design and conduct of human clinical trials and marketing approval for biologics or other
drug products. The approval procedure varies among countries and can involve additional testing, and the time
required to obtain approval may differ from that required to obtain FDA or EMEA approval. The foreign regulatory
approval processes usually include all of the risks associated with obtaining FDA or EMEA approval, and approval
by the FDA does not ensure approval by the health authorities of any other country, nor does the approval by the
EMEA or the foreign health authorities ensure approval by the FDA. Even if we obtain commercial regulatory
approvals, the approvals may significantly limit the indicated uses for which we may market our products.

Even if we obtain regulatory approval for our products, we may be required to perform additional
clinical trials or change the labeling of our products if we or others identify side effects after our
products are on the market, which could harm sales of the affected products.

If others or we identify adverse side effects after any of our products are on the market, or if manufacturing
problems occur:

* regulatory approval may be withdrawn;

+ reformulation of our products, additional clinical trials, changes in labeling of our products or changes to or
re-certifications of our manufacturing facilities may be required,;

» sales of the affected products may drop significantly;
* our reputation in the marketplace may suffer; and
* lawsuits, including costly and lengthy class action suits, may be brought against us.

Any of the above occurrences could halt or reduce sales of the affected products or could increase the costs and
expenses of commercializing and marketing these products, which would materially and adversely affect our
business, operations, financial resuits and prospects.

We may not be able to commercialize products under development by us if those products infringe
claims in existing patents or patents that have not yet issued, and this would materially harm our ability
to operate.

As is typical in the biotechnology industry, our commercial success will depend in part on our ability to avoid
infringing patents issued to others and/or to avoid breaching the technology licenses upon which we might base our
products. There may be patents issued to others that contain claims that may cover certain aspects of our
technologies or those of our collaborators, including cancer vaccine epitopes and peptide vaccines. If we are

. required to obtain a license under one or more of these patents to practice certain aspects of our immunotherapy
technologies in Europe and in the United States, such a license may not be available on commercially reasonable
terms, if at all. If we fail to obtain a license on acceptable terms to any technology that we need in order to develop.or
commercialize our products, or to develop an alternative product or technology that does not infringe on the patent
rights of others, we would be prevented from commercializing ovr products and our business and prospects would
be harmed.

Our failure to obtain issued patents and, consequently, to protect our proprietary technology, could hurt
our competitive position. ’

Our success depends in part on our ability to obtain and enforce claims in our patents directed to our products,
technologies and processes, both in the United States and in other countries. Although we have issued patents and
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have filed various patent applications, our patent position is highly uncertain and involves complex legal and factual
questions. Legal standards relating to patentability, validity and scope of patent claims in epitope identification,
immunotherapy and other aspects of our technology field are still evolving. Patents issued, or which may be issued,
to us may not be sufficiently broad to protect our immunotherapy technologies and processes, and patents may not
issue from any of our patent applications. For example, even though our patent portfolio includes patent
applications with claims directed to peptide epitopes and methods of utilizing sequence motifs 1o identify peptide
epitopes and also includes patent applications with claims directed to vaccines derived from blood monocytes, we
cannot assure you of the breadth of claims that will be allowed or that may issue in future patents. Other risks and
uncertainties that we will face with respect to our patents and patent applications include the following:

« the pending patent applications we have filed or to which we have exclusive rights may not result in issued
patents or may take longer than we expect to result in issued patents;

+ the allowed claims of any patents that issue may not provide meaningful protection;
+ we may be unable to develop additional proprietary technologies that are patentable;
« the patents licensed or issued to us may not provide a competitive advantage;

« other companies may challenge patents licensed or issued to us;

« disputes may arise regarding inventions and corresponding ownership rights in inventions and know-how
resulting from the joint creation or use of our intellectual property and our respective licensors or
collaborators; and

» other companies may design around the technologies patented by us.

If we are unable to compete effectively in the highly competitive biotechnology industry, our business
will fail.

The market for cancer therapeutics is characterized by rapidly evolving technology, an emphasis on propri-
etary products and intense competition. Many entities, including pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies,
academic institutions and other research organizations, are actively engaged in the discovery, research and
development of immunotherapy and other products for the treatment of cancer. Should any of our product
candidates be approved for marketing and launched, they would compete against a range of established therapies.

Our vaccines under development address a range of cancer markets. The competition in these markets is
formidable. Our potential products would also compete with a range of novel therapies either under development or
recently introduced onto the market, including monoclonal antibodies, cancer vaccines and cell therapy, gene
therapy, angiogenesis inhibitors and signal transduction inhibitors. The strongest competition is likely to come from
other immunotherapies (such as monoclonal antibodies) and, to a lesser extent, from chemotherapeutic agents and
hormonal therapy.

An important factor in competition may be the timing of market introduction of our vaccines and competitive
products. Accordingly, the relative speed with which we can develop vaccines, complete the clinical trials and
approval processes and supply commercial quantities of the vaccines to the market is expected to be an important
competitive factor. We expect that competition among products approved for sale will be based, among other things,
on product effectiveness, safety, reliability, availability, price and patent position. We cannot predict whether our
products will compare favorably with competitive products in any one or more of these categories.

Many of the companies developing competing technologies and products have significantly greater financial
resources and expertise in research and development, manufacturing, preclinical and clinical development,
obtaining regulatory approvals and marketing than we have, and we may not be able to compete effectively
against them. Large pharmaceutical companies in particular, such as Bristol-Myers Squibb, Roche, Novartis and
AstraZeneca, have substantially more extensive experience in clinical testing and in obtaining regulatory approvals
than us. Smaller or early-stage companies, most importantly those in the immunotherapy field such as Dendreon,
may also prove to be significant competitors. These companies may become even stronger competitors through
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collaborative arrangements with large companies. All of these companies may compete with us to acquire rights to
promising antibodies, antigens and other complementary fechnologies.

Litigation regarding intellectual property rights owned or used by us may be costly and time-consuming.

Litigation may be necessary to enforce the claims in any patents issued to us or to defend against any claims of
infringement of patents owned by third parties that are asserted against us. In addition, we may have to participate in
one or more interference proceedings declared by the United States Patent and Trademark Office or other foreign
patent governing authorities, which could result in substantial costs to determine the priority of inventions.

If we become involved in litigation or interference proceedings, we may incur substantial expense, and the
proceedings may divert the attention of our technical and management personnet, even if we ultimately prevail. An
adverse determination in proceedings of this type could subject us to significant liabilities, allow our competitors to
market competitive products without obtaining a license from us, prohibit us from marketing our products or require
us to seek licenses from third parties that may not be available on commercially reasonable terms, if at all. If we
cannot obtain such licenses, we may be restricted or prevented from developing and commercializing our product
candidates.

The enforcement, defense and prosecution of intellectual property rights, including the United States Patent
and Trademark Office’s and related foreign patent offices’ interference proceedings, and related legal and
administrative proceedings in the United States and elsewhere involve complex legal and factual questions. As
a result, these proceedings are costly and time-consuming, and their outcome is uncertain. Litigation may be
necessary to:

* assert against others or defend ourselves against claims of infringement;
» enforce patents owned by, or licensed to us from another party;
¢ protect our trade secrets or know-how; or

* determine the enforceability, scope and validity of our proprietary rights or those of others.

If we are unable to protect our trade secrets, we may be unable to protect from competitors our interests
in proprietary know-how that is not patentable or for which we have elected not to seek patent
protection.

Our competitive position will depend in part on our ability to protect trade secrets that are not patentable or for
which we have elected not to seek patent protection. To protect our trade secrets, we rely primarily on confiden-
tiality agreements with our collaborative partners, employees and consultants. Nevertheless, our collaborative
partners, employees and consultants may breach these agreements and we may be unable to enforce these
agreements. In addition, other companies may develop similar or alternative technologies, methods or products or
duplicate our technologies, methods, vaccines or immunotherapy products that are not protected by our patents or
otherwise obtain and use information that we regard as proprietary, and we may not have adequate remedies in such
event. Any material leak of our confidential information into the public domain or to third parties could harm our
competitive position.

The U.S. government will fund some of our programs and, therefore, the U.S. goverﬁment may have
rights to certain of our technology and could require us to grant licenses of our inventions to third
parties.

We expect to fund certain of our research and development related to our cancer programs pursuant to grants
and contracts from the U.S. government. As a result of these grants and contracts, the U.S. government has certain
rights in the inventions, including a non-inclusive, non-transferable, irrevocable license to practice the invention
throughout the world. Our failure to disclose, file, prosecute patent applications or elect to retain title to such
inventions may result in conveyance of title to the United States. In addition, the U.S. government may require us to
grant to a third party an exclusive license to any inventions resulting from the grant if the U.S. government
determines that we have not taken adequate steps to commercialize inventions, or for public health or safety needs.
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Successful commercialization of our future products will depend on our ability to gain acceptance by the
medical community.

if we succeed in receiving regulatory approval and launching our product candidates based on our immu-
notherapeutic technology, it will take time to gain acceptance in the medical community, including health care
providers, patients and third-party payers. The degree of market acceptance will depend on several factors,
including:

« the extent to which our therapeutic product candidates are demonstrated to be safe and effective in clinical
trials;

= convenience and ease of administration;

« the success of sales, marketing and public relations efforts;

« the availability of alternative treatments;

+ competitive pricing;

» the reimbursement policies of governments and other third parties; and
= garnering support from well respected exlemal.advocates.

If our products are not accepted by the market or only receive limited market acceptance, our ‘business and
prospects will be adversely affected.

We may experience difficulties managing our growth, which could adversely affect our results of
operations.

It is expected that we will grow in certain areas of our operations as we develop and, assuming receipt of the
necessary regulatory approvals, market our products. In particular, we will need to expand our sales and marketing
capabilities to support our plans to market Junovan. We will therefore need to recruit personnel, particularly sales
and marketing personnel, and expand our capabilities, which may strain our managerial, operational, financial and
othér resources. To compete effectively and manage our growth, we must:

« train, manage, motivate and retain a growing employee base, particularly given our operations in both
Califormia and France;

* accurately forecast demand for, and revenues from, our product candidates, particularly Junovan; and

« expand existing operational, financial and management information systems to support our development and
planned commercialization activities and the multiple locations of our offices.

Our failure to manage these challenges effectively could harm our business.

Our use of hazardous materials could expose us to significant costs,

Our research and development processes involve the controlled storage, use and disposal of hazardous
materials, chemicals and radioactive compounds. We are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations
governing the use, manufacture, storage, handling and disposal of these materials and some waste products. The risk
of accidental contamination or injury from these materials cannot be completely eliminated. In the event of an
accident, we could be held liable for any damages that result, and any liability could exceed our resources.
Compliance with environmental laws and regulations in the future may entail significant costs and our ability to
conduct research and development activities may be harmed by current or future environmental laws or regulations.
We carry certain liability insurance for contamination or injury resulting from the use of hazardous materials.

Examples of hazardous materials we use in our business include flammable liquids and solids, chromium-51, a
radioactive material, carcinogens and reproductive toxins such as chloroform and formaldehyde and biological
products and waste such as blood products from clinical samples. Personal injury resulting from the use of
hazardous materials is covered up to the limit of our workers’ compensation insurance. Contamination clean-up
resulting from an accident involving hazardous materials would be covered to the limit of our property insurance,
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with certain exclusions. Our liability for personal injury or hazardous waste clean up and remediation may not be
covered by these insurance policies or the costs may exceed policy limits.

Our financial results may be adversely affected by fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.

We will be exposed to currency exchange risk with respect to the U.S. dollar in relation to the euro, because a
significant portion of our operating expenses will be incurred in euros. This exposure may increase if we expand our
operations in Europe. We have not entered into any hedging arrangements to protect our business against currency
fluctuations. We will monitor changes in our exposure to exchange rate risk that result from changes in our situation.
If we do not enter into effective hedging arrangements in the future, our results of operations and prospects could be
materially and adversely affected by fluctuaiions in foreign currency exchange rates,

Risks Related to our Common Stock
The volatility of the price of our common stock may adversely affect stockholders.

The market prices for securities of biotechnology companies, including our common stock, have historically
been highly volatile, and the market from time to time has experienced significant price and volume fluctuations
that are not necessarily related to the operating performance of such companies. From August 16, 2003, when we
began trading on the NASDAQ Global Market under our new trading symbol “IDMI” through December 31, 2006,
the closing stock price of our common stock ranged from $2.25 to $6.99 and has been and wiil continue to be
influenced by general market and industry conditions. In addition, the following factors may have a significant
effect on the market price of our commeon stock:

» the development and regulatory status of our product candidates, particularly Junovan;
* whether we are able to secure additional financing on favorable terms, or at ali;

» announcemenis of technological innovations or new commercial immunotherapeutic products by us or
others;

* governmental regulation that affects the biotechnology and pharmaceutical industries in general or us in
particular;

* developments in patent or other proprictary rights by us;

+ receipt of funding by us under collaboration and license agreements and government grants;

» developments in, or termination of, our relationships with our collaborators and licensees;

+ public concern as to the clinical results and/or the safety of drugs developed by us or others; and
* announcements related to the sale of our common stock or other securities.

Changes in our financial performance from period to period also may have a significant impact on the market
price of our commeon stock.

Qur principal stockholders, executive officers and directors own a significant percentage of shares of our
common stock and, as a result, the trading price for shares of our common stock may be depré¢ssed. These
stockholders may make decisions that may be adverse to your interests.

Our executive officers and directors (excluding, with respect to Mr. Deleage, the shares owned by Alta
BioPharma Partners, L..P., IDM Chase Partners (Aita Bio), LLC and Alta Embarcadero BicPharma Partners, LLC),
in the aggregate, beneficially own approximately 3.1% of the shares of our common stock as of December 31, 2006.
Moreover, Medarex and sanofi-aventis own approximately 19.6% and approximately 14.8%, respectively, of the
iotal shares of our common stock outstanding as of December 31, 2006. As a result, sanofi-aventis, Medarex and our
other principal stockholders, executive officers and directors, should they decide to act together, have the ability to
exert substantial influence over all matters requiring approval by our stockholders, including the election and
removal of directors, distribution of dividends, changes to our bylaws and other important decisions, such as future
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equity issuances. To our knowledge, sanofi-aventis and Medarex have not entered into any voting agreements or
formed a group as defined under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, referred 1o as the Exchange Act.

This significant concentration of share ownership in a limited number of investors may adversely affect the
trading price of our common stock because investors often perceive such a concentration as a disadvantage. It could
also have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control, or impeding a merger or consolidation,
takeover or other transactions that could be otherwise favorable to you.

Future sales of shares of our common stock may cause the market price of your shares to decline.

The sale of a large number of shares of our common stock, including through the exercise of outstanding
warrants and stock options or the perception that such sales could occur, could adversely affect the market price of
our common stock.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item 2. Properties

We have a 40,000 square feet U.S. facility located in an industrial building in Irvine, California. Our lease was
renewed for five years in 2004 and will end in November 2009 in keeping with the present and currently anticipated
future needs of our U.S. operations. The U.S. facility includes office space and a cell processing manufacturing
center that complies with the FDA's GMP requirement for manufacturing investigational new drugs.

In France, our facilities are situated in an industrial building located in Paris. These facilities comprise
approximately 16,000 square feet and include a GMP facility for the production and storage of Cell Drugs (in
compliance with the European Good Manufacturing Practices} and office space. We hold our facilities under three
3-year leases renewable until March 31, 2007, August 31, 2009, and June 30, 2010.

We also operate a research and development laboratory Jocated within the premises of the Université de Paris
V1 in Paris, France. This laboratory comprises approximately 6,000 square feet. We hold this facility under a 5-year
lease until October 9, 2008. Subsequent to the reduction in the number of employees, we decided to vacate this
facility during the first half of 2007 and relocate our employees into our other facility located in Paris.

In support of later phase trials and commercialization, we anticipate constructing new commercial scale
manufacturing plants in the United States and Europe and/or expanding our current facilities as necessary to meet
our future needs, although we have no current plans to undertake such construction or expansion.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are not a party to any legal proceedings.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Not applicable.

PART I

ftem 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Our common stock (NASDAQ symbol “IDMI”) is traded publicly through the National Market System. The
following table presents quarterly information on the price range of our common stock. This information indicates
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the high and low sale prices reported by the National Market System. These prices do not include retail markups,
markdowns or commissions.

_High  low

2007
First Quarter (through March 26) .......... ... ... ... .. i, $ 324 $238

2006
Fourth Quarter .. ....................... e $ 380 $260
Third Quarter . .............. e e e e e $ 351 $225
Second QUANET. . . ... . o et $ 6.40- 5298
FIrst QUAarEr. . . . ittt e e e e e e $625 8277

2005
Fourth Quarter .. .................. e $ 587 $2.50
TR QUAK T . . L L e e $ 699 3383
Second QUAIET . . . .. oottt et e e e $ 826 3098
FIESt QUL . . o ot et e e e e e e $i2.11 $7.28

As of March 26, 2007, there were approximately 270 stockholders of record of our common stock. We have
never declared or paid dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate the payment of dividends in the
foreseeable future.

For information concerning prior stockholder approval of and other matters relating to our equity incentive
plans, see Item 12 in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Stock Price Performance Graph(1)

The following graph shows a comparison of the fotal cumulative returns of an investment of $100 in cash for
the period of December 31, 2001 through December 31, 2006, in (i) our common stock, (ii) the Nasdaq Composite
Index and (iii) the Nasdaq Pharmaceuticals Index. The comparisons in the graph are required by the SEC and are not
intended to forecast or be indicative of the possible future performance of our common stock. The graph assumes
that all dividends have been reinvested (1o date, we have not declared any dividends).
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COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
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(1) The material in this section is not “soliciting material,” is not deemed “filed” with the SEC, and is not to be

incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the

Exchange Act.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Please read the following selected financial data in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes

included elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K.

Statement of Operations Data:

"Operating revenues . ...............-
Netloss. .. ...,

Net loss per share — basic and diluted

Balance Sheet Data:

Working capital . . . ......... ...
Total assets . .. ......comivn i
Long-term obligations . .. ............
Stockholders” equity .. ..............

.........

......... 10.2 287 42.5 35.1 59.6

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(In millions, except for net loss per share)

...... $113 $ 85 $ 58 § 61 § 34
...... @35 (392) (LD (184) (122)
...... (175) (3.84) (435 (256) (191

As of December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(In millions)

......... $45 $224 $372 $409 5482

42.9 553 65.8 67.9
1.0 0.8 0.4 0.3 0.2




Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Except for the historical information contained herein, the following discussion contains forward-looking
statements that involve risks and uncertainties. When used herein, the words “believe,” "anticipate,” “expect,”
“estimate” and similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. There can be no
assurance that these statements will prove to be correct. Qur actual results could differ materially from those
discussed here. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, those
discussed in this annual report. We undertake no obligation to update any of the forward-looking statements
contained herein to reflect any future events or developments.

» i FLIYS

‘Overview

We are a biopharmaceutical company focused on developing innovative products to treat and control cancer
while maintaining the patient’s quality of life. We were incorporated in Delaware in July 1987.

Our lead product candidate, Junovan (mifamurtide for injection), known as Mepact in Europe, is part of this
new family of immunotherapeutic agents that activate the body’s natural defenses, Junovan activates macrophages
in vivo {(meaning inside the body), in order to enhance their ability to destroy cancer cells. We are developing
Junovan for the treatment of osteosarcoma, the most common type of bone cancer. This rare, aggressive bone tumor
principally affects adolescents and young aduits. Junovan has received orphan drug designation-in the United States
and the European Union for this indication, permitting it to benefit from a set of laws encouraging the development
of treatments for rare diseases. In October 2006, we submitted a New Drug Application, or an NDA, in electronic
Common Technical Document (eCTD) format to the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, referred to as the FDA,
for JunovanTM, requesting approval for its use in the treatment of newly diagnosed resectable high-grade
osteosarcoma patients in combination with multiple agent chemotherapy.

The FDA has accepted the NDA file for substantive review, on a standard review basis, contingent upon our
commitment to provide pharmacokinetic data for the to-be-marketed Junovan product. The pharmacokinetic data in
the submission were collected following administration of the product previously manufactured by Ciba-Geigy.
The additional data that we have committed to obtain will provide information on the pharmacokinetic behavior of
the IDM-manufactured product when administered in the clinical setting, Following the submission of the NDA, we
submitted a Marketing Authorization Application, or MAA, for Mepact to the European Medicines Agency, or
EMEA. The EMEA has determined the application is valid and the review procedure was started in late November
2006. '

The Junovan marketing applications include efficacy and safety data from 678 patients with non-metastatic
resectable osteosarcoma, 332 of whom received Junovan, and from 115 patients with metastatic or unresectable
osteosarcoma, 39 of whom received Junovan in the controlled Phase III clinical trial conducted by the Pediatric
Oncology Group (POG) and the Children’s Oncology Group (COG), sponsored by the Division of Cancer
Treatment and Diagnosis of the National Cancer Institute (NCI). Statistical analyses indicate that the use of
Junovan prolongs disease-free and overali survival of osteosarcoma patients. The biological effects and safety of
Junovan are further supported by data from 17 Phase I and 11 clinical studies performed by Ciba-Geigy in which an
additional 248 patients received at least one dose of Junovan.

We expect that the drug regulatory agencies in the United States and Europe would make a decision regarding
marketing approval for Junovan by the end of 2007. In the United States, the FDA may decide to get the advice of an
advisory panel prior to making their decision regarding approval of an NDA, and we have been advised that the
Oncology Drugs Advisory Committee of the FDA, or ODAC, will review Junovan. However, the timing of these
events is subject to risks and uncertainties regarding development, regulatory matters, manufacturing and com-
mercialization, including the timing of the drug regulatory agencies’ review of the regulatory filing, our ability to
respond to questions raised by the drug regulatory agencies in a manner satisfactory to the drug regulatory agencies,
the time needed to respond to any issues raised by the drug regulatory agencies with regard to regulatory
submissions for Junovan, and the possibility that the drug regulatory agencies may not consider preclinical and
early clinical development work and existing efficacy data as adequate for their assessment of Junovan. These
factors may cause delays in review, may result in the regulatory authorities requiring us to conduct additional
clinical trials, or may result in a determination by the regulatory authorities that the data does not support marketing
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approval. As a result, we may not receive necessary approvals from the FDA, the EMEA or similar drug regulatory
agencies for the marketing and commercialization of Junovan when expected or at all, and, even if Junovan is
approved by the regulatory authorities, there is a further risk that we may not be able to manufacture Junovan.

We are jointly developing Uvidem, a cell-based vaccine product candidate based on Dendritophages, with
sanofi-aventis S.A, or sanofi-aventis. Dendritophages, which are a type of specialized immune cells derived from a
patient’s own white blood cells called dendritic cells, are exposed to tumor cell antigens in our production facility
and then reinjected into the patient in order to stimulate the immune system to recognize and kill tumor cells that
display these antigens on their surface. We recently announced the completion of patient enrollment in two Phase I1
clinical trials of Uvidem for the treatment of melanoma. Sanofi-aventis has worldwide marketing rights to Uvidem
in melanoma.

We are focusing our research and development activities primarily on Junovan and our collaboration with
sanofi-aventis for Uvidem and, in order to contain our expenses, have put on held further development of Bexidem
and other product candidates until collaborative partners can be found or other funding becomes available. Bexidem
is a product candidate in Phase 1I clinical development for treatment of bladder cancer that is intended to destroy
remaining cancer cells after conventional therapies.

We have incurred significant net losses and have generated limited revenues since inception. As of Decem-
ber 31, 2006, our accunulated deficit was $178.5 million and our revenues for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2006 were $11.3 million. Our historical financial results reflect increasing research and development and general
administrative expenses related to the maturation of our product development programs.

Our research and development expenses mainly include costs associated with preclinical development and
clinical trials of our product candidates, salaries and other expenses for personnel, laboratory supplies and
materials, consulting and contract research costs, facility costs, amortization of intangible assets such as patents
and licenses, and depreciation of laboratory and office equipment. From inception through December 31, 2006, we
have incurred costs of approximately $151.3 million associated with research and development in all program areas,
including patent and license impairment charges, while we have only recorded approximately $36.4 million in
research and development revenues, of which $35.1 million has been recorded since 2001. Following our
acquisition of Junovan and certain other assets from Jenner Biotherapies in early 2003, our research and
development expenses related to Junovan have amounted to approximately $9.5 million, consisting mainly of
external consultant fees, manufacturing and personnel-related costs. We charge all rescarch and development
expenses to operations as they are incurred. Since 2001, our cumulative research and development expenses,
including impairment of patents and licenses, have represented approximately 73% of total cumulative operating
expenses, We expect our research and development expenses related to Junovan and Uvidem to increase over the
next several years, primarily due to costs related to manufacturing, clinical trials, regulatory compliance and the
regulatory approval process.

Clinical development timelines, likelihood of success and total costs vary widely. Our potential product
candidates are subject to a lengthy and uncertain regulatory process that may not result in the necessary regulatory
approvals, which could adversely affect our ability to commercialize the product candidates. In addition, clinical
trials of our potential product candidates may fail to demonstrate safety and/or efficacy, which could prevent
regulatory approval. We anticipate that we will make determinations as to which research and development projects
to pursue and how much funding to direct to each project on an on-going basis in response to the scientific and
clinical success of each product candidate. Availability of funding will impact our ability to pursue our research and
development projects. We may not be able to obtain additional funding on terms favorable to us or at all. If we are
not able to obtain sufficient funding, we will have to delay or discontinue some of our research and development
activities.

The lengthy process of seeking regulatory approvals, and the subsequent compliance with applicable
regulations, requires the expenditure of substantial resources. Qur failure to obtain, or any delay in our obtaining,
regulatory approvals would cause our research and development expenditures to increase and, in turn, have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations and cash flow. We cannot be certain whether or when any net
cash inflow from Junovan or any of our other development projects will commence.
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We expect to continue to incur net losses for the next several years while we pursue our strategy of advancing
the development of certain products to commercialization, broadening our development pipeline and in-licensing
new biological compounds and complementary technologies. The amount of future net losses and the time we will
require to reach profitability, if at all, are highly urcertain.

Our historical revenues have principally been derived from up-front fees, milestone payments and reim-
bursement of expenses under our collaboration agreement with sanofi-aventis, as well as from certain government
grants. Since these revenues fluctuate significantly, our financial results for any single period may not be directly
comparable to those for any other period. In addition, results in any one period may not be an indication of future
results.

In addition to the revenues described above, our financial requirements have been met to date through private
placements of equity securities. We have received a total of $100.8 million in gross proceeds from private
placements of equity securities, including $20.0 million from sanofi-aventis in 2002 and $17.8 million from various
existing investors in 2004, as well as $6.9 million from Medarex in 2000.

We have entered into a number of collaborations with academic and non-academic institutions and pharma-
ceutical companies. In July 2001, we entered into a significant collaboration agreement with sanofi-aventis under
which we have generated revenue. We expect one of our principal sources of revenues over the next several years to
be milestone payments and reimbursement of research and development expenses from our collaboration with
sanofi-aventis, although these payments-are contingent upon meeting certain development goals. We are also
seeking to enter into other collaborative agreements for certain products with other partners, which may provide
additional sources of revenues. Consequently, our ﬁnanc1al statements have been prepared as if we were an
operating company.

I ) Basis of Financial Statements Presentation

On August 16, 2005, Epimmune Inc., a NASDAQ Global Market listed company, completed a share exchange
transaction with the shareholders of Immuno-Designed Molecules, 8.A. and related transactions, referred to as the
Combination, pursuant to a share exchange agreement, dated March 15, 2003, as amended, referred to as the Share
Exchange Agreement. Pursuant to the Share Exchange Agreement, Epimmune issued approximately 10.6 million
shares of its common stock, after adjusting for a one-for-seven reverse stock split that it effected on August 15,
2005, referred to as the Reverse Split, in connection with the Share Exchange Agreement, in exchange for all of
IDM S§.A’’s outstanding common stock, except for shares held in plan d’épargne en action, referred to as.the PEA
Shares. In connection with the Combination, Epimmune’s outstanding Series S and Series S-1 preferred stock was
also exchanged for a toral of 278,468 shares of Epimmune’s common stock, after giving effect to the Reverse Split,
pursuant to an amended and restated preferred exchange agreement dated April 12, 2005, between Epimmune and
G.D. Searle, LLC, an affiliate of Pfizer Inc., the holder of all of the outstanding shares of preferred stock of
Epimmune. In connection with the closing of the Combination, Epimmune changed its name from Epimmune Inc.
to IDM Pharma, Inc. and changed its ticker symbol on the NASDAQ Global Market to “IDMI,” and IDM S.A.
became a subsidiary of IDM Pharma, Inc.

Because the former IDM S.A. shareholders held approximately 81% of our outstanding common stock after
the Combination, IDM S.A.’s designees to our Board of Directors represent a majority of its Board of Directors and
IDM S.A’s senior management represents a majority of its senior management, IDM 5.A. is deemed to-be the
acquiting company for accounting purposes and the Combination has been accounted for as a reverse acquisition
under the purchase method of accounting for business combmauons in accordance with U.S generally accepted
accounting principles. Accordmgly, historical financial statements prior to the Combination are the financial
statements of IDM S.A.

On December 30, 2005, we,completed the sale of specific assets related to its infectious disease programs and
certain other assets to Pharmexa A/S for $12.0 million in net cash. As a result, ourresearch and development activity
is now focused on our cancer programs.

Qur consolidated financial statements include the accounts of TDM Pharma, Inc. and its subsidiaries: Immuno-
Designed Molecules, Inc. in Irvine, California, Immuno-Designed Molecules S.A. in Paris, France and TDM
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Biotech Ltd. in Montreal, Quebec, Canada. There are currently no operating activities at IDM Biotech Ltd. All
inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the consolidation.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of these financial statemenis requires us to make estimates and judgments in certain
circumstances that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues-and expenses and related disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities. Our management bases its estimates on historical experience and various other
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. We review our estimates on an on-going
basis. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. While our
significant accounting policies are described in more detail in Note 4 to our consolidated financial staternents,
we believe that the policies described below involve the most significant judgments and estimates used in the
preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

Revenue recognition

We recognize revenues pursuant to Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, Revenue Recognition, and Emerging
Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue 00-21 Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.  License fees are earned
and recognized in accordance with the provisions of each agreement. Up-front license fees for perpetual licenses
where we convey rights to intellectual property we own to a licensee upon signing of a definitive agreement and we
have no further delivery or performance obligations beyond the performance of those obligations, are recognized
when received. '

We generate certain revenues from a collaborative agreement with sanofi-aventis, a stockholder and therefore a
related party to us. These revenues consist of up-front fees, milestone payments for advancing its drug candidates
through clinical trials and regulatory approval and ongoing research and development funding.

Non-refundable up-front payments that we receive in connection with collaborative research and development
agreements are deferred and recognized on a straight-line basis over the period we have significant involvement,
which is generally the research term as outlined in the development plan for the product. These estimates are
continually reviewed and could result in a change in the deferral period. For example, our current estimated
development period for Uvidem, which is a product candidate for which we currently recognize revenues, is nine
years. If this estimated development period is extended or shortened, the amount of revenues recognized per period
would decrease or increase correspondingly.

Revenues from milestone payments for products selected by collaborative partners are recognized in full upon
achievement of the relevant milestone when it is substantive and attainment was not evident at the inception of the
collaboration agreement. During the development phase of a collaborative research and development agreement,
such payments are recorded as additional deferred revenue and recognized over the remaining development term on
a straight-line basis.

Reimbursement of ongoing research and development expenses for products selected by collaborative partners
are recognized as revenues when the services have been performed and the payment is assured.

Research and development expenses and related tax credit.

Research and development expenses consist primarily of costs associated with the clinical trials of our
products, compensation and other expenses for research and development personnel, supplies and development
materials, costs for consultants and related contract research, facility costs and amortization and depreciation of
patents and licenses. These costs are expensed as incurred.

A substantial portion of our on-going research and development activities are performed under agreements we
enter into with external service providers, including Contract Research Organizations (CROs), which conduct many
of our clinical research and development activities. We accrue for costs incurred under these contracts based on
factors such as estimates of work performed, milestones achieved, patient enrollment and experience with similar '
contracts. As actual costs become known, we adjust our accruals. To date, our accruals have been within
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management’s estimates, and no material adjustments to research and development expenses have been recognized.
Subsequent changes in estimates could materially affect our financial position, results of operations and cash flows,

Research and development expenses incurred in France relating to the activities of our French subsidiary, IDM
S.A., form the basis for a tax credit, which is recorded as a current income tax benefit in the period in which the
expensces are incurred and the credit is claimed. The credit is recoverable in cash if not used to offset taxes payable in
the fourth year following its generation after a governmental evaluation in France. The research and development
tax credit is recorded as a current asset if payable within one year, or as a long-term asset if payable beyond one year.

Patents, trademarks and licenses

We capitalize the costs incurred to file patent applications when we believe there is a-high likelihood that the
patent will be issued, the patented technology has other specifically identified research and development uses and
there will be future economic benefit associated with the patent. These costs are amortized on a straight-line basis
over the estimated economic useful life, which is generally ten years from the date of patent filing and corresponds
to the average biotechnology product life. We expense all costs related to abandoned patent applications. In
addition, we review the carrying value of patents for indicators of impairment on a periodic basis. If we elect to
abandon any of our currently issued or unissued patents or we determine that the carrying value is impaired, we
value the patent at fair value and the related expense could be material to our results of operations for the period of
the abandonment. Patent maintenance costs are expensed as incurred and included in general and administrative
expenses.

Intangible assets also include purchased licenses. Costs associated with licenses acquired in order to be able to
use products from third parties prior to receipt of regulatory approval to market the related products are capitalized
if the licenses can be used in multiple research and development programs. QOur licensed technologies have
alternative future uses in that they are enabling (or platform) technologies that can be the basis for multiple products
that each target a specific indication. In addition, we derive revenues under collaborative, out-licensing and/or
distribution agreements from products under development that incorporate these technologies, Costs of acquisition
of licenses eligible to be capitalized are amortized on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the license, which
we consider to begin on the date of acquisition of the license and continue through the end of the estimated term
during which the technology is expected to generate substantial revenues. In the case of the licenses or assets
acquired from Medarex and Jenner Biotherapies, we estimated their useful lives to be ten years from the date of
acquisition.

Impairment of long-lived assets

In accordance with Statement of SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets, we periodically evaluate the value reflected on our balance sheet of long-lived assets, such as patents and
licenses, when events and circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recovered. Such
events and circumstances include the use of the asset in current research and development projects, any potential
alternative uses of the asset in other research and development projects in the short to medium term, clinical trial
results and research and development portfolio management options. Determination of recoverability is based on an
estimate of undiscounted future cash flows resulting from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition. In the
event that such cash flows are not expected to be sufficient to recover the carrying amount of the assets, the assets
are written down to their estimated fair values.

Goodwill

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goedwill and Other Intangible Assets, we annually test goodwill and other
indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment, and more frequently if certain indicators are present. This analysis
requires us first to compare the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount, including goodwill. We have
determined that we are operating as one reporting unit for purposes of this analysis. If the fair value of the reporting
unit on the measurement date is less than the carrying amount, a second step is performed to determine the amount
of the impairment loss. This involves comparing the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill with the
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carrying amount of goodwill. As of the period ended December 31, 2006, our analysis determined that the fair value
of the reporting unit exceeded the carrying amount and thus no goodwill impairment was recognized.

Cost Associated with Exit or Disposal

In August 2006 our Board of Directors approved a restructuring and cash conservation plan and in December
2006 the Board authorized an organizational restructuring. We accounted for the restructuring activity in accor-
dance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or
Disposal Activities (“SFAS 146”). This restructuring included focusing our research and development activities
primarily on Junovan and our collaboration with sanofi-aventis for Uvidem, putting on hold further development of
Bexidem and other product candidates until collaborative partners can be found or additional funding becomes
available and a workforce reduction of 17 employees located in our facility in Paris, France. We recorded a total
cumulative charge of $1.0 million in 2006 ($0.8 in Research and Development expense, and $0.2 in General and
Administrative expense), of which $0.2 million was paid in 2006. The remaining unpaid balance at December 31,
2006, of $0.8 million, is included in “Other Current Liabilities”. This charge primarily consists of severance
payments and other related charges, as well as contract termination costs. By April 2007, substantially all of the
expenditures in connection therewith will have been made.

Stock based compensation. As a normal practice, we compensate employees and non-employee directors
through stock-based compensation. Effective January 1, 2006, we account for our stock based compensation under
the provisions of SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payments. SFAS No. 123R eliminates the use of the intrinsic value
method of accounting under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees (“APB 25) and requires companies to recognize in the financial statements the cost of employee
services received in exchange for awards of equity instruments based on the grant date fair value of those awards.
The estimation of stock-based compensation requires the use of complex option pricing models and application of
judgment in selecting the appropriate valuation assumptions, as such volatility, forfeiture rates and expected term.
We value our stock based compensation using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and the single option award
approach, in accordance with the requirements of SFAS No. 123R and Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 107,
Share-Based Payment. We rteduce our compensation expense for estimated forfeitures based on historical
forfeiture behavior, excluding unusual events or behavior that is not indicative of future expectations. We re-
assess the appropriateness of the valuation assumptions, including our calculated forfeiture rate, on a semi-annual
basis or when events or changes in circumstances warrant a re-evaluation, In addition, we monitor equity
instruments with non-standard provisions, such as performance-based vesting conditions, accelerated vesting
based on achievement of performance milestones and features that require an instrument to be accounted for as
liabilities.

Business Combination and Name Change

In connection with the Combination on August 16, 2003, IDM S.A., which is now our French subsidiary, was
deemed to be the acquiring company for accounting purposes and the share exchange was accounted for as areverse
acquisition under the purchase method of accounting for business combinations in accordance with U.S generally
accepted accounting principles. The Combination and the purchase method are described below.

As of August 15, 2005, Epimmune had 2,569,895 shares of common stock outstanding, after giving effect to
the Reverse Split, including 278,468 shares after giving effect to the conversion of the preferred stock pursuant to
the terms of the amended and restated preferred exchange agreement. Based on the average of the closing prices for
a range of trading days (March 14, 2005 through March 18, 2005, inclusive) around and including the announce-
ment date of the Combination, the fair value of the outstanding shares of Epimmune’s common stock was $9.31 per
share or approximately $23.9 million. The total purchase price of approximately $29.8 million includes the
estimated fair value of Epimmune’s common and preferred stock of approximately $23.9 million, the estimated fair
value of Epimmune's outstanding stock options and warrants of approximately $2.6 million and IDM S.A. direct
transaction costs of $3.3 million. The assumptions used to calculate the estimated fair value of the outstanding
Epimmune stock options and warrants were as follows: risk-free interest rate of 4%, dividend yield of 0%, stock
volatility factor of .947, stock price of $1.33, and a weighted average expected life of 2.9 years.
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The allocation of the purchase price discussed below is based on Epimmune’s assets and liabilities as of the
closing of the Combination.

The total purchase price of the Combination is as follows (in thousands):

Epimmune cOmmON SEOCK . . .. vt vu it ettt e et e et e $21,301
Epimmune preferred stock, as-converted tocommon . . . . ... ... oL 2,589
Estimated fair value of options assumed . ........ ... ... ... ... . i 2,586
Estimated IDM S.A. direct transaction costs & . .. ... ... ..ot n... e e © 3,298
Total purchase Price . . ... . oot i e $29,774

Under the purchase method of accounting, the total purchase price as shown in the table above is allocated o
Epimmune’s net tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated
fair values as of the date of the completion of the Combination. The purchase price has been allocated based on
various factors including the fair market value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed of Epimmune, and
valuations associated with intangible assets, certain contracts, and property, plant, and equipment.

The allocation of the purchase price and the estimated useful lives associated with certain assets is as follows
(in thousands):

Estimated Useful

Amount Life (Years)
Purchase price allocation:
Net tangible assets (net of liabilities) .. ........... ... ... ...... $ 1,607 —
Licensing and milestone agreements . ............. . .. ocutin.n 1,600 3 years
In-process research and development (“IPR&D) . .............. .., 13,300 —
Goodwill. . .. ... . . e 13,267 —
Total purchase Price .. ... ... iititnni e $29.774

Epimmune evaluated projects currently under development and determined that $13.3 million was attributable
to in-process research and development. The amounts allocated to IPR&D were determined through established
valuation techniques used in the high technology industry and were expensed upon acquisition as it was determined
that the underlying projects had not reached technological feasibility and no alternative future uses existed. In
accordance with SFAS No. 2, “Accounting for Research and Development Costs,” as clarified by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board’s Interpretation No. 4, Applicability of FASB Statement No. 2 to Business Combi-
nations Accounted for by the Purchase Method, an Interpretation of SFAS No. 2, amounts assigned to [PR&D
meeting the above-stated criteria are charged to expense as part of the allocation of the purchase price.

Epimmune had two products in various states of clinical trials as of the valuation date: EP HIV-1090, a
therapeutic vaccine for HIV in Phase I clinical trials and EP-2101, a therapeutic vaccine for non-small cell lung
cancer which entered Phase II clinical tridls in December 2004, The fair value of the IPR&D was determined using
the income appreach. Under the income approach, the expected future cash flows for each product under
development are estimated and discounted to their net present value at an appropriate risk-adjusted rate of return.
Significant factors considered in the calculation of the rate of return are the weighted-average cost of capital and
return on assets, as well as the risks inherent in the development process. For purposes of the analysis, EP HIV-1090
was projected to generate material revenue and cash flows beginning in 2013 and EP-2101 was projected to
generate material revenue and cash flows beginning in 2014. Remaining research and development expenses for
both EP HIV-1090 and EP-2101 are based on management’s best estimates to bring the drug candidates to market. A
24% risk adjusted discount rate was applied to the cash flow projected for EP HIV-1090 and a discount rate of 29%
was applied to the EP-2101 projected cash flow. The application of this methodology resulted in a fair value of
$7.5 million being assigned to EP HIV-1090 and $5.§ million being assigned to EP-2101. Licensing and milestone
agreements represents a combination of Epimmune’s patents, trade secrets, core technology and services that it had
developed through years of work in the field of epitope identification, This proprietary knowledge base had been
leveraged by Epimmune to enter into agreements with licensing and milestone opportunities.
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In accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, goodwill is not amortized but
instead will be tested for impairment at least annually (more frequently if certain indicators are present). In the event
that management determines that the value of goodwill has become impaired, we will incur an accounting charge
for the amount of impairment during the fiscal quarter in which the determination is made.

Sale of Infectious Disease Related Assets

Pursuant to an asset purchase agreement, dated November 23, 2005, as amended on December 30, 2005, with
Pharmexa, we sold specific assets related to our infectious disease programs and certain other assets to Pharmexa
for $12,028,000 in net cash.

In connection with the asset sale, we also entered into two separate, fully paid up perpetual license agreements
with Pharmexa, which guarantee us continuing rights to use the PADRE® and Epitope Identification System (EIS®)
technologies, included in the assets to be acquired by Pharmexa, in the cancer field. In addition, we entered into a
three-year services agreement with Pharmexa, which will provide certain services required by us for our ongoing
clinical trials of our EP-2101 therapeutic vaccine for non-small cell lung cancer, as well as access to expertise and
know how related to epitope identification. We received a credit for the first year of the services agreement and
recorded prepaid services of $900,000 at December 31, 2005 in connection with the credit. In September 2006, the
Company notified Pharmexa that it would not renew the service portion of the agreement, At December 31, 2006,
prepaid expenses related to Pharmexa totaled $97,481 which is expected to be fully utilized prior to the expiration of
the agreement in the first quarter of 2007, The transaction included the assumption by Pharmexa of our current lease
at our San Diego facility and the transfer of most of our San Diego based employees to Pharmexa. We retained all
rights to our cancer programs.

Due to the proximity of the sale of the specific assets to the original acquisition date of Epimmune by
IDM S.A., we did not record a gain on the sale of the net assets, but instead reduced the amount of goodwill
originally recorded in connection with the closing of the Combination in August 2005.

Results of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

Revenues. 'We had total revenues of $11.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to total
revenues of $8.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2005.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, approximately 99% of our revenues were generated from our rescarch
and development activities in France and derived from reimbursement of current and past research and development
expenses and up-front fees and milestone payments received from sanofi-aventis under the terms of our collab-
oration agreement, which amounted to $11.1 million compared to $6.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2005, We also received $0.1 million and $1.7 million from NIH research grants, license fees and other contract
revenues in the year ended December 31, 2006 and 20035, respectively.

On December 21, 2001, sanofi-aventis exercised its first option to initiate product development on the on-
going melanoma development program for Uvidem. Between January and June 2002, sanofi-aventis paid us a total
of $5.3 million in relation to Uvidem as a combination of up-front fees, milestone payments and reimbursement of
expenses we had incurred in prior years while developing Uvidem. The revenue corresponding to these payments is
being recognized on a straight-line basis over the estimated nine-year development period for Uvidem. Accord-
ingly, we recognized $0.7 million in the year ended December 31, 2006 and 2005. Additional milestone payments
by sanofi-aventis under our collaboration agreement are contingent upon the success of several on-going Phase 11
clinical trials. There can be no assurance that the on-going Phase II clinical trials will be successful and, if they are
not successful, we will not receive the related milestone payments.

We recorded $10.5 million in revenues from sanofi-aventis in the year ended December 31, 2006 and
$6.1 million in the year ended December 31, 2005 for reimbursement of current expenses related to the development
of Uvidem. The increase in revenue was due to the increase in development costs reimbursed to us by sanofi-aventis
for Uvidem clinical trials in the 2006 period.

On December 30, 2005, we completed the sale of our infectious disease programs and related assets to
Pharmexa. These programs accounted for approximately $1.7 million in revenue we recognized in 2005.
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Research and Development Expenses and Impairment of Patents and Licenses,  Total research and
development expenses and impairment of patents and licenses were $22.9 mitlion and $26.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively.

We regularly undertake detailed reviews of our patents-and licenses to determine the development stage and
the viability of associated products, When certain product development projects remain at an early stage or are
abandoned, we write down in full the remaining value of licenses, patents or trademarks associated with those
projects, if they are found to have no alternative future use, During the year ended December 31, 2006, we recorded
an impairment charge of $0.6 million compared to a $2.6 million charge for the year ended December 31, 2005.
During the year ended December 31, 2005, we wrote off the license to IL-13 received from sanofi-aventis in
connection with the Combination, and recorded a corresponding $2.0 million impairment charge in accordance with
our established policies because the acquired license had no alternative future use.

Research and development expenses decreased to $22.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from
$24.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. This decrease was primarily due to $3.2 million associated
with activities under our NIH grants and contracts and our clinical trial in non-small cell lung cancer, which were
incremental activities since the Combination on August 16, 2005. These expenditures were partially offset by
higher spending in 2006 for Phase Ii clinical trials of Uvidem and expenditures made in connection with preparation
for regulatory filing and manufacturing of Junovan,

Direct research and development expenses related to our product candidates to destroy residual cancer cells
were approximately $6.2 million and $6.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively and
$22.0 million for the period from January 1, 2001, the earliest date for which relevant cumulative cost information is
available, through December 31, 2006. Direct research and development expenses related to our product candidates
to prevent tumor recurrence were approximately $8.4 miilion and $7.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively and $28.9 million for the period from January 1, 2001, the earliest date for which
relevant cumulative cost information is available, through December 31, 2006.

Selling and Marketing Expenses. Selling and marketing expenses were $0.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006, compared to $1.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. These expenses consisted
primarily of costs related to our participation in trade conferences and to the employment costs of our business
development and communications employees. Lower expenses in 2006 were the result of fewer company-
sponsored symposiums. ‘

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses were $9.4 million and
$7.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively. The higher expenses in 2006 included
$1.0 million in additional expenses associated with being a public company, including board of directors’ fees,
accounting, and legal expenses, and $1.1 million in stock-based compensation expense for employees and
consultants.

Acgquired in Process Research and Development. For the year ended December 31, 2005, we recorded a
$13.3 million non-cash charge to write-off acquired [PR&D related to the Combination.

Interest Income, Net.  Net interest income decreased to $0.5 million for the yvear ended December 31, 2006,
compared to $0.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, reflecting a decrease in cash and cash equivalents
balances on which we earn interest.

Foreign Exchange Gain or Loss. 'We have an inter-company loan between our subsidiary in France and our
subsidiary in the United States. Prior to the quarter ending December 31, 2008, this loan was considered to be long
term and alt related foreign exchange gains or losses were recognized as a component of other comprehensive loss
and excluded from earnings. Beginning in the quarter ending December 31, 2005, as a result of planned operational
changes, we took steps to settle this inter-company loan. As a result, this loan was revaiued each quarter based on
changes in the value of the dollar versus the euro and all related changes were recognized in earnings. For the year
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 we recorded a foreign exchange loss of $2.6 million and $0.2 million,
respectively, primarily as a result of the revaluation of this inter-company loan.
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Income Tax Benefit. We recorded a research tax credit for research and development expenses in France in
the amount of $0.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to $0.5 million in the year ended
December 31, 2005. Excluding a $0.4 million adjustment made in 2005, as a result of a change in tax law, to
recognize additional tax credits attributable to the year ended December 31, 2004, tax credit for both 2006 and 2005
is comparable.

For the year ended December 31, 2005, we offset the research tax credit with an income tax provision of
$0.1 million for a tax liability related to the sale of our infectious discase assets.

As of December 31, 2006, we had research and development tax credits of $1.5 million that represent an
account receivable corresponding to our accumulated income tax benefit from the French government, of which
$0.2 million is recoverable during the next twelve months.

Net Loss. Our net loss decreased to $23.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to
$39.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, as a result of the factors described above.

Results of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Revenues. We had total revenues of $8.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, compared to total
revenues of $5.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2004.

For the year ended December 31, 2005, approximately 80% of our revenues were generated from our research
and development activities in France and derived from reimbursement of current and past research and development
expenses and up-front fees and milestone payments received from sanofi-aventis under the terms of our collab-
oration agreement, which amounted to $6.8 million comipared to $5.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2004.

On December 21, 2001, sanofi-aventis exercised its first option to initiate product development on the on-
going melanoma development program for Uvidem. Between January and June 2002, sanofi-aventis paid us a total
of $5.3 million in relation to Uvidem as a combination of up-front fees, milestone payments and reimbursement of
expenses we had incurred in prior years while developing Uvidem. The revenue corresponding to these payments i$
being recognized on a straight-line basis over the estimated nine-year development peried for Uvidem. Accord-
ingly, we recognized $0.7 million in the year ended December 31, 2005 and $0.7 million in revenues in the year
ended December 31, 2004 from these payments. We also recorded $6.1 million in revenues from sanofi-aventis in
the year ended December 31, 2005 and $5.1 million in the year ended December 31, 2004 for reimbursement of
current expenses related to the development of Uvidem. Additional milestone payments by sanofi-aventis under our
collaboration agreement are contingent upon the success of several on-going Phase II clinical trials. There can be no
assurance that the on-going Phase 11 clinical trials will be successful and, if they are not successful, we will not
receive the related milestone payments.

We also recorded $1.7 miltion in incremental revenues in 2005 related to NIH research grants and contracts,
other contract revenues and license fees since the Combination closed on August 16, 2005.

On December 30, 2005, we completed the sale of our infectious disease programs and related assets to
Pharmexa. These programs accounted for approximately $1.7 million in revenue we recognized in 2005.

Research and Development Expenses and Impairment of Patents and Licenses.  Total research and
development expenses and impairment of patents and licenses were $26.6 million and $27.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively.

We regularly undertake detailed reviews of our patents and licenses to determine the development stage and
the viability of associated products. When certain product development projects remain at an early stage or are
abandoned, we write down in full the remaining value of licenses, patents or trademarks associated with those
projects, if they are found to have no alternative future use. During the year ended December 31, 20035, we recorded
an impairment charge of $2.6 million compared to a $7.7 million charge for the year ended December 31, 2004.
During the year ended December 31, 2005 we wrote off the license to IL-13 received from sanofi-aventis upon
exercise of certain warrants in connection with the Combination and recorded a corresponding $2.0 million
impairment charge because the licensed technology had no altemative future use. During the year ended
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December 31, 2004, we recorded an impairment charge of $6.8 million associated with certain antibodies licensed
from Medarex, which we determined not to develop, and wrote off in accordance with our established policies.

Research and devzlopment expenses increased to $24.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from
$20.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. This increase was primarily due to $3.2 million associated
with activities under our NIH grants and contracts and our clinical trial in non-small cell lung cancer, which were
incremental activities since the Combination on August 16, 2005.

Direct research and development expenses related to our product candidates to destroy residual cancer cells
were approximately $6.7 million and $4.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively and
$15.9 million for the period from January 1, 2001, the earliest date for which relevant cumulative cost information is
available, through December 31, 2005. Direct research and development expenses related to our product candidates
to prevent tumor recurrence were approximately $7.3 million and $4.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2005 and 2004, respectively and $20.5 million for the period from January 1, 2001, the earliest date for which
relevant cumulative cost information is available, through December 31, 2005.

Selling and Marketing Expenses. Selling and marketing expenses were $1.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005, compared to $1.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. These expenses consisted
primarily of costs related to our participation in trade conferences and to the employment costs of our business
development and communications employees. The increase is associated with preliminary pre-marketing activities
of Jungvan, our lead product candidate.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses were $7.4 million and
$9.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The higher expenses in 2004 included
a write-off of $2.9 million corresponding to legal, investment banking and accounting charges related to a proposed
public offering of stock of IDM S.A, that was terminated, a $1.4 million higher level of administrative expenses due
to several factors including higher rental expenses and a higher number of employees, partially offset by
$2.2 million in incremental expenses following the Combination, which included accrued salaries, deferred
compensation, accounting and legal expenses related to our asset sale to Pharmexa.

Acquired in Process Research and Development.  For the year ended December 31, 2005, we recorded a
$13.3 million non-cash charge to write-off acquired IPR&D related to the Combination,

Interest Income, Net. Net interest income decreased to $0.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2005,
compared to $0.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, reflecting a decrease in cash and cash equivalents
balances on which we earn interest.

Income Tax Benefit. 'We recorded a research tax credit for research and development expenses in France in
the amount of $0.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to $0.4 million in the year ended
December 31, 2004, This increase resulted primarily from the fact that the method of calculation of the research tax
credit in France was modified to be more advantageous. '

For the year ended December 31, 2005, we offset the research tax credit with an income tax provision of
$0.1 million for a tax liability related to the sale of our infectious disease assets.

As of December 31,.2005, we had research and development tax credits of $1.6 million that represent an
account receivable corresponding to our accumulated income tax benefit from the French government, of which
$0.5 million is recoverable during the next twelve months,

Net Loss. Our net loss increased to $39.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, compared to
$31.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, as a result of the factors described above.
Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2006, our cash and cash equivalents totaled $10.2 million, compared to $26.7 million as of
December 31, 2005, Additionally, in February 2007 we completed a private placement of our common stock and
received approximatety $12.9 million in gross proceeds. Cash and cash equivalents include principally cash,
money-market funds and certificates of deposit with maturity of 90 days or less and are denominated in both euros
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and U.S. dollars. We use our cash and cash equivalents to cover research and development expenses and corporate
expenses related to selling and marketing and general and administrative activities. If we enter into collaborations
for certain of our products, we expect that our strategic partners would assume most, if not all, of the costs of further
product development. Unless we find a strategic partner for a product, we bear all costs related to its development.
We expect our expenses to increase as we continue development and commercialization of Junovan, and
development of Uvidem. ‘

Net cash used in operating activities decreased to $17.5 million for the year ‘ended December 31, 2006,
compared to $21.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. This decrease in cash used by operating activities
was primarily the result of a decrease in expenses related to the Combination in 2005 and changes in working
capital.

Net cash used in investing activities was $0.4 million during the year ended December 31, 2006, compared io
net cash provided by investing activities of $10.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. The cash provided
during the 2005 period related to $12.1 million net cash received from the sale of our infectious diseases assets to
Pharmexa in December 2005, partially offset by the net costs related to the business transaction of $1.0 million,
which included legal, investment banking and accounting fees, net of cash acquired in the Combination. Cash used
in investing activities also includes the purchase of property and equipment and the payment of patent costs and
acquisition of other intangibles.

As of December 31, 2006, our current liabilities were $10.6 million. Our current liabilities included
$4.9 million in accounts payable to suppliers, $0.8 million in the current portion of deferred revenues from the
collaboration agreements with sanofi-aventis and Cambridge Laboratories, which are recognized as revenue on a
straight-line basis over the remaining term of each agreement, $1.3 million in accrued compensation for employees
and $3.7 million in accrued liabilities including tax obligations and accrued severance. Qur long-term liabilities as
of December 31, 2006 were composed primarily of $2.6 million in deferred revenues from sanofi-aventis and
Cambridge Laboratories, an interest-free loan of $0.5 million from the French government that provides support to
French companies for research and development, and $0.5 million of other liabilities of which $0.3 million
represents refundable up-front payments received from Cambridge Laboratories for Junovan marketing rights in the
United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland that is recorded as a long term liability until Junovan receives
marketing approval in these countries. We must repay the principal amount of the French government loan in
installments of $0.2 million in 2008 and $0.3 million in 2011,

Our financial requirements to date have been met primarily through private placements of equity securities,
payments received under our agreement with sanofi-aventis and our agreement with Medarex, together with grants
received from governmental agencies. We have received a total of $100.8 million in gross proceeds from private
placements of equity securities since our inception, including: in 1996, $4.1 million, including $0.4 million from the
conversion of cenvertible bonds; in 1998, $21.1 million, including $3.3 million from the conversion of convertible
bonds: in 2000, $36.8 million; in 2002, $19.5 million; and in 2004, $17.8 million.

We expect our principal sources of revenues to be up-front fees, milestone payments and reimbursements of
research and development expenses under our collaboration agreement with sanofi-aventis, until such time as we
successfully develop one or more products for sale outside this agreement or enter into other collaboration
agreements. However, if we do not meet further development milestones with respect to Uvidem, or if sanofi-
aventis does not elect to develop additional product candidates, we will not receive additional payments under our
agreement with sanofi-aventis. We expect (o receive revenues from sales of our lead product candidate, Junovan,
assuming that we receive regutatory approval and choose to market Junovan ourselves. However, we may not
receive regulatory approval and, even if we do, any efforts by us or any future partners to commercialize Junovan
may not be successful. In keeping with our overall strategy, we are seeking to enter into collaboration agreements
for certain products with other strategic partners, which may provide additional sources of revenues, including other
milestone payments. However, we cannot be certain that we will enter into such agreements. In addition, the timing
of our milestone payments cannot be predicted with certainty, and we may not receive payments if development
targets are not achieved. Also, it is uniikely that milestone payments, even if received when expected, would fully
cover our total research and development expenses for all of our projects. Royatties, if any, on commercial sales of
products under development with strategic partners will not be received until at least such time as such products
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receive the required regulatory approvals and are launched on the market. We do not expect any of our products to
receive regulatory approval before late 2007, and we cannot be sure of the timing of any such approval or successful
commercialization following such approval. The timing for receipt of regulatory approval of products is subject to
risks and uncertainties regarding development, regulatory matters, manufacturing and commercialization described
in more detail in the section entitled “Risk Factors” including the possibility that the FDA or the EMEA may require
that we conduct additicnal clinical trials and the risk that we may not receive necessary approvals from the FDA, the
EMEA or similar drug regulatory agencies for the marketing and commercialization of Junovan when expected or at
all.

We will likely seek additional funding, which may be accomplished through equity or debt financings,
government research grants and/or collaboration and license agreements and may also consider from time to time
various business alternatives, including merger and acquisition transactions. We may not be able to obtain
additional financing or accomplish any other business transaction we decide to pursue on terms that are favorable
to us or at all. In addition, we may not be able to enter into additional collaborations to reduce our funding
requirements. [f we acquire funds by issuing securities, dilution to existing stockholders will result. If we raise funds
through additional collaborations and license agreements, we will likely have to relinquish scme or all of the rights
to our product candidates or technologies that we may have otherwise developed ourselves. We do not have
committed sources of additional funding and may not be able to obtain additional funding, particularly if voiatile
conditions in the market for biotechnology company stocks persist. Our failure to obtain additional funding may
require us to delay, reduce the scope of or eliminate one or more of our current research and development projects,
sell certain of our assets (including one or more of our drug programs or technologies), sell our company, or dissolve
and liquidate all of our assets.

We will continue to incur significant expenses for research and development activities. In August 2006 our
Board of Directors approved a restructuring and cash conservation plan and in December 2006 the Board authorized
an organizational restructuring. This restructuring included focusing our research and development activities
primarily on Junovan and our collaboration with sanofi-aventis for Uvidem, putting on hold further development of
Bexidem and other product candidates until collaborative partners can be found or additional funding becomes
available, and a workforce reduction of 17 employees located in our facility in Paris, France.

If we fail to adequately address our liquidity issues, our independent auditors may include an explanatory
paragraph in their opinion, to the effect that there is substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going
concern. Such an opinion could itself have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows. Furthermore, our failure to raise adequate capital would have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition, resoits of operations and cash flows, and could cause us to discontinue operations
or declare bankruptcy.

Our capital expenditures include purchase of property and equipment, including research and development
laboratory equipment and product manufacturing facilities. Capital expenditures also include purchase of intan-
gible assets, including payment of patent development costs, acquisition of third party licenses and patents, such as
from Medarex and Jenner Biotherapies, and acquisition of other intangibles. Capital expenditures amounted to
$0.4 million and $1.0 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2006 and 2005.

QOur major outstanding contractual obligations relate to our long-term debt, operating lease obligations, and
obligations under & number of our collaboration, licensing and consulting agreements. At December 31, 2006, we
had $26,000 of cutstanding capital lease obligations, The following table summarizes our long-term debt, operating
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lease obligations and fixed mandatory payments under our collaboration, licensing and consulting agreements as of
December 31, 2006.

Payments Due by Period

Less Than Years Years More Than
Total 1 Year 2-3 4-5 5 Years

(In thousands of $)

Contractual Obligations

Long-Term Debt . .......... .. ... ..ot 479 — 160 319 —
Operating Lease Obligations . ............... 3,525 910 1,969 325 321
Fixed Mandatory Payments under Collaboration,

Licensing and Consulting Agreements ... .. .. 222 188 27 _ 8 —
Total . . oo e e 4,226 1,098 2,156 652 321

Under certain of our collaboration and licensing agreements, such as our agreements with Novartis and Institut
de Recherche Pierre Fabre, we are obligated to make specified payments upon achieving certain milestones relating
to the development and approval of our products, or on the basis of net sales of our products. In addition, under
certain of our agreements with clinical sites for the conduct of our clinical trials, we make payments based on the
number of patients enrolled. Due to the variability associated with these agreements, these contingent payment
obligations are not included in the table above. Such amounts are based on a variety of estimates and assumptions,
including future sales volumes and timing of clinical trials and regulatory processes, which may not be accurate,
may not be realized, and are inherently subject to various risks and uncertainties that are difficult to predict and are
beyond our control. The table above discloses only future payments that can be determined with a reasonable level
of certainty, which includes payments to external consultants, suppliers and subcontractors, principally for the
recruitment of patients and monitoring of clinical centers, and for the manufacturing of compounds required for our
preduct candidates.

We believe that our existing cash resources are sufficient to meet our cash requirements, based on our current
development and operating plan, into the second quarter of 2008. Our future capital requirements, the timing and
amount of expenditures and the adequacy of available capital will depend upon a number of factors. These factors
include the scope and progress of our research and development programs, our ability to sign new collaboration
agreements and maintain our current collaboration agreement with sanofi-aventis and whether sanofi-aventis elects
to develop additional product candidates, our progress in developing and commercializing new products resulting
from our development programs and collaborations including the achievement of milestones, the cost of launching,
marketing and sales of products if we choose to commercialize products ourselves, our plans to expand or construct
manufacturing or other facilities, technological developments, our preparation and filing of patent applications, our
securing and maintaining patents and other intellectual property rights and our dealings with the regulatory process.
See the section entitled “Trends”™ below.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2006, we were not a party to any transactions, agreements or contractual arrangements (o
which an entity that is not consolidated with us was a party, under which we had:

* any obligations under a guarantee contract;

» aretained or contingent interest in assets transferred to an unconsolidated entity or similar arrangement that
serves as credit, liquidity or market risk support for such assets;

« any obligation under a derivative instrument that is both indexed to our stock and classified in sharcholders’
equity, or not reflected, in our statement of financial position; or

+ any obligation, including a contingent obligation, arising out of a variable interest, in an unconsolidated
entity that is held by, and materia! to, us, where such entity provides financing, liquidity, market risk or credit
risk support to us, or engages in leasing, hedging or research and development services with us,
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Trends

The level of our research and development spending will depend on numerous factors including the number of
products in development, the number of products partnered, the results and progress of preclinical and clinical
testing, our financial condition and ability to raise additional capital as well as general market conditions.

We expect our quarterly research and development expenses to continue to decrease in 2007 as a result of us
focusing our research and development activities primarily on Junovan and our collaboration with sanofi-aventis for
Uvidem, putting on hold further development of Bexidem and other product candidates until collaborative partners
can be found or additional funding becomes available, and a workforce reduction of 17 employees located in our
facility in Paris, France. However, due to the maturation of the development stage for certain of our products, we
expect our expenses associated with them to increase because clinical trial expenses increase significantly when
advancing in clinical development. As products successfully mature, we also expect to pay filing fees in connection
with the regulatory submission process and incur expenses related to the maintenance and potential expansion of
our product manufacturing facilities. Qur strategy is to prioritize expenditures on our portfolio of products in
development in order to maintain research and development expenses in line with available financial resources. We
are taking appropriate steps to contain our expenses. In August 2006 our Board of Directors approved a
restructuring and cash conservation plan and in December 2006 the Board authorized an organizational restruc-
turing. We recorded a total cumulative charge of $1.0 million in 2006 ($0.8 in Research and Development expense,
and $0.2 in General and Administrative expense), of which $0.2 million was paid in 2006. The remaining unpaid
balance at December 31, 2006 was $0.8 million and is included in “Other Current Liabilities”, This charge primarily
consists of severance payments and other related charges, as well as contract termination costs. By April 2007,
substantially all of the expenditures in connection with such restructuring will have been made.

If we succeed in gaining regulatory approval for Junovan and proceed with commercialization of Junovan
ourselves, we expect our selling and marketing expenses to increase correspondingly with our activities to
commercialize Junovan, In addition, we would expect to incur significant costs related to manufacturing Junovan,
which would be recorded as cost of goods sold. Furthermore, depending on the outcome of the NDA filing with the
FDA for lunovan, we may owe milestone payments as well as royalties in the event of its commercialization, under
a licensing agreement with Ciba-Geigy, now Novartis, which was transferred to us as part of the Jenner Agreement
entered into in 2003. However, our obligations to make milestone payments will be deferred until profitability of the
Junovan product line.

We expect our general and administrative expenses to be lower in 2007 compared to 2006 levels due to the
lower salary expenses related to the reduction in workforce.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

r

On July 13, 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting
for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (FIN 48), to
create a single model to address accounting for uncertainty in tax positions. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for
income taxes by prescribing a minimum recognition threshold a tax position is required to meet before being
recognized in the financial statements. FIN 48 also provides guidance on de-recognition, measurement, classi-
fication, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2006, with carly adoption permitted. We will adopt FIN 48 as of January 1,
2007, as required. The cumulative effect of adopting FIN 48 will be recorded in retained earnings. We are currently
evaluating whether the adoption of Interpretation 48 will have a material effect on our consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

FASB Staff Position (FSP) No, 00-19-2, Accounting for Registration Payment Arrangements, was issued in
December 2006 to address an issuer’s accounting for registration payment arrangement. The FSP specifies that the
contingent obligation to make future payments or otherwise transfer consideration under a registration payment
arrangement should be separately recognized and measured in accordance with SFAS No. 5, Accounting for
Contingencies. For registration payment arrangements and financial instruments subject to those arrangements
that were entered into prior to the issuance of this FSP and that continues to be outstanding at the adoption date, this
guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006 and interim periods within those fiscal
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years. Retrospective application of the guidance in this FSP to financial statements for earlier interim or annual
periods presented is not permitted. We are currently evaluating whether the adoption of FSP No. 00-19-2 will have a
material effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155, Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments, an
amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140. Amongst other things, SFAS No. 155 permits fair value
remeasurement for any hybrid financial instrument that contains an embedded derivative that otherwise would
require bifurcation. SFAS No. 155 is effective for all financial instruments beginning after September 13, 2006. We
are currently evaluating the effect of the adoption of SFAS No. 155 on our consolidated financial position or results

of operations.

The FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, in
September 2006, The new standard provides guidance on the use of fair value in such measuremenis. 1t also
prescribes expanded disclosures about fair value measurements contained in the financial statements. Financial
statement disclosures will be revised to conform to the new guidance. We are in the process of evaluating whether
the adoption of the new standard will have a significant effect on our consolidated financial position or results of
operations. The pronouncement, including the new disclosures, is effective as of the first quarter of 2008.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities. SFAS No. 159 expands opportunities to use fair value measurement in financial reporting and permits
entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. SFAS No. 159 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We have not decided if we will early adopt
SFAS No. 159 or if we will choose to measure any eligible financial assets and liabilities at fair value.

Other recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB (including its Emerging Issues Task Force), the
AICPA, and the SEC did not, or are not believed by management to, have a material impact on our present or future
consolidated financial statements. .

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risks

At December 31, 2006, our investment portfolio included cash, money market accounts and fixed-income
securities. We are exposed to limited market risk through our investment of cash in money market accounts and
high-grade securities, generally with maturities of less than three months. The securities contained in our cash and-
cash equivalents are typically debt instruments purchased at inception and held until maturity. Due to their very
short-term nature, such securities are subject to minimal interest rate risk. We currently do not hedge interest rate
exposure, and any decline in interest rates over time will reduce our interest income, while increases in interest rates
over time will increase our interest income. We also do not hedge currency exchange rate exposure.

Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial statements and supplemental data required by this item are set forth at the pages indicated in
Item 15(a) (1) of this annual report on Form 10-K. .
Itern 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
{a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer
and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures as such term is defined under Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢} promulgated under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act), as of December 31, 2006, the end of the
period covered by this report. Based on their evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial
officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of the evaluation date.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Financial Statements
(1} Index to Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements required by this item are submitted in a separate section beginning on
page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

. Page

Report of Emnst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm .. ................ F-2
Report of Ernst & Young Audit, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm . ................ F-3
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 .. ... . ... .. i nnnnn. F-4
Consolidated Statemerits of Operations for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,

000 e e e e e e e e e e ~F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,

200 . e e e e e e e e F-6
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31, 2006 . .. ... . e e e e e F-7
Notes to Consolidated Financial SIEMENts . . .. . ... ... ...uroue et e F-8

(2) Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules

The consolidated financial statement schedules required by this item are omitted because they are not
applicable or the required information is shown in the Consolidated Financial Statements or the notes thereto.
{3 Listing of Exhibits

Exhibit
Number Document Description

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation filed with the Secretary of State of Delaware on
December 2, 1991.(1)

3.2 Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock filed with the Secretary of
State of Delaware on April 2, 1993.(2)

33 Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation filed with the
Secretary of State of Delaware on July 5, 1995.(3)

3.4  Certificate of Increase of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock filed with the Secretary of
State of Delaware on July 5, 1995,

3.5 Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation filed with the
Secretary of State of Delaware on July 2, 1998.(4)

3.6 Certificate of Increase of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock filed with the Secretary of
State of Delaware on July 2, 1998.(4)

3.7 Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation filed with the
Secretary of State of Delaware on November 12, 1998.(5)

3.8 Certificate of Designations of the Series S and Series S-1 Preferred Stock filed with the Secretary of
State of Delaware on June 29, 1999.(6)

39 Cenificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Cemﬁcate of Incorporation filed with the
Secretary of State of Delaware on July 1, 1999.(7)

3.10 Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation filed with the
Secretary of State of Delaware on September 23, 1999.(8)

3.11 Certificate of Decrease of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock filed with the Secretary of
State of Delaware on September 23, 1999.(8)

3.12 Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation filed with the
Secretary of State of Delaware on June 17, 2004.(9)
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years. Retrospective application of the guidance in this FSP to financial statements for earlier interim or annual
periods presented is not permitted. We are currently evaluating whether the adoption of FSP No. 00-19-2 will have a
material effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155, Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments, an
amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140. Amongst other things, SFAS No. 155 permits fair value
remeasurement for any hybrid financial instrument that contains an embedded derivative that otherwise would
require bifurcation. SFAS No. 155 is effective for all financial instruments beginning after September 15, 2006. We
are currently evaluating the effect of the adoption of SFAS No. 155 on our consolidated financial position or results

of operations.

The FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, in
September 2006. The new standard provides guidance on the use of fair value in such measurements. It aiso
prescribes expanded disclosures about fair value measurements contained in the financial statements. Financial
statemnent disclosures will be revised to conform to the new guidance. We are in the process of evaluating whether
the adoption of the new standard will have a significant effect on our consolidated financizal position or results of
operations. The pronouncement, including the new disclosures, is effective as of the first quarter of 2008,

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities. SFAS No. 159 expands opportunities to use fair value measurement in financial reporting and permits
entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. SFAS No. 159 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We have not decided if we will early adopt
SFAS No. 159 or if we will choose to measure any eligible financial assets and liabilities at fair value.

Other recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB (including its Emerging Issues Task Force), the
AICPA, and the SEC did not, or are not believed by management to, have a material impact on our present or future
consolidated financial statements. :

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risks

At December 31, 2006, our investment portfolio included cash, money market accounts and fixed-income
securities. We are exposed to limited market risk through our investment of cash in money market accounts and
high-grade securities, generally with maturities of less than three months. The securities contained in our cash and-
cash equivalents are typically debt instruments purchased at inception and held until maturity. Due to their very
short-term nature, such securities are subject to minimal interest rate risk. We currently do not hedge interest rate
exposure, and any decline in interest rates over time will reduce our interest income, while increases in interest rates
over time will increase our interest income. We also do not hedge currency exchange rate exposure.

Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
The financial statements and supplemental data required by this item are set forth at the pages indicated in
Item 15(a) (1) of this annual report on Form 10-K. .

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None,

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer
and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures as such term is defined under Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e) promulgated under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act}, as of December 31, 2006, the end of the
period covered by this report. Based on their evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial
officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of the evaluation date.
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We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed in our reports pursuant to the Exchangé Act, such as this Annual Report, is recorded, processed,
summnarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such information
is accumulated and cominunicated to our management, including our principal executive officer and principal
financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. It should be noted that a
control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that
the objectives of the control system are met. As a result, there can be no assurance that our disclosure controls and
procedures or imemal control system will prevent all possible instances of error and fraud. Our disclosure conirols
and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives, and the conclusions of
our principal executive officer and the principal financial officer are made at the reasonable assurance level.

We went through siguificant changes in our corporate and financial reporting structure in 2005 as a result of the
Combination in August 2005 and the sale of our infectious disease assets in December 2005. As a result of these
transactions, we now have a multi-location, multi-tier reporting and consolidation process with related currency
translations. These transactions and the operations of our company involve complex accounting issues. Following
the Combination, we have expended significant efforts on financial reporting activities and integration of
operations, including expansion of our disclosure controls and procedures and internal control systems to address,
among other things, operations at multiple sites and in multiple countries,

While we are in the process of implementing corrective actions as further discussed below, as of December 31,
2006, there continues to be deficiencies relating to monitoring and oversight of the work performed by our
accounting personnel, and of the work performed by accounting consultants working on our behalf, to assure that
transactions receive adequate review by accounting personnel with sufficient technical accounting expertise. We
also noted a lack of sufficiently skilled personnel within our accounting and financial reporting functions to ensure
that all transactions are accounted for in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and
deficiencies in our controls over certain non-routine, complex transactions such as the Combination and the sale of
our infectious disease assets in 2005. These deficiencies have resulted in errors in the preparation and review of
financial statements and related disclosures, and resulted in adjustments to our audited, consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2005. The impact of these adjustments did not require the restatement
of any of our financial statements. Based on findings of material weaknesses in our internal control over financial
reporting as described above, we have taken steps to strengthen our internal control over our financial statement
closing, consolidation and reporting process, and our processes for accounting for non-routine, complex trans-
actions such as acquisitions. However, the conclusions of management as of December 31, 2006, that material
weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting process continue to exist indicates that we need to take
additional steps to remediate these situations. We intend to address the remaining actions required to remediate our
existing weaknesses as part of our ongoing efforts to improve our control environment., As discussed below, we have
been and continue to be engaged in efforts to improve our internal control over financial reporting. Measures we
have taken or are planning on taking to remediate our identified material weaknesses include:

= Consolidate operating and financial reporting locations and structure;
= Implement additional review and approval procedures over accruals;

« Formalize process and documentation related to financial statement close and consclidation review,
including face-to-face meeting of all members of our financial staff involved in preparation of financial
statements and a review of those financial statements by the entire staff as a group;

« Formalize and enhance documentation, oversight and review procedures related to accounting records of our
foreign subsidiary to ensure compliance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles;

* Supplement internal staff expertise by consulting with independent, third party experts regarding accounting
treatment of unusual or non-routine transactions, and the impact of the adoption of new accounting
pronouncements, when and if necessary; '

= Review and make appropriate staffing adjustments at all company locations to enhance accounting
expertise;
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+ Revise and enhance the review process for unusual and acquisition related transactions; and

* Improve training for, and integration and communication among, accounting and financial staff.
{b) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our principal executive officer and principal financial officer also evaluated whether any change in our internal
control over financial reporting, as such term is defined under Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) promulgated under the
Exchange Act, occurred during our most recent fiscal quarter covered by this report that has materially affected, or
is likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. Based on their evaluation, our principal
executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that there has been no change in our internal control over
financial reporting during our most recent fiscal quarter covered by this report that has materially affected, or is
likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. We are in the process of reviewing our
control procedures in connection with account consolidation in order to determine additional steps necessary to
strengthen our consolidation process.

PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers of the Registrant and Corporate Governance

The information required by this item is hereby incorporated by reference from our 2007 Definitive Proxy
Statement to be filed not later than 120 days following the close of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.
Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is hereby incorporated by reference from our 2007 Definitive Proxy
Statement to be filed not later than 120 days following the close of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

None.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The information required under this item is hereby incorporated by reference from our 2007 Definitive Proxy
Statement to be filed not later than 120 days following the close of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required under this item is hereby incorporated by reference from our 2007 Definitive Proxy
Statement to be filed not later than 120 days following the close of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required under this item is hereby incorporated by reference from our 2007 Definitive Proxy
Statement to be filed not later than 120 days following the close of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Financial Statements
(1) Index to Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements required by this item are submitted in a separate section beginning on
page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Page

Report of Emst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm . ................. F-2
Report of Ernst & Young Audit, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm ................. F-3
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,2006 and 2005 .. ... ... . .. it F-4
Consolidated Statemerits of Operations for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,

2000 . e e e e e e e e e ~F5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,

2006 . . e e e e e e e e F-6
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31, 2006 . . . ... .. e F-7
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . . ... ... ... ... it e e nns F-8

(2) Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules

The consolidated financial statement schedules required by this item are omitted because they are not
applicable or the required information is shown in the Consolidated Financial Statements or the notes thereto.
(3) Listing of Exhibits

Exhibit
Number Document Description

3.1 Amended and Restared Certificate of Incorporation filed with the Secretary of State of Delaware on
December 2, 1991.(1)

3.2 Centificate of Designation of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock filed with the Secretary of
State of Delaware on April 2, 1993.(2)

3.3 Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation filed with the
Secretary of State of Delaware on July 3, 1995.(3)

3.4 Certificate of Increase of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock filed with the Secretary of
State of Delaware on July 5, 1995,

3.5 Cenificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation filed with the
Secretary of State of Delaware on July 2, 1998.(4)

3.6 Certificate of Increase of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock filed with the Secretary of
State of Delaware on July 2, 1998.(4)

3.7 Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation filed with the
Secretary of State of Delaware on November 12, 1998.(5)

3.8 Certificate of Designations of the Series S and Series S-1 Preferred Stock filed with the Secretary of
State of Delaware on June 29, 1999,(6)

3.9 Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation filed with the
Secretary of State of Delaware on July 1, 1999.(7) '

3.10 Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation filed with the
Secretary of State of Delaware on September 23, 1999.(8)

3.11 Certificate of Decrease of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock filed with the Secretary of
State of Delaware on September 23, 1999.(8)

3.12 Cerificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Cenificate of Incorporation filed with the
Secretary of State of Delaware on June 17, 2004.(9)
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Exhibit
Number

3.13

3.14

3.15

4.1

4.2
10.1

10.2
10.3
10.4
10.5
10.6
10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11
10.12

10.13

10.14
10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20
10.21
10.22
10.23

10.24

10.25

Document Description

Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation filed with the
Secretary of State of Delaware on August 15, 2005.(10)

Certificate of Ownership and Merger, filed with the Secretary of State of Delaware on August 15,
2005.(10)

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company. (28)
Reference is made to Exhibits 3.1 through 3.15,
Specimen certificate of the Common Stock.(23)

Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into between the Company and its directors and
officers.(*)

1989 Stock Plan, as amended (the “1989 Plan”).(4)(*)

Forms of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the 1989 Plan.(1)(*)

Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement under the 1989 Plan.(1)(*)

1994 Non-Employee Directors” Stock Option Plan, as amended.(4)(*)

Letter Agreement between the Company and Robert De Vaere dated May 4, 2000.(11)(*)

Letter Agreement between the Company and Dr. Emile Loria regarding employment terms dated
January 16, 2001.(12)(*)

Form of Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement between the Company and Dr. Emile Loria dated
January 6, 2001.(12)(*)

Amendment to Severance Benefits Agreement between the Company and Dr. Mark Newman dated
March 8, 2001.(12)(*)

Amendment to Severance Benefits Agreement between the Company and Robert De Vaere dated
March 8, 2001.(12)(*)

2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.(13)(*)

Non-exclusive License Agreement dated October 28, 2002 between the Company and Valentis
Inc.(14)(A) )

Amendment to Letter Agreement between the Company and Dr. Emile Loria dated June 20,
2003.(15)(*)

Non-Exclusive License Agreement between the Company and IDM S.A. dated July 7, 2003.(15)(B)

Termination of Amendment to Letier Agreement between the Company and Dr. Emile Loria dated
September 8, 2003.(16)(*)

Accelerated Benefits Agreement between the Company and Dr. Emile Loria dated February 27,
2004.(17)(*%)

Share Exchange Agreement dated March 15, 2005 among the Company and certain shareholders of
IDM 5.A.(18)

Amendment No. 1 (to the Share Exchange Agreement) dated March 15, 2005 among the Company
and certain shareholders of IDM S.A.(18)

Voting Agreement dated March 15, 2005 among the Company, Héléne Ploix, as the Shareholder
Representative, and certain stockholders of the Company.(18)

Employment Agreement with Emile Loria, M.D. dated March 17, 2005.(18)(*)
Employment Agreement with Robert De Vaere dated March 17, 2005.(18)(*)
Amended and Restated Preferred Exchange Agreement dated April 12, 2005.(19)

Amendment No. 2 (to the Share Exchange Agreement) dated April 21, 2003 among the Company and
certain shareholders of IDM S.A.(20)

Amendment No. 3 (to the Share Exchange Agreement) dated May 31, 2005 among the Company and
certain shareholders of IDM S.A.(21)

Amendment No. 4 (to the Share Exchange Agreement) dated June 30, 2005 among the Company and
certain shareholders of IDM 5.A.(22)
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Exhibit
Number

10.26

10.27
10.28

10.29
10.30
10.31
10.32
10.33
10.34

10.35
10.36
10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41
10.42

10.43
10.44
10.45

10.46

10.47

10.48

10.49

10.50

10.51
10.52
10.53
14.1
211
231
232

Document Description

Amendment No. 5 (to the Share Exchange Agreement) dated Auvgust 16, 2005 among the Company
and certain shareholders of IDM S.A {10}

Employment Agreement with Jean-Loup Romet-Lemonne, M.D. dated April 21, 2005.(10)(*)

Indemnity Escrow Agreement dated August 16, 2005, among the Company, Helene Ploix, as
designated representative of certain shareholders of IDM S.A. and U.S. Bank National
Association.(10)

Form of Option Liquidity Agreement between the Company and certain shareholders of IDM S.A.(23)
Form of Put/Call Agreement between the Company and certain shareholders of IDM S.A.(23)

2000 Stock Plan, as amended, and French Annex to the 2000 Stock Plan.(23)(*)

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the 2000 Plan.(24)(*)

Form of Deferred Issuance Restricted Stock Bonus Agreement under the 2000 Plan.(24)(*)

Form of French Participants Deferred Issuance Restricted Stock Bonus Agreement under the 2000
Plan.(25)(*)

Form of French Annex Stock Option Agreement under the 2000 Plan.(25)(*)
Amendment No. 1 to the French Annex to the 2000 stock plan(26)(*)

Asset Purchase Agreement between the Company and Pharmexa Inc. dated November 23,
2005.(26)(C)

Amendment No. | to the Asset Purchase Agreement between the Company and Pharmexa [nc dated
December 30, 2005.(26XC)

License Agreement for EIS(R) between the Company and Pharmexa Inc. dated December 30,
2005.(26)(C)

License Agreement for PADRE(R) between the Company and Pharmexa Inc. dated December 30,
2005.(26)(C)

Services Agreement between the Company and Pharmexa Inc. dated December 30, 2005.(26)(C)

License Agreement between CIBA-GEIGY Ltd (now Novartis) and TherAtid Inc. dated April 4, 1996
(assigned to IDM S.A. January 30, 2003).(26){C)

Memorandum of Agreement between IDM S.A, and sanofi dated July 20, 2001.(26)C)
IL-13 Agreement between IDM S.A. and sanofi dated November 30, 2001.(26)(C)

Development, Collaboration and Supply Agreement between IDM S.A. and Medarex Inc. dated
May 24, 2002. (26)(C)

IL-13 Development and Manufacturing Agreement between IDM S.A. and Biotecnol S.A. dated
November 4, 2003.(26)(C)

Amendment No, | to IL-13 Development and Manufacturing Agreement between IDM S.A, and
Biotecnol S.A. dared May 18, 2004. (26)(C)

License and Distribution Agreement between IDM S.A. and Cambridge Laboratories dated May 10,
2003. (26)(C)

Amended and Restated IL-13 License Agreement between IDM S.A. and sanofi dated August 12,
2005.(26)(C)

Restricted Stock Bonus Agreement and Grant Notice between the Company and Emile Loria, dated
January 4, 2006.(26)(*)

Amended and Restated Directors’ Deferred Compensation Plan, effective as of January 1, 2005.(26)(*)
First Amendment (0 Employment Agreement with Robert De Vaere dated January 26, 2006.(27)
Consulting Agreernent with Sylvie Grégoire, Pharm.D, dated August 10, 2006.(27)

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics dated December 9, 2003, as amended

Subsidiaries of IDM Pharma, Inc.(26)

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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Exhibit
Number Document Description

25.1 Power of Attorney. Reference is made to the signature page of this report.

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Public Company
Accounting Reform and Investor Protection Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted).

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Public Company Accounting
 Reform and Investor Protection Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted).

32.1  Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Public Company Accounting Reform and Investor
Protection Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted).

* Executive Compensation Plans and Arrangements

(1) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form S-1 Registration Statement and Amendments thereto filed
with Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”} (File No. 33-43356).

(2) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on March 22, 1993.

(3) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Decem-
ber 31, 1994, filed with the SEC on March 31, 1995,

{4) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
June 30, 1998, filed with the SEC on August 14, 1998,

(5) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
September 30, 1998, filed with the SEC on November 16, 1998.

(6) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on July 16, 1999.

(7) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Definitive Proxy Statement, filed with the SEC on Form DEF 14A
on July 28, 1999,

(8) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
September 30, 1999, filed with the SEC on November 15, 1999.

(9) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed with the SEC on J uly 2,
2004. '

(10) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on August 17,
2005.

(11) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, for the quarterly period ended
June 30, 2000, filed on August 14, 2000,

{12y Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly chort on Form 10-Q, for the quarterly period ended
March 31, 2001, filed on May 11, 2001.

(13) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed with the SEC on
June 27, 2001 (File No. 333-63950).

(14) Incorporated by reference to Amendment No. 1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, filed
on November 6, 2002,

(15) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, for the quarterly period ended
June 30, 2003, filed on August 14, 2003.

(16) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, for the quarterly period ended
September 30, 2003, filed on November 10, 2003.

(17) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2003, filed on March 30, 2004.

{18) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on March 18, 2005.
(19) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on April 18, 2005.
(20) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on April 22, 2005.
(21) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on June 2, 2005.
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(22} Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on July 7, 2005.

(23) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Definitive Proxy Statement on Form DEFM14A, filed with the
SEC on June 30, 2005.

(24) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed with the SEC on
September 8, 2005 (File No. 333-128178).

(25) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, for the quarterly period ended
September 30, 2005, filed on November 14, 2003,

{(26) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 20035, filed on March 31, 2006.

(27) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
September 30, 2006, filed with the SEC on November 14, 2006.

(28) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on March 27, 2007.

(A) Portions of this exhibit have been granted confidential treatment pursuant to an order granted by the Securities
and Exchange Commission on November 3, 2002.

(B) Portions of this exhibit have been granted confidential treatment pursuant to an order granted by the Securities
and Exchange Commission on October 22, 2003.

(C) Porticns of this exhibit have been granted confidential treatment pursuant to an order granted by the Securities
and Exchange Commission on September 12, 2006.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on this 2nd day of
April 2007.

1IDM PHarRMA, INcC.

By /s/ Jean-Loup ROMET-LEMONNE

Jean-Loup Romet-Lemonne, M.D.
Chief Executive Officer

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and
appoints Jean-Loup Romet-Lemonne, M.D. and Hervé Duchesne de Lamotte, and each of them, his attorney-in-
fact, with the full power of substitution, for him in any and all capacities, to sign any amendments to this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that each of said attorneys-in-fact, or
his or her substitute or substitutes, may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the reqmrcments of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
s/ JEan-Lour ROMET-LEMONNE Chief Executive Officer and Director April 2, 2007
Jean-Loup Romet-Lemonne, M.D. (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Herve DucHesNE Dg Lamorte Acting Principal Financial and April 2, 2007
Hervé Duchesne De Lamotte Accounting Officer (Principal

Financial and Accounting Officer)

/s/  RoserT BEck Director April 2, 2007
Robert Beck, M.D.

/s/  JeEaN DELEAGE Director April 2, 2007
Jean Deleage, Ph.D.

fs/  DonaLb DRAKEMAN Director April 2, 2007
Donald Drakeman, Ph.D.

/s Syrvie GREGOIRE Director April 2, 2007
Sylvie Grégoire, Pharm.D.

/s/  MichaeL G. GREY Director April 2, 2007
Michael G. Grey

/s Joun P. MCKEARN Director April 2, 2007
John P. McKeamn, Ph.D.
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
IDM Pharma, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of IDM Pharma, Inc. as of December 31, 2005
and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the
two years in the period ended December 31, 2006. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairlv, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of IDM Pharma, Inc. at December 31, 2005 and 2006, and the consolidated results
of its operations and its cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, IDM Pharma, Inc. changed its method of
accounting for share-based payments in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123
(revised 2004) on January 1, 2006.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Los Angeles, California
March 28, 2007




REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG AUDIT, INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
IDM Pharma, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Immuno-Designed Molecules, S.A.
(deemed to be the accounting acquirer of IDM Pharma, Inc. as described in Note 2, basis of presentation), as
of December 31, 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows
for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2004, These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Immuno-Designed Molecules, S.A. (deemed to be the accounting acquirer of
IDM Pharma, Inc. as described in Note 2, basis of presentation), as at December 31, 2004, and the consolidated
results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2004, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

/s/ JEAN-YVES JEGOUREL
Ernst & Young Audit represented by
Jean-Yves Jégourel, Partner

Paris-La Défense,
March 7, 2005




IDM PHARMA, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, December 31,
2006 2005
ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents . . . ., . ... ... ... .. ... ... .. ... $ 10,181,000 $ 26,702,000

Related party accounts receivable . ........... ... ... . L 3,353,000 2,540,000

ACCOUNts Teceivable . .. . e e e 39,000 904,000

‘Research and development tax credit, current portion . . . ............. 201,000 526,000

Prepaid expenses and other current assets .. ................c0..n. 1,380,000 2,223,000
Total CUITEIME A5SBLS .+ o v v vt vttt et e en e ettt e ettt e e e 15,154,000 32,895,000
Property and equipment, NEt . .. ... ...ttt i i e 1,711,000 2,109,000
Patents, trademarks and other licenses, net. . ........... ... 0. 3,323,000 3,912,000
Goodwill ... .. e 2,812,000 2,812,000
Research and development tax credit, less current portion . ............. 1,300,000 1,062,000
Other long-term assets . . ... .. v ittt e e 82,000 97,000

$ 24,382,000

$ 42,887,000

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities .. ........ ... ... ... ... .. $ 4935000 $ 4,887,000
Accrued payroll and related EXPEIISES .« v v vt et e 1,251,000 2,689,000
Related party deferred revenues, current portion. . ... .........: Ceeees 769,000 687,000
Other current liabilities . . . .. . ... . .. ... ... e e 3,681,000 2,251,000
Total current liabilities . ........ .. ... .. ... o i 10,636,000 10,514,000
Long-term debt, less current portion .. ..... ... ... o 505,000 317,000
Related party deferred revenues, less current portion ... ............... 2,593,000 2,875,000
Other non-current lHabilitles . .. . ..o it it i i e e e e 452,000 437,000
Total lHabilities . . .. ..o i i e e e e e e 14,186,000 14,143,000
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized and no
shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2006 and December 31,
7 1 — —
Common stock, $.01 par value, 55,000,000 shares authorized at
December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 and 13,401,071 and
13,219,053 shares issued and ouistanding at December 31, 2006 and
December 31, 2005, respectively . ... ...t e 134,000 132,000
Additional paid-in capital ... ... ... ... e 171,892,000 170,891,000
Deferred compensation .. .........cc. i i e — (368,000)
Accumulated other comprehensive income . . ... . ... ... .. oo 16,701,000 13,165,000
Accumulated deficit ... ... . . e e e e (178,531,000) (155,076,000)
Total stockholders’ equity ... ..... ... it s 10,196,000 28,744,000

$ 24,382,000

$ 42,887,000

See accompanying notes.
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IDM PHARMA, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Revenues:
Related party revenue . ............cvvuvuevuenen.. $11,147.000 $ 6794000 $ 5,805,000
Research grants and contract revenue . . . .. ............ 96,000 1,621,000 —
License fees, milestones and other revenues . . . ......... 43,000 124,000 —
Total revenues . .. .. i e e s 11,286,000 8.539.000 5,805,000
Costs and expenses:

Research and developrnent . . . ...................... 22,329,000 24,021,000 20,063,000
Impairment of patents and licenses. . .. ............... 592,000 2,555,000 7,716,000
Selling and marketing . ........... ... .. .. ... . ... 605,000 1,270,000 1,176,000
General and administrative. . ... .. .o r it e 9,402,000 7,437,000 9,541,000
Acquired in process research and development . .. ... .. .. — 13,300,000 —
Total costs and eXpenses .. ..ot 32,928,000 48,583,000 38,496,000
Loss from operations . . . . ..... ..ottt ianan.. (21,642,000  (40,044,000) (32,691,000}
Interest income, Net . . ... ... ... i 503,000 580,000 696,000
Other income (expenses), net . . . .. .. ..., ... _ (4,000) —
Foreign exchange loss . . .............. e {(2,559,000) (162,000) (23,000)
Loss before income tax benefit. .. ................... (23,698,000  (39,630,000)  (32,018,000)
Incometax benefit. . . ... ... .. ... ... .. 243,000 421,000 361,000
Net 108S. . ..o e e $(23,455,000) $(39,209,000) $(31,657,000)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding .. .. ... .. 13,366,002 10,208,937 7,279,246
Basic and diluted loss per share . .................... $ 175 $ 384 % (4.35)
Comprehensive loss:
Nt 1085, oo it e e e e $(23,455,000) $(39,209,000) 3$(31,657,000)
Other comprehensive gain (loss). .. ... ... ... ....... 3,545,000 (3,920,000) 1,182,000

$(19,910,000) $(43,129,000) $(30,475,000)

See accompanying notes.
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IDM PHARMA, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Operating activities
el J08S . o o o e e $(23,455,000) $(39,209,000) $(31.657.000)
Adjustments 1o reconcile net loss 1o net cash used in operafing activities:
Stock-based compensation expense ... ..., ... L. 1,313,000 859,000 75,000
Depreciation and amortization. . .. ........ e e 1,329,000 1,812.000 2,735,000
Acquired in process research and development . .. .. .. ... ... ... — 13,300,000 —
Impairment of patents and licenses . .. ....................... 587,000 2,557,000 1,716,000
Foreignexchange loss . ..... ... ... . ... . . i 2,525,000 — 21,000
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Related party accounts receivable (sanofi-aventis) ... ........... (497,000) (826.000j 667,000
Accounts receivable . . ... ... L 869,000 — =
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . . .................. 1,193,000 (340,000} 816,000
Research and development tax credit receivable. . .. ............ ' 256,000 85,000 220,000
Other long-term assets . ........ e 25,000 330,000 1,000
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . . . .. ... ... ... .. ... (405,000) (1,489,000} 2,011,000
Accrued payroll and related expenses . . .. ... . ... ... ... ... {1,622,000) 67,000 287,000
Related party deferred revenues {(sanofi-aventis). . . . ............ (578,000) (403,000) {687,000)
Other labilities . .. ... .. ... . . .. .. . 969,000 1,624,000 248,000
Net cash used in operating activities . .. ... ... .. ... ... ... o (17,491,000)  (21.633,000y  (17,547.000)
Investing activities
Proceeds from asset sale . .. .. ... ... . i — 12,090,000 —
Purchase of property and equipment . .. ... ... ... i (216,000) (514,000 (505,000)
Patents, trademarks and other licenses . . .. ... .o v i r i e, (210,000) (499,000) (604,000)
Net cash paid for acguisition . .. ....... .. ... . i — {1,015,000) —
Net cash used in investing activities . .. ... ... ... ... ... ...... (426,000) 10,062,000 {1,109,000)
Financing activities
Proceeds fromloans .. ... ... ... . it e — 225,000 155,000
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock . .. ................. 49,000 2,000 15,536,000
Net cash provided by financing activities. . .. .................... 49,000 227,000 15,691,000
Effect of exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents .. ............. 1,347,000 (3,731,000) 2,761,000
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents. . .. ... ... ... ... .. ... ... (16,521,000)  (15,075,000) (204,000)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningof year. . ... ............... 26,702,000 41,777,000 41,981,000
Cash and cash equivalents atend of period . ...... ... ... ........ $ 10,181,000 & 26,702,000 % 41,777.000
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Iterest Paid . . .. ...t e $ — % 3000 % —
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activities
Issuance of shares in exchange for professional services = ............ 3 — 8 — 35 944,000
Issuance of shares in exchange for patents and licenses . . . ........... 5 — $ 2030000 % —
Issuance of shares in connection with Epimmune acquisition . . .. .. .... $ —  $26476,000 $ —

See accompanying notes.

F-6




‘satou Fudurdwonoe 29

000'961°01 §  (DOO'LES'SLI)S 000'10L'918 — $  000Z68'1L1S O000'WEIS  [LO'IOF'EI
000'SHS'E 000'sHS'E
(000°SSP'ET)  (00O'SSH'ET)
— 155'9Z
000'680°1 000'680'1
— (000°6) 004 89¢ (000'65€)
000'6% 000'6y {0l
000'vTT . 000772 000T 9561
000'vPL'8T  (000'9LO'SST) 000'S91°E L {000'89¢€) 000'1680L1 000°ZE1 ESO'GITET
(000'0Z6'E) (000'0Z6°¢)
(000'60T'68)  (000'60T'65)
000°¢ 000t
000°'TEL 000°7EL
00T (000'2)
000'TT 000'CT
(000°650°1) 0006501

000 +0( 60001 006'0¢
000°S 000's FHE'T
000'9LY'9T 00005+°92 00097 LI8'695'T
0000£0°T 000°800°T 000°22 T98'LETT
0001082y (000'L98'CTI) 000°SRO"LIL (000'ct) 000°THT 111 000°'v3 0E1'8LE'S
000'z81°1 000'ze1°1
(000°L89° 1€)  (000'£89'1E)
000°SL 000'5L
— 000'vT {0002
000'96L°L1 000's8L'LL 000'L 1 LRSOTI'L
000's01'sS §  (000°0IT'v8) $ 000°€06'61$ (000'ZP1} §  O00'IBH'ETIS OQOD'EL §  E€PSISTL

Annby myaq awodu| uonesuadiso)y ende) junowy SaIBYS
SIaployy018 PARMWNLY asmagaudmo) pautajq uj-preg WoOIS UomHIo)

Eg, JAQIQ PREMWARY [eucHIpPY

............................ G00T *1§ 19qWDaq] 12 3auejeq

................................ ._-.—Ugm_.__.ﬂﬂ -.HO.:Q_ME-H;
......................................... $50[ 19N
...... LTttt Sareys wHd J0) ¥IOIS uowwed §o a3uryoxy
....................... asuadxa =Om._mmn—uﬁ=.—cu PISEQ-YO0IS
.................................. HEZL ON SYIS
jo vondope uodn uonesuadwos pausjap jo uoneuIWIY
..................... suondo 10) Y2015 UCWIWODD JO IIUENSS]
......... asuadxa uonesuaduiod pale[al pue SPIRAME Y015 UOWIIO))
............................ G00Z ‘1€ 19qUIs0aq 1¢ Soueieq
................................ ﬁﬂugm—um‘ﬂu.ﬂ ﬂomu—ﬂﬁmnac—{
......................................... ss0] 19N
...................... S1500 JURNSS] PATWINSS U1 8L
..................... :O_unwnuﬁ..:on. PALIZJIP JO LONEZINOWY
......... suondo ¥a01s sakojdwa o1 pajea uopesuadwod pauajeq
....................... _._O_H_O ¥20]5 W) [NSUOD JO IIUENSS]
............ SPJEME Y2015 PIIOLISAT IDUENSS] PALIIISP JO OUENSS]
< USRI SNUOQ FI0IS IM UONDANUOD Ul Y01 UOUIIOD JO IIURNSS]
.................................... :ﬂ_n— huw.—w_._nz—._n_
Y2018 99K0}dwa fIM UOLDIULOD U] HD0IS UOLILIOD JO IDURNSS]
...................................... :oumm_-cUﬂ
sununutdy M UONIAUOI Ul YIS UOUILIOS JO IIUENSS]
C U SIURLIEM JO ISIDIIXD Yilm UONIIUUOD UL YD01S UOWIIOD JO dIUBNSS]
............................ P00T 1€ 19QUIIR 12 UBERY
................................ H—hUEuW_.—_.Uﬂ ﬁc:ﬂ.—m.ﬁﬂhr—..
......................................... s50] 19N
....................................... m_-_nu_unmc
o015 9ak01dwa 01 pAeR uonesuadizod pala)ap JO UCTIEZILOWY

yswase(d aeaud s UOTISUUOS UL YI0IS UOWILIOD JO IHIEBNSS]
............................ £00T ' 1€ J19quia0aq] 1 aauepEg

9007 ‘I FIQUIIII( PIPUI SIEIL IIY) I} J0]
ALINOA SYAATOHMIOLS A0 SINIWALVLS AALVAI'TOSNOD

"ONI YINdVHA INdI




IDM PHARMA INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Nature of Business

IDM Pharma, Inc. (“IDM” or the “Company™) is a biopharmaceutical company focused on developing
innovative products to treat and control cancer while maintaining the patient’s quality of life. The Company is
currently developing two lines of products designed to stimulate the patient’s immune response: .

* to destroy cancer cells remaining after conventional therapies, and
* to prevent tumor recurrence.

The Company’s lead product candidate, Junovan™, known as Mepact in Europe, has completed a Phase Il
clinical trial for the treatment of osteosarcoma, or bonz cancer. Junovan has received orphan drug designation in the
United States and the European Union for this indication. In October 2006 the Company submitted a New Drug
Application, or NDA, in electronic Common Technical Document (¢CTD) format to the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration, or the FDA, for Junovan™, requesting approval for its use in the treatment of newly diagnosed
resectable high-grade osteosarcoma patients following surgical resection in combination with multiple agent
chemotherapy. The FDA has accepted the NDA for substantive review, on a standard review basis, contingent upon
the Company’s commitment to provide pharmacokinetic data for the to-be-marketed Junovan product. Following
the submission of the NDA, in November 2006 the Company submitted a Marketing Authorization Application, or
MAA, for Mepact™ to the European Medicines Agency, or EMEA. ’

The Company expects that the drug regulatory agencies in the United States and Europe would make a
decision regarding marketing approval for Junovan by the end of 2007. In the United States, the FDA may decide to
get the advice of an advisory panel prior to making their decision regarding approval of an NDA, and we have been
advised that the Oncology Drugs Advisory Commitiee of the FDA, or ODAC, will review Junovan. However, the
timing of these events is subject to risks and uncertainties regarding development, regulatory matters, manufac-
turing and commercialization, including the timing of the drug regulatory agencies’ review of the regulatory filing,
the Company’s ability to respond to questions raised by the drug regulatory agencies in a manner satisfactory to the
drug regulatory agencies, the time needed to respond to any issues raised by the drug regulatory agencies with
regard to regulatory submissions for Junovan, and the possibility that the drug regulatory agencies may not consider
preclinical and early clinical development work and existing efficacy data or the Phase III study conduct and
analysis as adequate for their assessment of Junovan. These factors may cause delays in review, may result in the
regulatory authorities requiring the Company to conduct additional clinical trials, or may result in a determination
by the regulatory authorities that the data does not support marketing approval. As a result, the Company may not
receive necessary approvals from the FDA, the EMEA or similar drug regulatory agencies for the marketing and
commercialization of Junovan when expected or at all, and, even if Junovan is approved by regulatory authorities,
there is a further risk that the Company may not be able to manufacture Junovan. IDM has four other product
candidates in clinical trials for a variety of cancers including melanoma, bladder, and lung cancers. Unless
specifically noted otherwise, as used throughout these consolidated financial statements, “Epimmune Inc.” or
“Epimmune” refers to the business, operations and financial results of Epimmune Inc. prior to the closing of the
share exchange transaction between Epimmune and shareholders of Immuno-Designed Molecules, S.A., on
August 16, 2005, at which time Epimmune’s name was changed to IDM Pharma, Inc.; “IDM 5.A.” or “Immuno-
Designed Molecules, $.A.” refers to Immuno-Designed Molecules S.A., a privately-held French company, prior to
such transaction: and “IDDM,” “IDM Pharma,” the “Company™ or “its” refers to the operations and financial results
of IDM Pharma, Inc. and IDM S.A. on a consolidated basis after the closing of such transaction, and IDM S.A. prior
to the closing of such transactions, as the context requires.

2. Basis of Presentation

On August 16, 2005, Epimmune Inc., a Nasdaq Global Market listed company, completed a share exchange
transaction with the shareholders of Immuno-Designed Molecules, S.A. and related transactions, referred 1o as the
Combination, pursuant to a share exchange agreement, dated March 15, 2005, as amended, referred to as the Share
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IDM PHARMA INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

2. Basis of Presentation — (Continued)

Exchange Agreement. Pursuant to the Share Exchange Agreement, Epimmune issued approximately 10.6 million
shares of its common stock, after adjusting for a one-for-seven reverse stock split that it effected on August 15,
2005, referred to as the Reverse Split, in connection with the Share Exchange Agreement, in exchange for all of
IDM S.A.’s outstanding common stock, except for shares held in plan d’épargne en action, referred to as the PEA
Shares. In connection with the Combination, Epimmune’s outstanding Series S and Series S-1 preferred stock was
also exchanged for a total of 278,468 shares of Epimmune’s common stock, after giving effect to the Reverse Split,
pursuant to an amended and restated preferred exchange agreement dated April 12,2005, between Epimmune and
G.D. Searle, LLC, an affiliate of Pfizer Inc., the holder of all of the outstanding shares of preferred stock of
Epimmune. In connection with the closing of the Combination, Epimmune changed its name from Epimmune Inc.
to IDM Pharma, Inc. and changed its ticker symbol on the Nasdag Global Market to “IDMI,” and IDM $.A. became
the Company’s subsidiary.

Because the former IDM S.A. shareholders held approximately 81% of the Company’s outstanding common
stock after the Combination, IDM S.A.’s designees to the Company’s Board of Directors represent a majority of its
Board of Directors and IDM S.A.’s senior management represents a majority of its senior management, IDM 5.A.1s
deemed to be the acquiring company for accounting purposes and the Combination has been accounted for as a
reverse acquisition under the purchase method of ‘accounting for business combinations in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, historical financial statements prior to the Combi-
nation are the financial statements of IDM S.A. and the results of operations of Epimmune are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date of the business combination transaction as of August 16, 2005.

As discussed in Note 6, on December 30, 2005, the Company completed the sale of specific assets related to its
infectious disease programs and certain other assets to Pharmexa, Inc. for $12.0 million in net cash. As aresult, the
Company's research and development activity is now focused on its cancer programs.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will
continue as a going concern. This basis of accounting contemplates the recovery of the Company’s assets and the
satisfaction of its liabilities in the normal course of business. Through December 31, 2006, the Company has an
accumulated deficit of $178.5 million and is not forecasting profitable operations in the foreseeable future.
Successful completion of the Company’s transition to commercialization and to attaining profitable operations is
dependent upon achieving a level of revenues adequate to support the Company’s cost structure and, if necessary,
obtaining additional financing and/or reducing expenditures. The Company believes that with the completion of a
$12.9 million private placement of its common shares in February 2007 (as further discussed in Note 16) it will have
sufficient funds to support its operations into the second quarter of 2008. The Company plans to continue to finance
its operations with a combination of debt and equity financing. While the Company has been successful in raising
equity financing in the past, there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to raise the additional funds to
support its operations beyond the second quarter of 2008.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries: Immuno-
Designed Molecules, Inc. in Irvine, California, Immuno-Designed Molecules S.A. in Paris, France and IDM
Biotech Ltd. in Montreal, Quebec, Canada. There are currently no operating activities at IDM Biotech Ltd. All
inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the consolidation.

3, Recent Operating Results and Liquidity

The Company has incurred significant net losses and has generated limited revenues since inception. As of
December 31, 2006, the Company’s accumulated deficit was $178.5 million and the Company'’s revenues for the
period ended December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 were $11.3 million and $8.5 million, respectively. The
Company’s historical financial results reflect increasing research and development and general administrative
expenses related to the maturation of the Company’s product development programs.
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IDM PHARMA INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
3. Recent Operating Results and Liquidity — (Continued)

The Company will continue to incur significant expenses for research and development activities. In August
2006 the Company’s Board of Directors approved a restructuring and cash conservation plan and in December 2006
the Board authorized an organizational restructuring. The Company accounted for the restructuring activity in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit
or Disposal Activities (“SFAS 1467). This restructuring included focusing the Company’s research and develop-
ment activities primarily on Junovan™ and its collaboration with sanofi-aventis for Uvidem (see Note 7), putting on
hold further development of other product candidates until collaborative partners can be found or additional
funding becomes available, and reducing the workforce by 17 employees at the Company’s facility in Paris, France
(see Note 13).

The Company expects the principal sources of revenues to be up-front fees, milestone payments and
reimbursements of research and development expenses under the Company’s collaboration agreement with
sanofi-aventis, until such time as the Company successfully develops one or more products for sale outside this
agreement or enter into other collaboration agreements. However, if the Company does not meet further devel-
opment milestones with respect to Uvidem, or if sanofi-aventis does not elect to develop additional product
candidates, the Company will not receive additional payments under the Company’s agreement with sanofi-aventis.
The Company expects to receive revenues from the Company’s lead product candidate, Junovan, assuming that the
Company receives regulatory approval. However, the Company may not receive regulatory approval and, even if
the Company does, any efforts by the Company or any future partners to commercialize Junovan may not be
successful. In keeping with the Company’s overall strategy, the Company is seeking to enter into collaboration
agreements for certain products with other strategic partners, which may provide additional sources of revenues,
including other milestone payments. However, the Company cannot be certain that the Company will enter into
such agreements. In addition, the timing of the Company’s milestone payments cannot be predicted with certainty,
and the Company may not receive payments if development targets are not achieved. Also, it is unlikely that
milestone payments, even if received when expected, would fully cover the Company’s total research and
development expenses for all of the Company’s projects. The Company will therefore, need to obtain additional
funding, which the Company may seek through collaboration and license agreements, government research grants,
and equity or debt financings.

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires the Company to make estimates and
judgments in certain circumstances that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses,
and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. The Company’s management bases its estimates on
historical experience and various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonabie under the circumstances. The
Company reviews its estimates on an ongoing basis. Actual resuits may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions or conditions. The Company believes that the policies described below involve the most significant
judgments and estimates used in the preparation of its consolidated financial statements.

Foreign Currency Translation
The reporting currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is the U.S. dollar.

The U.S. dollar is the functional currency for all of [DM’s businesses except for its subsidiaries in France and
Canada, for which the functional currencies are the euro and the Canadian dollar, respectively. Foreign currency-
denominated assets and liabilities for these units are translated into U.S. dollars based on exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the period, revenues and expenses are translated at average exchange rates prevailing during the
corresponding quarter, and shareholders’ equity accounts are translated at historical exchange rates. The effects of
foreign exchange translation adjustments arising from the translation of assets and liabilities of those entities where
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IDM PHARMA INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)

the functional currency is not the U.S. dollar are included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive
income.

The Company funds its operating units through inter-company loans. Among the loans outstanding is a
U.S. dollar denominated loan from IDM S.A., a unit which has the euro as its functional currency, to IDM, Inc., a
U.S. affiliate. Prior to the quarter ended December 31, 2005, the Company’s inter-company loans were considered
to be long-term in nature and foreign exchange gains and losses were recognized as a component of other
comprehensive loss. Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2005, as a result of planned operational changes, the
Company expects to settle all inter-company loans in the future. As such, the foreign exchange gains and losses
associated with this loan are recognized as a foreign exchange (loss)/gain in the statement of operations. Foreign
exchange loss was $2.6 million and $0.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005,
respectively. This foreign exchange loss was primarily due to the change in the value of the intercompany loans
related to the change in the value of the dollar with respect to the euro.

Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency translation are reflected in comprehensive net loss. The
Company does not undertake hedging transactions to cover its foreign currency exposure.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of cash and money market funds.

Major customer and concentration of credit risk

The Company’s major customers and sources of revenue are sanofi-aventis and governmental agencies, which
the Company does not believe presents a significant accounts receivable credit risk. The Company’s deposits,
which are mainly kept in dollars and euros, are maintained in both major U.S. and French institutions. The
Company does not require collateral to hedge its credit risk as the Company does not believe that such risk is
significant due to the financial position of sanofi-aventis and these financial institutions.

The Company invests its excess cash in United States government securities and debt instruments of financial
institutions and corporations with strong credit ratings. The Company has established guidelines relative to
diversification and maturities that maintain safety and liquidity. These guidelines are periodically reviewed and
modified to take advantage of frends in yields and interest rates. Management attempts to schedule the maturities of
the Company’s investments to coincide with the Company’s expected cash requirements.

Revenue recognition

IDM }ecognizeé revenues pursuant to Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, Revenue Recognition, and Emerging
Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue 00-21 Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.  License fees are earned
and recognized in accordance with the provisions of each agreement. Up-front license fees for perpetual licenses
where DM conveys rights to intellectual property IDM owns to a licensee upon signing of a definitive agreement
and IDM has no further delivery or performance obligations beyond the performance of those obligations are
recognized when received.

IDM generates certain revenues from a collaborative agreement with sanofi-aventis, a stockholder and
therefore a related party to us. These revenues consist of up-front fees, milestone payments for advancing its drug
candidates through clinical trials and regulatory approval and ongoing research and development funding.

Non-refundable up-front payments that IDM receives in connection with collaborative research and devel-
opment agreements are deferred and recognized on a straighi-line basis over the period IDM has significant
involvement, which is generally the research time as outlined in the development plan for the product. These
estimates are continually reviewed and could result in a change in the deferral period. For example, IDM’s current
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IDM PHARMA INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies -—— (Continued)

estimated development period for Uvidem, which is a product candidate for which IDM currently recognizes
revenues, is nine years. If this estimated development period is extended or shortened, the amount of revenues
recognized per period would decrease or increase correspondingly.

Revenues from milestone payments for products selected by collaborative partners are recognized in full upon
achievement of the relevant milestone when it is substantive and was not evident at the inception of the
collaboration agreement. During the development phase of a collaborative research and development agreement,
such payments are recorded as additional deferred revenue and recognized over the remaining development term on
a straight-line basis.

Reimbursement of ongoing research and development expenses for products selected by collaborative partners
are recognized as revenues when the services have been performed and the payment is assured.

Research and development expenses and related tax credit.

Research and development expenses consist primarily of costs associated with the clinical trials of IDM’s
products, compensation and other expenses for research and development personnel, supplies and development
materials, costs for consultants and related contract research, and facility costs. These costs are expensed as
incurred. Research and development expenses include amortization and depreciation of patents and licenses.

A substantial portion of on-going research and development activities are performed under agreements with
external service providers, including Contract Research Organizations (CROs), which conduct many of the
Company’s clinical research and development activities. The Company accrues for costs incurred under these
contracts based on factors such as estimates of work performed, milestones achieved, patient enrollment and
experience with simiiar contracts. As actual costs become known, the accruals are adjusted. To date, the recorded
accruals have been within management’s estimates, and no material adjustments to research and development
expenses have been recognized. Subsequent changes in estimates could materially affect the Company’s financial
position, results of operations and cash flows.

Research and development expenses incurred in France, relating to the activities of IDM’s French subsidiary,
IDM S.A., form the basis for a tax credit, which is recorded as a current income tax benefit in the period in which the
expenses ar¢ incurred and the credit is claimed. The credit is recoverable in cash if not used to offset taxes payable
in the fourth year following its generation after a governmental evaluation in France. The research and development
tax credit is recorded as a current asset if payable within one year, or as a long-term asset if payable beyond one year.

Patents, trademarks and licenses

IDM capitalizes the costs incurred to file patent applications when it believes there is a high likelihood that the
patent will be issued, the patented technology has other specifically identified research and development uses and
there will be future economic benefit associated with the patent. These costs are amortized on a straight-line basis
over the estimated economic useful life which is generally ten years. The Company expenses all costs related to
abandoned patent applications. In addition, the Company reviews the carrying value of patents for indications of
impairment on a periodic basis in accordance with Statement of Financiai Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 144,
Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, as discussed below. If the Company elects to
abandon any of its currently issued or unissued patents or it determines that the carrying value is impaired, it values
the patent at fair value. The related expense could be material to its results of operations for the period of the
abandonment. Patent maintenance costs are expensed as incurred and included in General and Administrative
expenses.

Intangible assets also include purchased licenses. Costs associated with licenses acquired in order to be able to
use products from third parties prior to receipt of regulatory approval to market the related products are capitalized
if the licenses can be used in multiple research and development programs. The Company’s licensed technologies
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IDM PHARMA INC..
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)

have alternative future uses in that they are enabling (or platform) technologies that can be the basis for multiple
products that would each target a specific indication. In addition, the Company derives revenues under collab-
orative, out-licensing and/or distribution agreements from products under development that incorporate these
technologies. Costs of acquisition of licenses are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis over the useful
life of the license, which IDM considers to begin on the date of acquisition of the license and continue through the
end of the estimated term during which the technology is expected to generate substantial revenues. In the case of
the licenses or assets acquired from Medarex and Jenner Biotherapies, IDM estimated their useful lives to be ten
years from the date of acquisition.

Impairment of long lived assets

In accordance with SFAS, No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, IDM
periodically evaluates the value reflected on its balance sheet of long-lived assets, such as patents and licenses,
when events and circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recovered. Such events and
circumstances include the use of the asset in current research and development projects, any potential altemative
uses of the asset in other research and development projects in the short to medium term, clinical trial results and
research and development portfolio management options. Determination of recoverability is based on an estimate
of undiscounted future cash flows resulting from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition. In the event that
such cash flows are not expected to be sufficient to recover the carrying amount of the assets, the assets are written
down to their estimated fair values. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Jenner license (for the Junovan product)
represents $2.6 and $2.7 of the total balance in Patents, Trademarks and Other Licenses, net. While the Company’s
current and historical operating and cash flow losses are indicators of impairment, the Company believes the future
cash flows to be received from the tong-lived assets will exceed the assets’ carrying value, especially with the filing
of the NDA for Junovan in October 2006 and the MAA in November 2006.

For those product candidates put on hold until collaborative partners can be found or other funding becomes
available, if the Company has not found a collaborative partner or obtained funding to restart development of the
product candidate within one year after development is put on hold, any remaining carrying value will be written
off. At December 31, 2006, the unamortized carrying value of intangible assets related to product candidates put on
hold was $0.1 million.

Fair value of financial instruments

At December 31, 2006 and -2003, the carrying values of financial instruments such as cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables and payables, related party receivables, tax credits and accrued liabilities approx-
imated their market values, based on the short-term maturities of these instrtuments. The fair value of long term debt,
which consists of interest-free government loans, approximates the carrying value as interest discounts are not
significant.

Property and equipment — net

Fixed assets — net are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Laboratory Equipment:. . . ... ... ...... ... .. ... ..., 5 years
Computer Equipment:. . . ... ... . i 3 years
FUmmIIure: . . . . i e s S years
Office Equipment: .. ........ ... ... . o iarrannn. 8 years
Leasehold improvements: . .. ............ .ot ann Shorter of useful life or lease term
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Income taxes

The liability method is used in accounting for income taxes. Under this method, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are determined based on differences between financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and
are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse.
A valuation allowance is recorded if it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will
not be realized. The Company also determines its tax contingencies in accordance with SFAS No. 5 (“SFAS 57),
“Accounting for Contingencies.” The Company records estimated tax liabilities to the extent the contingencies are
probable and can be reasonably estimated.

Segment information

The Company operates in one segment, immunotherapy research. The majority of the Company’s assets are
located in the U.S. and in France.

Goodwill

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, IDM annually tests goodwill and
other indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment or more frequently if certain indicators are present. This
analysis requires the Company first to compare the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount, including
goodwill. IDM has determined that it is operating as one reporting unit for purposes of this analysis. If the fair value
of the reporting unit on the measurement date is less than the carrying amount, a second step is performed to
determine the amount of the impairment loss. This involves comparing the implied fair value of the reporting unit
goodwill with the carrying amount of goodwill. As of the period ended December 31, 2006 the Company’s analysis
determined that the fair value of the reporting unit exceeded the carrying amount and thus no goodwill impairment
was recognized.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share, referred to as EPS, is computed in accordance with SFAS No. 128, Earnings per Share.
SFAS No. 128 requires dual presentation of basic and diluted earnings per share. Basic EPS includes no dilution and
is computed by dividing net loss by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period,
excluding owned but unvested shares. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution of securities, such as common
stock equivalents that may be issuable upon exercise of outstanding cominon stock options or warrants as well as all
shares of preferred stock, which may be converted into common stock. Prior to the application of the treasury stock
method, common stock equivalents of 2,578,727, 2,140,185 and 2,861,296 for the periods ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, have been excluded from EPS as the effect is antidilutive. During 2006 and
2005, 113,174 and 1,912,806 warrants, respectively, expired unexercised. No warrants expired during 2004.

2006 2005 2004 .
Options Outstanding . . ....... ... ... ... ... ..., 1,891,840 1,143,806 623434
Restricted Stock Awards .. ............ ... ... ... .., 42,141 188,739 —_
Warrants Qutstanding . ... ... ... ... ..., 211,882 325,056  2,237.862
Reserved Pursuant to Option Liquidity Agreement . .. ... ... 380,815 403,984 —
Reserved Pursuant (o Put/Call Agreements. . ............. 52,049 78,600 —
TOtal. Lot e e e e e 2,578,727 2,140,185 2,861,296
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Share-Based Compensation Plans

Overview

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for share-based employee compensation plans under the
measurement and recognition provisions of Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees, and related Interpretations, as permitted by SFAS No. 123 (SFAS 123), Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation. Accordingly, the Company recorded share-based employee compensation expense
for options granted under the 1998 IDM Stock Option Plan and the 2000 IDM Stock Option Plan, referred to as the
IDM S.A. Plans, through December 31, 2005 under APB 25. :

In August 2005, in connection with the Combination, the Company assumed the outstanding options under the
Epimmune 1989 Stock Plan, outstanding options under the 1997 Stock Plan, the 2000 Stock Plan and the Employee
Stock Purchase Plan, and the existing IDM S.A. Plan was closed. For the plans assumed in connection with the
Combination, the Company also accounted for share-based employee compensation under APB 25, and, accord-
ingly, did not record any compensation expense.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123
(revised 2004), Share-Based Payment, SFAS 123(R), using the modified prospective transition method.
SFAS No. 123(R) eliminates the ability to account for stock-based compensation transactions using the intrinsic
value method under APB No. 25 and instead generally requires that such transactions be accounted for using a fair-
value-based method. The Company uses the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model to determine the fair-
value of stock-based awards under SFAS No. 123(R), consistent with that used for pro forma disclosures under
SFAS No. 123 in prior periods. Under that transition method, compensation expense that the Company recognized
for the. year ended December 31, 2006 included: (a) compensation expense for all share-based payments granted
prior to the Combination, but not yet vested as of, January 1, 2006, based on their intrinsic value estimated in
accordance with the original provisions of APB 25 which corresponds to their original valuation method,
(b) compensation expense for all other share-based payments granted or assumed since the Combination, but
not yet vested as of, January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the original
provisions of SFAS 123 and (c) compensation expense for all share-based payments granted on or after January 1,
2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123(R). Compensation
expense is recorded for shares that are ultimately expected to vest over the requisite service period. Because the
Company elected to use the modified prospective transition method, results for prior periods have not been restated.
In March 2005 the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 107, which provides supplemental imple-
mentation guidance for SFAS 123(R). The Company has applied the provisions of SAB 107 in its adoption of
SFAS 123(R).

Under APB Opinion No. 25, when the exercise price of the Company’s employee stock options was not less
than the market price of the underlying stock on the date of the grant, no compensation expense was recognized. As
a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the Company recorded incremental stock-based compensation
expense of $0.5 million for ghe year ended December 31, 2006, which increased loss before income tax benefit and
net loss by $0.5 million. Net loss per share, basic and diluted, was increased by $0.04 for the year ended
December 31, 2006, as a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R).

Description of Share-Based Compensation

1998 IDM Stock Option Plan — In August 1998, IDM S.A's shareholders approved the 1998 IDM Stock
Option Plan, referred to as the 1998 IDM Stock Option Plan, and authorized IDM §.A.’s Board of Directors to grant,
through August 2003, stock options to purchase shares such that the total number of stock options granted to
employees could not exceed 5% of the fully diluted number of shares of the Company. These stock options expire
ten years after the grant date, and vest ratably over five years after the grant date subject to continued employment.
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Upon exercise, the resale of the corresponding shares is restricted until five years after the grant date. The 1998 IDM
Stock Option Plan was closed in October 2000 and replaced by the IDM 2000 Stock Option Plan.

2000 IDM Stock Option Plan — In October 2000, IDM S.A.’s sharcholders approved the 2000 IDM Stock
Option Plan, referred to as the 2000 IDM Stock Option Plan, and authorized IDM S.A.’s Board of Directors to grant,
through October 2005, stock options to purchase a maximum of 538,837 shares. The options expire ten years after
the grant date, and vest ratably over four years after grant date subject to continued employment, Upon exercise, the
resale of the corresponding shares is restricted until four years after the grant date.

In August 2005, in connection with the Combination, the 2000 IDM Stock Option Plan was closed and the
Company assumed the prior Epimmune stock option plans described below. In accordance with the Share Exchange
Agreement, substitute options to acquire 342,336 shares of common stock were granted from the Company’s 2000
Stock Plan to employees of the Company’s U.S. subsidiary, IDM, Inc. In addition, and also in accordance with the
Share Exchange Agreement, the Company has reserved 403,984 shares of common stock for issuance in connection
with the exercise of outstanding options held by employees of its French subsidiary, IDM S.A.

1989 Stock Plan — In August 2005, the Company assumed the outstanding options granted under the
Epimmune 1989 Stock Plan, referred to as the 1989 Plan, under which options may be granted to employees,
directors, consultants or advisors. The 1989 Plan provided for the grant of both incentive stock options and non-
statutory stock options. The exercise price of an incentive stock option is not less than the fair market value of the
common stock on the date of grant. The exercise price of non-statutory options is not less than 85% of the fair
market value of the common stock on the date of grant. No options granted under the 1989 Plan have a term in
excess of ten years from the date of grant. Shares and options issued under the 1989 Plan vest over varying periods
of one to six years. Effective June 9, 2000 with the approval of the Company’s 2000 Stock Plan, the 1989 Plan was
discontinued resulting in cancellation of remaining available shares, and any shares granted under the 1989 Plan
that in the future are cancelled or expire will not be available for re-grant. As of December 31, 2006, options to
purchase 22,550 shares of common stock were outstanding under the 1989 Plan.

1997 Stock Plan — In August 2005, the Company assumed the outstanding options granted under the
Epimmune 1997 Stock Plan, referred to as the 1997 Plan, under which options were granted to employees,
directors, and consultants of the Company. The 1997 Plan provided for the grant of both incentive stock options and
nonstatutory stock options. The exercise price of an incentive stock option was not less than the fair market value of
the common stock on the date of grant. The exercise price of nonstatutory options was not less than 85% of the fair
market value of the common stock on the date of grant. No options granted under the 1997 Plan have a term in
excess of ten years from the date of grant. Options issued under the 1997 Plan vest over varying periods of one to
four years. Effective June 9, 2000 with the approval of the Company’s 2000 Stock Plan, the 1997 Plan was
discontinued resulting in cancellation of remaining available shares, and any shares granted under the 1997 Plan
that in the future are cancelled or expire will not be available for re-grant. As of December 31, 2006, there were no
shares of common stock outstanding under the 1997 Plan.

2000 Stock Plan — In August 2005, the Company assumed the Epimmune 2000 Stock Plan, referred to as the
2000 Stock Plan. Options under the plan may be granted to employees, directors, consultants or advisors of the
Company. The 2000 Stock Plan provides for the grant of both incentive stock options and nonstatutory stock
options. The exercise price of an incentive stock option and a nonstatutory option is not less than the fair market
value of the common stock on the date of the grant, No options granted under the 2000 Stock Plan have a term in
excess of ten years from the date of grant. Options issued under the 2000 Stock Plan may vest over varying periods
of up to four years. In addition to options, the Company may also grant stock awards, restricted stock awards, or
other similar equity awards from the 2000 Stock Plan,

There were a total of 2,228,571 shares of common stock authorized by the Company’s shareholders under the
2000 Stock Plan at December 31, 2006. On March 23, 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a
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600,000 share increase in the number of shares of common stock available for issuance under the 2000 Stock Plan.
The Company’s Board of Directors also approved an increase in the limitation on the total number of shares subject
to stock awards under the 2000 Stock Plan that an employee is eligible to be granted during any calendar year from
71,428 to 500,000 shares in order to better reflect the increase in its outstanding capital stock resulting from the
Combination. This limitation is referred to as the Section 162(m) Limitation. The Company’s stockholders
approved the increase in both the shares reserved and the Section 162(m) Limitation under the 2000 Stock Plan at
the Company’s annual meeting of stockholders held on June 14, 2006.

As of December 31, 2006, options to purchase 2,272,655 shares of common stock were outstanding under all
stock option plans, 42,141 shares of common stock related to restricted stock awards were outstanding under the
2000 Stock Plan, and 134,173 shares were available for future grant under the 2000 Stock Plan.

Certain of the Company’s stock options are denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. It is the
Company’s policy 1o convert the exercise prices at the current exchange rate when presenting option exercise
information.

The following table summarizes stock option activity under all stock option plans for the three years ended
December 31, 2006:

Weighted
Average

Shares Price

Balance at December 31, 2003 . . . . ... .. e 622,787 $23.81
Granted . . . . e e 38,258 $23.83
Cancelled. . . ..t e e e e et e (37,611) $28.37
Balance at December 31, 2004 . . . . ... . . e e 623,434 $25.30
Granted .« o o ottt e e e 981,384 % 8.14
Cancelled. . . . vt e e e e e e (57,028) $22.46
Balance at December 31, 2005 . . . . ..ottt e 1,547,790 $14.53
GraMtEd .« o o et e e e e e e e e e s 005,500 § 295
EXEICISEA . « o o ot e et et e e e e (16,011) % 3.06
Cancelled. . . v e e e e (164,624 §$11.66
Balance at December 31, 2006 . . ... . it e 2272655  $ 9.84

Employee Stock Purchase Plan — In August 2005, in connection with the Combination, the Company
assumed the Epimmune Employee Stock Purchase Plan, referred to as the Purchase Plan, originally adopted in
March 2001, and increased the shares of common stock reserved under the Purchase Plan by 26,428 shares to
69,285 shares. Under the Purchase Plan, employees, at their option, can purchase up 1o 714 shares of IDM Pharma
common stock per oftering through payroll deductions at the lower of 85% of the fair market value on the plan
offering date or 85% of the fair market value of the common stock at the purchase date. The Company has not yet
implemented the Employee Stock Purchase Plan as of December 31, 2006.

In August 2005, in connection with the Combination, the Company established an Employee Stock Purchase
Plan for employees located in France, referred to as the French Purchase Plan, and reserved 30,714 shares of
common stock for future issuance under the French Purchase Plan. Under the French Purchase Plan, employees, at
their option, can purchase up to 714 shares of IDM Pharma common stock per offering through payroll deductions
at the lower of 85% of the fair market value on the plan offering date or 85% of the fair market value of the common
stock at the purchase date. Due to local regulations governing employee stock purchase plans in France, the
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Company has not yet implemented the French Purchase Plan as of December 31, 2006, and consequently no shares
have been issued out of the reserve pool.

Impact of the Adoption of SFAS 123(R)

The following table summarizes the share-based compensation expense for stock options and restricted stock
awards granted under the Company’s equity plans that the Company recorded in accordance with SFAS 123(R) for
year ended December 31, 2006.

Research and development. . .. ... ... ... . . . i i $ 163,000
General and administrative. . . ...... ... ... e e e e 332,000
Sales and marketing . ... ... ... L e e 3,000
Increlﬁental expense under SFAS 123R ... ... ... ... .. il 498,000
Expense related to restricted stock (general and administrative). . .............. 224,000
Expense related to consultant options (general and administrative) ............. 591,000
Total stock-based compensation expense . ............. .. ... . ... .. ... $1,313,000

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R), the Company presented deferred compensation as a separate component
of stockholders’ equity. In accordance with the provisions of SFAS [23(R), on January |, 2006 the Company
reclassified the batance in deferred compensation to additional paid-in capital.

Determining Fair Value — The Company estimated the fair value of stock options granted using the Black-
Scholes option valuation model and a single option award approach. For options granted both before and after
January 1, 2006, the Company amortizes the fair value cn a straight-line basis. All options are amortized over the
requisite service periods of the awards, which are generally the vesting periods.

Expected Term — The expected term of options granted represents the period of time that they are expected to
be outstanding. During its initial period of implementation of SFAS 123(R), the Company has adopted the
“simplified method” of determining the expected term for “plain vanilla” options, as allowed vnder SAB 107. The
Company will continue to gather additional information about the exercise behavior of plan participants until
December 31, 2007, at which time the Company anticipates it will make adjustments to the expected term of stock
options granted to reflect actual exercise experience. The “simplified method” states that the expected term is equal
to the sum of the vesting term plus the contract term, divided by 2. “Plain vanilla” options are defined as those
granted at-the-money, having service time vesting as a condition to exercise, providing that non-vested options are
forfeited upon termination, providing that there is a limited time to exercise the vested options after termination of
service with the Company, usually 90 days, and providing the options are non-transferable and non-hedgeable.
Applying this method, the expected term of the Company’s options granted to U.S. employees ranged from six to
SEVEN years.

Expected Volatility — The Company estimated the volatility of its common stock at the date of grant based on
the average of the historical volatilities of a group of peer companies. As a newly public company, as of the
completion of the Combination in August 2005, the Company believes there is currently not enough historical
volatility data available to predict its stock’s future volatility. The Company has identified five comparable
companies, including Epimmune, which was a party to the Combination in August 2005, for which it has been able -
to calculate historical volatility from publicly available data for sequential periods approximately equal to the
expected terms of its option grants, In selecting comparable companies, the Company looked at several factors
including industry, immunotherapy focus, particularly in cancer, stage of development, and size in terms of market
capitalization.
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Risk-Free Interest Rate — The Company based the risk-free interest rate that it used in the Black-Scholes
option valuation model on the implied yield in effect at the time of option grant on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon 1ssues
with equivalent remaining terms.

Dividends — The Company has never paid any cash dividends on its common stock and it does not anticipate
paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Consequently, the Company uses an expected dividend yield of
zero in the Black-Scholes option valuation model.

Forfeitures — SFAS 123(R) requires the Company to estimate forfeitures at the time of grant and revise those
estimates in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. The Company has used six years of
historical data, including that of IDM Pharma since the Combination in August 2005 and that of Epimmune for the
remainder of the six years prior to August 2005, to estimate pre-vesting option forfeitures. The Company has also
segregated the six-year historical data to separately calculate expected forfeiture rates for its directors and officers
as a group and the balance of its employees as a group. The Company recorded share-based compensation expense
only for those awards that are expected to vest. For purposes of calculating pro forma information under SFAS 123
for periods prior to fiscal 2006, the Company accounted for forfeitures as they occurred.

The assumptions used to estimate the fair value of options granted under its option plans for the years ending
December 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

2006 2005
{Post-Combination
Period)
Average expected term (years) ........... .. i 5.50 —7.00 6.00
Expected volatility (range) .. ............ o iiananan 84% — 95% 115%
Risk-free interestrate - . .. .. ... ... .o i i 4.57% — 5.03% 5.00
Expected dividend yield . . . ....... ... ... ... .o .. 0% 0%

Stock Option Activity and Share-Based Compensation Expense

A summary of stock option activity under all share-based compensation plans during the year ended
December 31, 2006 is as follows:

Weighted Weighted Average

Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Term Intrinsic
Shares Price (years) Value
Options outstanding, December 31, 2005 .. .. 1,547,790  $14.53
Granted. . . ... ... . e 905,500 $ 295
Exercised ........ . .., (16,011) $ 3.06
Cancelled, forfeited or expired. . .......... (164,624) $11.66
Options outstanding, December 31, 2006 . ... 2,272,655 § 9.84 5.01 $—
Options exercisable, December 31, 2006 . ... 1,218,772 $14.28 3.90 $—

The aggregate intrinsic value is calculated as the difference between the exercise price of the underlying
awards and the quoted price of the Company’s common stock for those awards that have an exercise price currently
below the quoted price.
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The following table is a summary of the options outstanding under all of the Company’s stock option plans as
of December 31, 2006.

Weighted Weighted

Average Average
Remaining Weighted Exercise Price

. Options Life in Average Options of Options

Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding Years Exercise Price _Exercisable Exercisable
$2.75t08499 . ..., 1,157,398 4.86 $ 3.00 345,567 $ 295
$5.00t0 $999 ... ... ... .. 286,844 8.56 5.92 97,437 597
$100010 $19.99 . ......... 396,787 2.26 12,71 384,667 12.64
$20.00 10 $29.99 . ......... 346,143 5.50 26.97 324258 26.88
$30.00 and above. ......... 85,483 5.91 3293 66,843 3332
Total ................... 2,272,655 5.01 $ 984 ’ 1,218,772 $14.28

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 (after
the Combination) was $2.95 and $8.14, respectively The aggregate intrinsic value for stock options exercised
during the year ended December 31, 2006 was $42,000. No options were exercised in 2005 and 2004. The Company
recorded $1.3 million, $0.9 million and $ 0.1 million in total share-based compensation expense for employee and
consultant stock options and restricted stock awards in the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

As of December 31, 2006, there was $2.2 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-
vested share-based compensation arrangements granted under all equity compensation plans, The weighted average
term over which the compensation cost will'be recognized is 3.11 years. Total unrecognized compensation cost will
be adjusted for future changes in estimated forfeitures.

The Company received $49,000 in cash from option exercises under all share-based payment arrangements for
the year ended December 31, 2006,

Performance-Based Stock Options and Awards

On August 10, 2006, Sylvie Grégoire, Pharm. D. was appointed the Executive Chair of the Board of Directors
and entered into a consulting agreement with the Company, Dr. Grégoire’s compensation under the terms of the
agreement includes both cash compensation of $10,000 per month and 600,000 nonstatutory stock options that will
vest and become exercisable upon the achievement by the Company of defined milestone events by specified dates
through June 30, 2007. If a particular milestone event is not met on or before the date specified in the agreement, all
options related to that particular milestone event will terminate. The agreement may be terminated by either party
upon 15 day wrilten notice.

The agreement is accounted for under EITF 96-18, Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issued to
Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services. Since the agreement does
not contain an economic penalty for nonperformance, fair value of the award will be measured using the stock price
at the date performance is complete. At each interim reporting period, the Company re-measures the expense based
on then-current fair value. Since there is no assurance that the milestones will be met as specified, compensation
cost will be recorded upon achievement of each milestone event. During the fourth quarter of 2006, three of the
milestones were met resulting in compensation expense of 30.6 million, which is included in general and
administrative expense. Using stock prices and current assumptions at December 31, 2006, total compensation
expense measured under the Black-Scholes option pricing model, assuming that the remaining milestones are met
by the specified dates (excluding one milestone event that was not met by its specified date of January 31, 2007),
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will be $0.6 million, including $0.1 million in the quarter ended March 31, 2007 and $0.5 million in the quarter
ended June 30, 2007.

The Company also has outstanding restricted stock awards issued in 2005 to employees that vest over a four-
year service period subject to acceleration if certain performance conditions are met. Compensation costs are
initially recognized over the explicit service period. When the milestones become probable, the remaining
unrecognized expense attributed to the milestone is recorded over the adjusted service period throogh the expected
milestone achievement date. At December 31, 2006, the Company had 27,755 non-vested restricted stock awards
outstanding that had a weighted average fair value of $6.31 as of the grant dates. The aggregate intrinsic value of
non-vested restricted stock awards was $0.1 million at December 31, 2006. The Company recorded $0.2 million in
share-based compensation expense for restricted stock awards in year ended December 31, 2006,

Comparable Disclosures

The Company accounted for share-based employee compensation under SFAS No. 123(R)’s fair value method
during the year ended December 31, 2006. Prior to January 1, 2006 the Company accounted for share-based
employee compensation under the provisions of APB 25.

The fair value of the options granted prior to the Company becoming a public reporting entity on August 16,
2005 was estimated at the date of grant using the Minimum Value option model. Under SFAS No. 123, non-public
companies were permitted to use the minimum-value method to estimate compensation costs for pro-forma
disclosure purposes, which effectively allowed those companies to value employee stock options using an assumed
volatility of zero. The minimum-value method is not an acceptable valuation approach under SFAS No. 123(R) and
the minimum-value disclosures for the period prior to August 16, 2005 are no longer provided. The fair value of the
options granted after the Company became a public reporting entity was estimated at the date of the grant using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model.

Comprehensive Income

The Company follows the provisions of SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income, which provides
rules for the reporting and display of comprehensive income (loss) and its componeats. Comprehensive loss is
comprised of net loss and other comprehensive income (loss), or OCL OCI includes certain changes in stock-
holders’ equity that are excluded from net loss such as foreign currency translation adjustments and unrealized
gains and losses on available-for-sale securities. Comprehensive income has been reflected in the consolidated
statements of operations. The components of accumulated OCI consist solely of foreign currency translation
adjustments.

5. Business Combination and Name Change

In connection with the business combination between IDM and Epimmune on August 16, 2005, DM S.A.,
which is now DM Pharma, Inc.’s French subsidiary, was deemed to be the acquiring company for accounting
purposes and the share exchange was accounted for as a reverse acquisition under the purchase method of
accounting for business combinations in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The
Combination and the purchase method are described below.

As of August 15, 2005, Epimmune had 2,569,895 shares of common stock outstanding, after giving effect to
the Reverse Split, including 278,468 shares after giving effect to the conversion of the preferred stock pursuant to
the terms of the Amended and Restated Preferred Exchange Agreement. Based on the average of the closing prices .
for a range of trading days (March 14,-2005 through March 18, 2005, inclusive) around and including the
announcement date of the Combination, the fair value of the outstanding shares of Epimmune’s common stock was
$9.31 per share or approximately $23,890,000.
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The total purchase price of approximately $29,774.000 is comprised of the following:

Epimmune common stock . ... ... ... $21,301,000
Epimmune preferred stock, as-converted tocommon. . . .............. . ..... 2,589,000
Estimated fair value of options and warrants assumed . . ... ................. 2.586,000
. Estimated IDM S.A. direct transaction COSES . . . . v v v v v s e oo e 3,298,000
Total PUIChase PriCE. . . . ..o i e e e $29,774,000

The assumptions used to calculate the estimated fair value of the outstanding Epimmune stock options and
warrants were as follows: risk-free interest rate of 4%, dividend yield of 0%, stock volatility factor of 94.7%, stock
price of $1.33, and a weighted average expected life of 2.9 years.

Under the purchase method of accounting, the total purchase price as shown in the table above is allocated to
Epimmune’s net tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their
estumated fair values as of the date of the completion of the Combination. The purchase price has been allocated
based on various factors including the fair market value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed of Epimmune,
and valuations associated with intangible assets, certain contracts, and propeity, plant, and equipment.

The allocation of the purchase price and the estimated useful lives is as follows:

Estimated Useful

Amount Life (Years)
Purchase price allocation:
Net tangible assets (net of Labilities) . . . ... .......... ... .. $ 1,607,000 —
Licensing and milestone agreements .. .................... 1,600,000 5 years
In-process research and development (“IPR&D™) .. ........... 13,300,000 —
Goodwill . ... ... . e 13,267,000 —
Total purchase price .. ...... .. it $29,774,000

Epimmune evaluated projects currently under development and determined that $13,300,000 was attributable
to in-process research and development. The amounts allocated to IPR&D were determined through established
valuation techniques used in the high technology industry and were expensed upon acquisition as it was determined
that the underlying projects had not reached technological feasibility and no alternative future uses existed. In
accordance with SFAS No. 2, Accounting for Research and Development Costs, as clarified by FIN No. 4,
Applicability of FASB Statement No. 2 to Business Combinations Accounted for by the Purchase Method, an
Interpretation of SFAS Statement No. 2, amounts assigned to IPR&D meeting the above-stated criteria are charged
to expense as part of the allocation of the purchase price.

Epimmune had two products in various states of clinical trials as of the valuation date: EP HIV-1090, a
therapeutic vaccine for HIV in Phase I clinical trials and EP-2101, a therapeutic vaccine for non-small cell lung
cancer which entered Phase I clinical trials in December 2004, The fair value of the IPR&D was determined using
the income approach. Under the income approach, the expected future cash flows for each product under
development are estimated and discounted to their net present value at an appropriate risk- adjusted rate of
return. Significant factors considered in the calculation of the rate of return are the weighted-average cost of capital
and return on assets, as well as the risks inherent in the development process. For purposes of the analysis, EP HIV-
1090 was projected to generate material revenue and cash flows beginning in 2013 and EP-2101 was projected to
generate material revenue and cash flows beginning in 2014. Remaining research and development expenses for
baoth EP HIV-1090 and EP-2101 are based on management’s best estimates to bring the drug candidates to market.
A 24% risk adjusted discount rate was applied to the cash flow projected for EP HIV-1090 and a discount rate of
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29% was applied to the EP-2101 projected cash flow. The application of this methodology resulted in a fair value of
$7,500,000 being assigned to EP HIV-1090 and $5,800,000 being assigned to EP-2101. Licensing and milestone
agreements represents a combination of Epimmune’s patents, trade secrets, core technology and services that it has
developed through years of work in the field of epitope identification. This proprietary knowledge base has been
leveraged by Epimmune to enter into agreements with licensing and milestone opportunities. '

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, goodwill will not be amortized but
instead will be tested for impairment at least annually (more frequently if certain indicators are present). In the
event that management determines that the value of goodwill has become impaired, the Company will incur an
accounting charge for the amount of impairment during the fiscal quarter in which the determination is made.

6. Sale of Infectious Disease Related Assets

Pursuant to an asset purchase agreement, dated November 23, 20035, as amended on December 30, 2003, with
Pharmexa Inc, the Company sold specific assets related to its infectious disease programs and certain other assets to
Pharmexa for $12,028,000 in net cash.

In connection with the asset sale, the Company also entered into two separate, fully paid up perpetual license
agreements with Pharmexa, which guarantee the Company continuing rights to use the PADRE® and Epitope
Identification System (EIS(R)) technologies, included in the assets to be acquired by Pharmexa, in the cancer field.
In addition, the Company entered into a three-year services agreement with Pharmexa, which will provide certain
services required for the Company’s ongoing clinical trials of its EP-2101 therapeutic vaccine for non-small cell
lung cancer, as well as access to expertise and know how related to epitope identification. The Company received a
credit for the first year of the services agreement and recorded prepaid services of $900,000 at December 31, 2005
in connection with the credit. In September 2006, the Company notified Pharmexa that it would not renew the
service portion of the agreement. At December 31, 2006, prepaid expenses related to Pharmexa totaled $97,481 and
is expected to be fully utilized prior to the expiration of the agreement in the first quarter of 2007. The transaction
included the assumption by Pharmexa of the Company’s current lease at its San Diego facility and the transfer of
most of its San Diego based employees to Pharmexa. The Company retained all rights to its cancer programs.

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities sold in connection with the Pharmexa transaction were as

follows:
Amount
Prepaids and other CUITEN! @SSETS . . . ..o vvtveentun et ina e $ 214,000
FIXed SS8lS. o v v vt e v st e e e e e e e e 778,000
Tangible @SSETS . .\ - ot ettt e e e 1,627,000
GoodWill. . . .t e e 10,455,000
Accrued Habilities - . . vttt et e e e e s (146,000)
Total carrying value. . . . ... .t e e $12,928,000

Due to the proximity of the sale of the specific assets to the original acquisition date of Epimmune by IDM
S.A., the Company did not record a gain on the sale of the net assets, but instead reduced the amount of goodwill
originally recorded in connection with the closing of the Combination in August 2005 by $10,455,000.

The following table presents pro forma results of operations and gives effect to the business combination
transaction and sale of assets to Pharmexa as if they were both consummated at the beginning of the periods
presented and excludes the direct operating results of the assets sold for all periods presented. The unaudited pro
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forma results of operations are not necessarily indicative of what would have occurred had the business com-
bination been completed at the beginning of the period or of the results that may occur in the future,

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,

2005 2004
RevenUeS. . .. . $ 7.134 % 6,650
Nt 088, vttt e e e $(39,483)  $(38,016)
Net loss per common share — basic and diluted . . ... ............. $ (3.87) 5 (289

7. Research and Development and Other Agreements ¢
Jenner

In March 2003, the Company entered into an asset purchase agreement (“Jenner Agreement™) with Jenner
Biotherapies, Inc. (“Jenner”). Pursuant to the terms of the agreement the Company purchased certain of Jenner’s
assets, which included the Company’s lead product candidate, Junovan, called Mepact in Europe, and an exclusive
worldwide license from Ciba-Geigy Ltd., now known as Novartis, covering patent rights to compounds that the
Company uses in the production of Junovan. These assets were acquired by issuing IDM S.A. shares with a fair
value of $3.1 million. The asset purchase was consummated in April 2003. The purchase consideration was
allocated to the Junovan license, which was determined to have alternative future use and is included in Patents,
Trademarks and Other Licenses.

Under the license agreement, the Company is required to make certain milestone payments with respect to
Junovan totaling $2.75 million, none of which has been recorded in the Company’s financial statements as of
December 31, 2006 since the payment is triggered by the achievement of Gross Profit related to the Licensed
Product, As of December 31, 2006, the Company has achieved two milestones totaling $750,000 that could be
payable in the event the Licensed Product is successfully commercialized. Pursuant to the license agreement, the
total milestones payable in any year with respect to all such milestones shall not exceed twenty-five percent of the
Gross Profit of the Licensed Product in any year, with the balance being carried forward to later years without
incurring interest. The Company also agreed to pay royaities with respect to net sales of the Licensed Product. A
portion of the milestone payments will be credited against these royalty obligations. Unless earlier terminated, the
license agreement shall continue on a country-by-country and product-by-product basis until there are no remaining
royalty paymenis in each country covered by the patents obtained under the agreement. In addition to certain
standard termination clauses, the Company may terminate the agreement with respect to any patent upon 60 days’
written notice, '

The Jenner license is being amortized over ten years, which was management’s estimate of the expected life of
future products developed from the use of the license at the time the assets were acquired.

IDM’s direct research and development expenses related to Junovan amounted o approximately $4,080,000,
$2,563,000 and $2,369,000 million in 2006, 20035 and 2004, respectively.

Agreement with sanofi-aventis (Related Party)

In July 2001, the Company entered inlo an agreement with sanofi-aventis to coeperate in cellular immu-
notherapy research for the development and marketing of immunologic treatment for cancers. Under this
agreement, sanofi-aventis has the right to select up to 20 Cell Drug development programs (individually an
“option™) from the Company's line of research and development activities. The Company will undertake preclinical
development, and if sanofi-aventis exercises its option, sanofi-aventis will finance the clinical development and
have exclusive worldwide marketing rights for the selected drugs, if the clinical trials are successful. For each
exercised option, sanofi-aventis will pay an initial non-refundable upfront payment, followed by milestone
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payments following the completion of Phase 1 and Phase Il clinical trials, and a fee upon sanofi-aventis exercising
an exclusive license option. In addition, sanofi-aventis will also reimburse all corresponding research and
development expenses for each program that is selected. If sanofi-aventis exercises the commercialization option,
a non-refundable fee will be due to IDM upon exercise, followed by milestone payments, based on potential market
size for the treatment. During the commercialization phase, IDM will manufacture the treatment.

Sanofi-aventis exercised its first option on IDM’s ongoing melanoma development program Uvidem in
December 2001. Consequently, the Company received $5.3 million corresponding to: (i) an up-front payment of
$1.8 million, (ii) a completion of Phase I milestone payment of $1.8 million because the program was already in
Phase 11 and (iii) reimbursement of development costs incurred from 1999 through December 2001, which
approximated $1.7 million. Repayment received for past development expenses incurred by IDM prior to the
exercise of an option by sanofi-aventis are considered as a complementary up-front fee. Thus, the Company is
recognizing these three payments over the remaining program development period, which is estimated to be nine
years.

Revenue recognized for the years ending December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, under the sanofi-aventis
agreement, by source, is as follows:

2006 2005 2004
Amortization of upfrontfee ...................... $ 221,000 $ 220000 § 219,000
Amortization of phase I milestone payment .. ........ 262,000 259,000 259,000
Amortization of initial R&D expenses from 1999 to
2000 ..., ... e e 210,000 208,000 208,000
Reimbursement of current R&D expenses. . .......... 10,454,000 6,107,000 5,119,000
Total TEVETUES + « v v v v e oot e i e i s e e $11.147,000  $6,794,000  $5,805,000

IDM’s direct research and development expenses related to Uvidem amounted to approximately $6,349,000,
$4.052,000 and $3,216,000 in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Sanofi-aventis can terminate its involvermnent in any program at any time without penalty. If this occurs, the
Company’s obligations with respect to that program will be waived and the Company will be able to proceed with
the development program and commercialize the product on its own. None of the proceeds are refundable to
sanofi-aventis in the event of termination. At all times, the Company retains the intellectual property rights attached
to the immunological treatments developed in programs subject to this agreement and will grant sanofi-aventis an
option for an exclusive worldwide license for the commercialization for each treatment. At December 31, 2006,
sanofi-aventis had remaining options to participate in the clinical development of up to ten (or up to two per year)
other Cell Drugs through 2011,

Prior to the July 2001 agreement, IDM had entered into an agreement in July 1999, as amended in November
2001, under which sanofi-aventis agreed to provide the Company with a non-exclusive license to intellectual
property for interleukin-13, referred to as IL-13, a compound that contributes to the transformation of white blood
cells into specialized immune cells catled dendritic cells, including a right to sub-license with sanofi-aventis’
approval. In exchange, the Company issued shares and warrants to sanofi-aventis, On August 12, 2005, and in
connection with the Combination, sanofi-aventis exercised its warrants, received 404,660 shares of IDM common
stock, and provided IDM with the license to IL-13. This exercise was recorded as an increase of the Company’s
stockholders’ equity for $2.0 million, corresponding to the value of the stock received by sanofi-aventis calculated
using the fair value of the shares of the Company in the Combination. The license to IL-13, which was valued at the
same amount, was written off as an impairment charge in the third quarter of 2005 in accordance with IDM’s
established policies since it had no alternative future use.
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In connection with the Agreement, sanofi-aventis also invested approximately $33 million in IDM S.A. Asa
result of the Combination, as of December 31, 2006, sanofi-aventis owns approximately 14.8% of the Company’s
outstanding common stock and is, therefore, considered a related party.

Medarex (Related Party)

In December 1993, the Company entered into a research, development and commercialization agreement with
Medarex. This agreement was subsequently amended and restated on July 21, 2000.

In July 2000, the Company consummated several interrelated agreements with Medarex {collectively, the
“Arrangement”). Under the Arrangement, Medarex paid the Company $2,000,000 in cash, released the Company
from obligations under the 1993 research, development and commercialization agreement, and granted exclusive
and non-exclusive worldwide licenses for the use, manufacturing and commercialization of several antibodies
developed by Medarex. In return, IDM S.A. issued to Medarex shares and “units”. Each “unit” comprised one IDM
S.A. share and 19 warrants, each warrant giving the right to subscribe for one bond convertible into or redeemable
for one IDM 8.A. share, at a price of $10.01 per bond, from September 11, 2002 through September 10, 2012. In
addition, the Company agreed to expend a specific amount towards the further research and development of
products incorporating certain antibodies licensed from Medarex. As of December 31, 2006, the Company had met
its obligations with respect to such expenditure. '

In accordance with EITF 96-18, Accounting For Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Employees
For Acquiring, or in conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services, the units were valued at fair value on the date of
their issuance. The fair value of the units was recorded as common stock and additional paid in capital, and
represented the basis for the total valuation of the licenses acquired. Total consideration was allocated to each
license and to the repurchase of a commercialization option initially granted by IDM S.A. to Medarex, based on
their respective fair values using estimated future cash flows and an expected rate of success. The fair values
allocated to licenses with alternative future use amounted to $12,379,000 and were reflected in intangible assets.
The amounts pertaimng to the cancellation of the original commercialization agreement and to additional licenses
with no alternative future use were charged directly to operating results.

The licenses acquired from Medarex and capitalized were being amortized over 10 years, which was
management’s estimate of the expected life of future products developed from the use of the respective licenses.
The Company reviews intangibie assets for impairment whenever impairment indicators are present. During the
year ended December 31, 2004, $6,776,000 were recorded as an impairment charge in relation with certain
antibodies licensed from Medarex that the Company determined not to pursue development. See further discussion
under Note 8.

All of the warrants granted in connection with the Arrangement were exercised and the corresponding bonds
were converted into IDM S.A. shares on August 12, 2005, prior to the Combination. The exercise price of the
warrants was offset by a lump-sum payment corresponding to the payment for the Medarex licenses and the
cancellation of the original commercialization agreement. As a result of the Combination, as of December 31, 2006,
Medarex owns approximately 19.6% of the Company’s outstanding common stock and is, therefore, considered a
related party. :

Cambridge Labs

In May 2005, the Company entered into a license and distribution agreement with Cambridge Laboratories
Ltd, a privately held British pharmaceutical company, for the distribution of Junovan in the United Kingdom and the
Republic of Ireland.

Pursuant to this agreement, the Company received an upfront payment, half of which is reimbursable if
Junovan does not receive marketing approval in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland and will receive a
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milestone payment upon achieving such marketing approval. In addition, the Company will receive royalties based
on net sales of Junovan in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland, and a performance royalty upon
reaching a cumulative net sales threshold.

IDM is recognizing half of the up-front payment over the period of continuing involvement which includes the
estimated development period through marketing approval and the subsequent contractual commercialization
period of ten years after initial sales. The other half has been recorded as a long term liability until Junovan receives
marketing approval in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland at which time the Company will begin to
recognize it as revenue over the remaining product life.

Up-front and milestone revenues amounted to approximately $25,000 and $15,000 in 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

8. Balance Sheet Information

Cash and Cash equivalents

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following:

As of December 31,
2006 2005
Money market funds .. ... ... $ 609,000 $14,574,000
Cash, including certificates of deposit. . ........ .. ... ...covntn 9,572,000 12,128,000
Total cash and cash equivalents .. ....... ... .. ... rinn. $10,181,000 $26,702,000

Prepaids and Other Current Assets

The Company’s prepaids and other current assets consisted of the following:
As of December 31,

2006 2005
Prepaid eXpenses . . . ..o ettt $1,117,000 $ 758,000
Value added tax receivable. . ... ... e e e s 121,000 514,000
Prepaid services agreement ... ... .. ... 97,000 900,000
Other CUITENL A8SEIS .+ o v v v et o st e i e et be e e e et e e 45,000 51,000

$1,380,000  $2,223,000

Fixed Assets — Net

The Company’s fixed assets consisted of the following:
As of December 31,

2006 2005
Laboratory eqUipment . . .. ..ottt i $ 2,713,000 $ 2,488,000
Computer 6QUIPIMERNL. . . . ... ... i 1,787,000 1,591,000
Furniture and other equipment. .. ... ... ... ot 706,000 683,000
Leasehold improvements . . . .. ... .. v 2,195,000 1,857,000
Total fIXed GSS8LS . o vttt ittt e e e e s 7,401,000 6,619,000
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization . ............. ... (5,690,0000 (4,510,000)
Fixed assels = NBL o o0 vt it e e it ie e e $ 1,711,000  $ 2,109,000
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Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $755,000,

$1,090,000 and $966,000, respectively.

Intangible Assets — Net

The Company’s intangible assets-net consisted of the following:

As of December 31, 2006 As of December 31, 2005
Accumulated Accamulated
Amortization Amortization
- and and
Original Cost Impairment Net Original Cost Impairment Net
Patents . .............. $ 1,215000 $ (593,000) $ 622,000 $ 3055000 $ (2,105000) $ 950,000
Trade marks. . .......... 170,000 (100.000) 70,000 592,000 (513,000) 79.000
Jenner and other licenses . .. 4,174,000 (1,543,000) 2,631,000 4,374,000 (1,491,000) 2,883,000
Sanofi-aventis licenses(1). . . 2,030,000 (2,030,000) — 2,030,000 (2,030,000) —
Medarex licenses(2) ... ... 18,943,000 {18,943.000) —- 16,998,000 {16,998 000} —
Total . ................ $26,532,000  $(23,209,000) $3,323,000  $27,049,000  $(23,137,000) $3.912,000
(1) On August 12, 2005, sanofi-aventis exercised warrants that were granted in connection with the 1999
Agreement in exchange for a new license agreement for the Company’s use of IL-13 in Phase III clinical trials
and for the commercialization of the Company’s products using [[.-13. The fair value of the shares issued to
sanofi-aventis was estimated at approximately $2,030,000. The fair value allocated to the license was
reflected in intangible assets and immediately impaired in full since the acquired license has no alternative
future use.
(2) In 2000, the Company acquired licenses from Medarex, which were capitalized for an amount of $12,379,000.

In 2004, the Company recorded an impairment charge of $6,776,000 relating to the remaining carrying value
of the Medarex licenses. This impairment charge was related to IDM’s decision not to further pursue any of the
development programs in connection with the MDX-210 antibody, an antibody used in the Company’s
Osidem-2 product candidate.

Following a successful Phase I/II clinical trial of Osidem, the Company had initiated Phase III clinical trials of
the product in May 2000 in Europe and Australia. It also received approval for'a Phase II clinical trial in the
United States in April 2002. This approval required that the product be manufactured in a frozen form in
compliance with Good Manufacturing Practice (“GMP”). At that time, all of the Company’s products, with the
exception of Osidem, were frozen and manufactured according to the FDA’s GMP standards. The Company
therefore decided to stop the chnical trials underway in Europe and Australia in order to begin work
immediately on a frozen version of Osidem, known as Osidem-2, to be manufactured in compliance with the
FDA’s requiremenis.

In September 2003, upon successful preclinical testing of Osidem-2, the Company terminated the Phase I11
studies of Osidem in order to start a new clinical development program for Osidem-2, The Company intended
to either pursue the development of Osidem-2 on its own, subject to appropriate financing, or seck a strategic
partnership to explore the potential of Osidem-2 as a first-line treatment for advanced ovarian cancer.

In September 2004, without new financing, the Company decided not to pursue its Osidem-2 development
program. In the absence of other available collaborations or strategic partnerships to continue the development
of the product candidate, the Company considered that no commercially viable alternative future use existed
and accordingly, the fair value of the license was deemed to be zero. The Company impaired the remaining
value of the corresponding Medarex license for $6,776,000 during the year ended December 31, 2004,
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Patent, license and trademark amortization and impairment costs are detailed in the table below.

2006 2005 2004
Amortization
PalEMIES © v v v e e et e e e $186,000 § 166,000 S 382,000
LCBmSeS . o v v ottt e e e 383,000 509,000 1,345,000
Trademarks ... .......ccuiiiiinentannnnn. PR 14,000 47,000 42,000
$583,000 § 722,000 $1,769,000
Impairment
PalenlS &« v vttt e e $414000 $ 264,000 3 357,000
BN . v o o e et e e e e e e 144,000 2,071,000 7,359,000
Trademarks . . oot e e e e e e e 34,000 220,000 —
$592,000 $2,555,000 $7,716,000
Other Currents Liabilities
The Company’s other current labilities consisted of the following:
2006 2005
Value added tax payable .. ........ ... .. ... . . ool $ 875,000 $ 399,000
Accrued tax liabilities . . . .. .. i e e e 1,680,000 1,638,000
S EVETANCE COSIS .+ - v o v vt st e e n it st i ntae e e e e e 864,000 —_
Contract termination costs . . .. ........ R R 90,000 —
Buropean grant .. ... ... ...ttt 172,000 214,000
$3,681,000 $2,251,000

Long-term Debt

The Company’s long-term debt consists primarily of interest-free loans from governmental agencies.

As of December 31,

2066 2005
Interest-free loan from governmental agencies . .. ....... ... ... ... ... $479,000 $277,000
Long-term equipment lease . .. ........ . . e 26,000 40,000
LONg 1M POILION. « .« o v ev e e ee e e e e et ae e e JU $505,000  $317,000

In 2003, 2004 and 2006, the Company received interest-free loans from the French Government in connection
with a research and development program called Genhome. The total amount of these loans was $479,000 and
$277,000 on December 31, 2006 and 2005 and is reimbursable in two installments of $160,000 in 2008 and

$319,000 in 2011.

In 2005, the Company entered into a lease to own agreement with respect to laboratory equipment. At

December 31, 2006 the recorded liability is $26,000, and is due in November 2008.
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Stock information provided below for all periods prior to the Combination on August 16, 2005 has been stated
on an as-if exchanged and seven-for-one reverse stock split equivalent basis to account for the share exchange
transactions.

Preferred Stock

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had 10,000,000 shares of authorized preferred stock and there were no
shares of preferred stock issued and outstanding.

Common Stock

As of December 3t, 2006, the Company had 55,000,000 shares of authorized common stock and
13,401,071 shares of common stock issued and outstanding.

Certain stockholders of 1IDM S, A held their shares in a plan &’ epargne en action {(PEA) which is a 1ax efficiem
vehicle under French law whereby a holder of securities may receive preferential tax treatment provided the
securities are held in a separate account for a certain period of time. In connection with the Combination, all holders
of shares held in a PEA have entered into a Put/Call Agreement with the Company. Pursuant to the terms of the Put/
Call Agreement, holders of PEA shares had the right to require the Company to purchase, and the Company has the
right to require such holders to sell, the PEA shares for a period of 30 days after the closing of its first offering of
equity securities completed after the Combination with net aggregate proceeds of at least 10 times the U.S, dollar
amount payable to the holders of all PEA shares, excluding any issuance of equity securities in a strategic
partnering, licensing, merger or acquisition transaction. The aggregate purchase price for PEA shares remaining as
of December 31, 2000, payable in cash, will be equal 10 52,049 shares multiplied by the price per share of the
Company’s common stock received in the first equity financing, less underwriters’ discounts or commissions. After
completion of the $12.9 million private placement of the Company’s common stock in February 2007 (see Note 16),
the Company exercised its call right on March 22, 2007 to purchase the PEA shares remaining as of such date. In
accordance with the provisions of SFAS 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of
Both Ligbilities and Equity, the Company reclassified the cash settlement value of the PEA shares (approximately
$122,000) from stockholders’ equity to current liabilities in the first quarter of 2007, The cash settlement will be
paid in April 2007.

In connection with the Combination on August 16, 2005, the Company granted restricted stock awards for a
total of 138,739 shares of Company common stock 1o certain officers of the Company. In connection with the
restricted stock awards, the Company recorded deferred compensation expense of $0.9 million, and a correspond-
ing increase in additional paid-in capital in 2005. Expense is recorded as the shares vest. For the year ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company recorded compensation expense of $225,000 and $576,000 related to
the restricted stock awards, respectively.

In December 2005, the Company issued 30,900 common shares to the Company’s CEO and certain other
members of senior management. In connection with the issuance of the stock bonus grants approved by the Board of
Directors, the Company recorded stock based compensation of $104,000.

In December 20035, in connection with the termination without cause of Dr. Loria, the Company’s former
President and Chief Business Officer, the compensation committee of the Company’s Board of Directors approved
an additiontal grant of 50,000 fully vested shares of the Company’s common stock under the 2000 Stock Plan to
Dr. Loria in connection with his departure. In connection with this award, the Company recorded $130,000 of stock
based compensation expenses in 2005,

In January 1998, the Company issued warrants to certain directors and external consultants. One of these
warrants was exercised in September 2001 and, in August 2003, in connection with the Combination, the remaining
warrants were exchanged for 51,290 shares of common stock.
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In December 2004, the Company issued 1,126,587 shares at a price of $15.80 per share, in a private placement
with sanofi-aventis and other existing institutional and accredited shareholders, resulting in gross proceeds of
$17.,796,000.

Stock Warrants

In August 2005, in connection with the Combination, the Company assumed warrants previously held by
Epimmune warrant holders. These warrants to purchase 113,174 shares of common stock at an exercise price equal
to $16.34 per share expired in September 2006. ' '

In August 2005, in connection with the Combination, the Company assumed warrants previously held by
Epimmune warrant holders. These warrants to purchase 211,882 shares of common stock at an exercise price equal
to $18.59 per share will expire in April 2007.

In June 2003, the Company issued 10,000 warrants to a member of the Scientific Advisory Board at a
subscription price of $1.30 per warrant. These warrants coutd be exercised for 5,388 common shares. In connection
with the Combination, the holder of these warrants received fully vested replacement stock options and itrevocably
waived his rights in such warrants, which will expire unexercised.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In August 2005, in connection with the Combination, the Company assumed the Epimmune Employee Stock
Purchase Plan, referred to as the Purchase Plan, originally adopted in March 2001, and increased the shares of
common stock reserved under the Purchase Plan by 26,428 shares to 69,285 shares. Under the Purchase Plan,
employees, at their option, can purchase up to 714 shares of IDM Pharma common stock per offering through
payroll deductions at the lower of 85% of the fair market value on the plan offering date or 85% of the fair market
value of the common stock at the purchase date. The Company has not yet implemented the Employee Stock
Purchase Plan as of December 31, 2006.

In August 2005, in connection with the Combination, the Company established an Employee Stock Purchase
Plan for employees located in France (the “French Purchase Plan”) and reserved 30,714 shares of common stock for
future issuance under the French Purchase Plan. Under the French Purchase Plan, employees, at their option, could
purchase up to 714 shares of IDM Pharma common stock per offering through payroll deductions at the lower of
85% of the fair market value on the plan offering date or 85% of the fair market value of the common stock at the
purchase date. As of December 31, 2006, no shares of common stock had been issued under the French Purchase
Plan.

Directors’ Deferred Compensation Plan

In August 2005, in connection with the Combination, the Company assumed Epimmune’s Directors’ Deferred
Compensation Plan, whereby participating directors could elect on an annual basis, to defer all of their cash
compensation, for service on the Company’s Board, in a deferred compensation account pursuant to which the
deferred fees are credited in the form of share units having a value equal to shares of the Company’s common stock
(“Share Units”), based on the market price of the stock at the time the deferred fees are earned. The Company would
credit Share Units to the participants” deferred compensation accounts on a quarterly basis. When a participant
ceased serving as a director, the participant was entitled to receive the value of his or her account either in a single
lump-sum payment or in equal annual installments, as determined by the Company in its sole discretion. No
participant entitled to receive a payment of benefits could receive payment in the form of the Company’s common
stock. For the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company recorded. a $9,400 benefit related to the Directors’
Deferred Compensation Plan and made payments totaling $96,871 to former Epimmune directors who resigned in
connection with the Combination.
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In December 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors approved an amendment to the Directors’ Deferred
Compensation Plan, in part to make it compliant with the current requirements of Internal Revenue Code
Section 409A. The material changes approved were to allow participants to defer a selected percentage of
compensation, rather than all or none, and a requirement that fixes distributions under the plan 1o be made either ina
lump sum if under $50,000, and if over $50,000, in annual installments with the number of installments to be the
lesser of ten or two times the number of years of participation.

Shares Reserved for Future Issuance

The following shares of common stock are reserved for future issuance at December 31, 2006:

Options granted and outstanding . .. ... ... ... .. ... ... 2,272,655
Options authorized for future grants. . .. .. .. .. ... ... . . . 134,173
Employee stock purchase plan for future purchases ............................ 72,357
Common StOCK WAITANLS . . . . . ..ttt it et m et e e e e e e 211,882
Restricted stock awards. . ... ... . L e e 42,141

2,733,208

10. Income Tax Provision (Benefit)

For financial reporting purposes, loss before income tax benefit includes the following components:
As of December 31,

2004 2005 2006
FOEIZN .+« o v o e e oo e et $(25,203,000) $(16,692,000) $(13,580,000)
Untited STAES © + v v v eveeee e (6,815,000)  (22,938,000)  (10,118,000)
TOAl v o e e $(32,018,000) $(39,630,000) $(23,698,000)

The provision (benefit) for income taxes is comprised of:
Years ended December 31,

2004 2005 2006
Current:
Federal. .. .o i e e 3 —  $120,000 § —
S . .o — 5,000 —
Foreign ...... .. i e e (361,000}  (546,0000  (243,000)
Income tax benefit .. ..., .. ... ... ... $(361,000) $(421,000) $(243,000)

The benefit for income taxes represents research and development tax credits granted by the French
government. In 2005, the credit was reduced by an altemative minimum tax payable in the United States of
$124,000.
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A reconciliation of income taxes to the amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate to
the net loss is summarized as follows:

Years ended December 31,

2004 2005 2006
Amounts computed at statutory federal rate. . ... ... $(10,886,000) $(13,474,000) $(8,057,000}
State taxes net of federal benefit. : ... ........... (397,000} (1,337,000) {530,000)
Nondeductible expenses and other. .. ............ — 372,000 493,000
Foreign refundable credits .. ........ .. ... ..., (361,000) (546,000) (303,000)
Foreign tax rate differential ................... (1,764,000) (1,169,000} 91,000
Change in valuation allowance . ................ 13,047,000 5,946,000 (1,973,000)
Asset basis differences . .. ... .. i — 9,663,000 —
Alternative minimum tax . ... ... .- v —_— 124,000 —
Expiratior of US net operating losses .. .......... — — 3,456,000
Adjustment to foreign tax rate for deferred taxes. . .. — — 6,580,000

$ (36,0000 $ (421,000) $ (243,000)

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 are shown
below. A valuation allowance of $129,711,000 at December 31, 2006 and $131,684,000 at December 31, 2005 has
been recognized. Due to its history of losses, the Company does not believe that sufficient evidence exists to
conclude that recoverability of its net deferred tax assets is more likely than not. Consequently, the Company has
provided valuation allowances covering 100% of its deferred tax assets.

As of December 31
2005 2006

Deferred tax liabilities:

Patents expensed fortax. ........... o i ot $ {(58,000) $ (68,000)

Fixed assets . . ... ... e e (110,000) (84,000}
Total deferred tax liabilities . ......... o {168,000) {152,000)
Deferred tax assets: o0 )

Capitalized research expenses. . ........ ... ..o 1,400,000 1,203,000

Reserves and accruals . .. ..o v i et ie e e 449,000 1,944,000

FAS 123R eXpense. . . . oot — 37,000

US net operating loss carryforwards . ... ... .. ..o 59,337,000 60,006,000

Foreign net operating loss carryforwards. . ................ 60,978,000 57,186,000

Research and development credits. . .. ..o 9,545,000 9,264,000

Other, NEE . .o it i e et e e e 143,000 223,000
Total deferred tax aSSEtS. » . o v v vt ittt it e e e e 131,852,000 129,863,000
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets. . ................ {131,684,000) (129,711,000)
Net deferred taX aSSelS. . . oo e e ve o ne e $ — % —

Pursuant to the Company’s sale of assets to Pharmexa, Inc. on December 30, 2005, approximately $2,255,000
of the valuation allowance was drawn down to recognize the utilization of net operating loss carryforwards against
taxable income generated primarily as a result of the sale of assets. At December 31, 2005, a deferred tax asset of
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approximately $16,570,000 was established for French net operating losses generated upon the exercise of certain
warrants granted to third parties, which will result in an increase to additional paid-in capital when realized.,

At December 31, 2006, IDM, Inc., the Company’s wholly owned US subsidiary which files federal and state
tax returns separate from [DM Pharma, had U.S. net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $24,830,000
which expire in the years 2011 through 2026 for federal tax purposes, and $23,486,000 which expire in the years
2013 through 2016 for state tax purposes.

At December 31, 2006, IDM Pharma, which files separate federal and state income tax returns, had federal and
California net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $144,163,000 and $16,287,000, respectively. The
difference between the federal and California tax loss carryforwards is primarily attributable to the capitalization of
research and development expenses for California tax purposes and expiration of the California tax loss
carryforwards. The federal tax loss carryforwards will expire in 2007 through 2026, unless previousiy utilized.
The California tax loss carryforwards will expire in 2007 through 2016, unless previously utilized. The Company
also has federal and California research and development tax credit carryforwards of $6,991,000 and $3,443,000,
respectively. The federal research and development tax credit carryforwards will expire in 2007 through 2025,
unless previously utilized. The California research and development tax credit carryforwards do not expire and will
carry forward indefinitely until utilized.

Pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Sections 382 and 383, the annual use of IDM Pharma’s net operating loss
and credit carryforwards will be limited because of greater than 50% cumulative changes in ownership, which
occurred during 1989, 1994 and 2005.

At December 31, 2006, the Company had French net operating loss carryforwards of approximately
$171,576,000 which have no expiration date. As of the same date, the Company also had Canadian net operating
loss carryforwards of approximately $1,797,000 which expire in the years 2007 through 2015 and $1,030,000
which have no expiration date for federal tax purposes and, for provincial tax purposes, $1,575,000 which expire in
the years 2007 through 2015, and $1,587,000 which have no expiration date. The utilization of these net operating
toss carryforwards is limited to the future operations of the Company in the tax jurisdictions in which such net
operating losses arose. '

The Company had a French income tax credit receivable of $1,501,000 and $1,588,000 at December 31, 2006
and 2005, respectively. The French research income tax credit receivable is recoverable in cash if not used to offset
taxes payable in the fourth year following its generation.

11. Benefit Plans and 401(k) Plan

The Company has a defined contribution plan, the Epimmune Inc. 401(k) Plan, which covers all full-time
employees of the Company. This plan allows each eligible employee to voluntarily make pre-tax deferred salary
contributions. The Company may make contributions in amounts as determined by the Board of Directors. The
Company did not make any matching contributions for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.

The Company’s French subsidiary contributes to state-sponsored pension plan for personnel in France in
accordance with French law. Contributions are based on salaries to the relevant state-sponsored organizations. The
Company has no further liability in connection with these plans, Expense recognized associated with the plans was
($35,000), $57,000, and $52,000 in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

French law also requires payment of a lJump sum retirement indemnity to employees based upon years of
service and compensation at retirement. Benefits do not vest prior to retirement. The Company’s accrued obligation
at December 31, 2006 and 2005 was $123,000 and $141,000, respectively.
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Operating lease commitments

The Company leases office and laboratory space in lrvine, California under an operating lease that was
renewed for 5 years in 2004 and will end in November 2009.

In France, the Company leases office space under operating leases that expire in April 2007, August 2009 and
June 2010. Laboratory space is leased under an operating lease that expires in October 2008.

As of December 31, 2006, the future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases are as
follows:

Operating
Year _ Leases
D007 . e e e e e e e 910,000
D08 . e e e e e e e s 929,000
D000 . . e e e e e e e 845,000
10 ) 0 U O 194,000
2201 18 [ U P 163,000
TRETCA  ET « . o ot et s et e e e e e et e e ey 483,000
Total. © o e e e e e e i e e 3,524,000

Rental expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, was approximately $918,000,
$961,000 and $875,000 respectively.

Obligations under collaboration, licensing and contract research organization agreements

Under certain collaboration and licensing agreements, the Company is obligated to make specified payments
upon achieving certain milestones relating to the development and approval of its products, or on the basis of net
sales of its products. In addition, under certain agreements with clinical sites for the conduct of clinical trials, the
Company makes payments based on the number of patients enrolled. These contingent payment obligations are
subject to significant variability. Such amounts are based on a variety of estimates and assumptions, including
future sales volumes and timing of clinical trials and regulatory processes, which may not be accurate, may not be
realized, and are inherently subject to various risks and uncertainties that are difficult to predict and are beyond the
Company’s control,

Commitment with Biotecnol

On March 8, 2001 the Company entered into a Prototype Production Contract with Biotecnol SA, a Portuguese
Company to enable IDM to obtain a preliminary process for the production of IL-13. The Company has been
pursuing development in collaboration with Biotecnol since April 1, 2003, based on a letter of Intent executed by
the Company and Biotecnol. In December 2003, the Company and Biotecnol entered into the Development and
Manufacturing Agreement, which aims to expand upon the Prototype Production Contract. In 2006, 2005 and 2004,
and under the terms of the agreement, the Company recorded expenses of $394,000, $498,000 and $1,020,000,
respectively, following the successful completion of studies performed by Biotecnol.

Commitment with Accovion

On December 28, 2004, the Company entered into an agreement with Accovion Gmbh {Accovion), a German
Clinical Research Organization, in relation with its Phase /11 clinical trial of Bexidem. This agreement, which
was due to expire in March 2007, covers patient recruitment and monitoring of clinical centers in several European
countries. The Company agreed to pay an estimated total of $1,785,000 over the life of the trial and reimburse
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specific pass-through costs. On December 22, 2003, the Company executed an amendment to the agreement to
expand the scope of activities undertaken by Accovion, and agreed to increase the estimated total amount to be paid
over the life of the trial to $1,972,000.

As discussed in Note 13, as a result of the Company’s decision te put on hold further development of Bexidem
until collaborative partners can be found or other financing becomes available, in September 2006 the Company
reached an agreement with Accovion whereby the existing agreement will be terminated upon the appropriate
completion of agreed upon Bexidem-related activities, including pharmacovigilance. In September 2006, the
Company recognized approximately $0.1 million of expense relating to the early termination of this contract. In
2006 and 20035, the Company recorded research and development expenses of $1,080,000 and $1,265,000,
respectively, under the agreement. Expenses for services to be received through the completion date will be
expensed as incurred.

13. Restructuring C.harges

In August 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a restructuring and cash conservation plan and in
December 2006 the Board authorized an organizational restructuring, which was completed by December 31, 2006.
The Company accounted for the restructoring activity in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities (“SFAS 1467). This
restructuring included focusing the Company’s research and development activities primarity on Junovan™ and
its coliaboration with sanofi-aventis for Uvidem, putting on hold further development of Bexidem and other
product candidates until collaborative partners can be found or additional funding becomes available, and reducing
the workforce by 17 employees at the Company’s facility in Paris, France. In October 2006, the Company sent-
notices to several European Health Authorities that it would stop Phase II of the clinical trial for Bexidem following
completion of treatment of all patients, and would put on hold moving forward with a Phase III trial until a
collaborative partner or further funding for the project is found. '

1n accordance with SFAS No, 146, the Company recorded severance costs in the fourth quarter when the plan
of termination met certain criteria and was communicated to the employees. Cost to terminate a contract before the -
end of its term and costs that will continue to be incurred for the remaining term without economic benefit to the
Company was recorded at fair value at the contract termination or cease-use date. Other exit-related costs were
recognized as incurred upon receipt of goods and services.

Total restructuring costs were $1.0 million, which included a $0.1 million contract termination charge in the
third quarter of 2006 and totat charges of $0.9 million in the fourth quarter of 2006 for severance payments and
other related charges. Of the $1 million total restructuring costs, $0.8 million was included in Research and
Development expense, and $0.2 in General and Administrative expense. $0.2 million has been paid in 2006 and the
remaining unpaid balance of $0.8 million at December 31, 2006 is included in “Other Current Liabilities”.
Substantially all accrued expenditures will be paid by April 2007. The Company may also exit certain lease
agreements for the Company’s Paris facility in 2007. Lease termination cost will be recorded when the lease
agreement is terminated.

14. Related Party Transactions

As discussed in Note 7, in July 1999 and 2001, the Company entered into an agreement with sanofi-aventis.
The Company has recognized $11,147,000, $6,794,000 and $5,805,000 of revenues from sanofi-aventis for the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Sanofi-aventis has been a shareholder of IDM since
January 2000 and as of December 31, 2006, owns approximately 14.8% of the Company’s common stock.

As discussed in Note 7, in 1993, 2000 and 2001, the Company entered into agreements with Medarex.
Medarex has been a shareholder of the Company since 1991 and bas had a representative on the Company’s Board
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of Directors since June 2000. As of December 31, 2006, Medarex owns approximately 19.6% of the Company’s
common stock. The expenses related to certain Medarex agreements recorded by the Company were negligible in
2006, and amounted $17,000 and $199,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

15. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

On July 13, 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting
for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (FIN 48) to create
a single model to address accounting for uncertainty in tax positions. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for income
taxes by prescribing a minimum recognition threshold a tax position is required to meet before being recognized in
the financial statements. FIN 48 also provides guidance on de-recognition, measurement, classification, interest
and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2006, with early adoption permitted. The Company will adopt FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007, as
required. The cumulative effect of adopting FIN 48 will be recorded in retained earnings. The Company is currently
evaluating whether the adoption of Interpretation 48 will have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

FASB Staff Position (FSP) No. 00-19-2, Accounting for Registration Payment Arrangements, was issved in
December 2006 to addresses an issuer’s accounting for registration payment arrangement. The FSP specifies that
the contingent obligation to make future payments or otherwise transfer consideration under a registration payment
arrangement should be separately recognized and measured in accordance with SFAS No. 5, Accounting for
Contingencies. For registration payment arrangements and financial instruments subject to those arrangements
that were entered into prior to the issuance of this FSP and that continues to be outstanding at the adoption date, this
guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006 and interim periods within those fiscal
years. Retrospective application of the guidance in this FSP to financial statements for earlier interim or annual
periods presented is not permitted. The Company is currently evaluating whether the adoption of Interpretation 48
will have a material effect on its consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155, Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instroments, an
amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140. Amongst other things, SFAS No. 155 permits fair value
remeasurement for any hybrid financial instrument that contains an embedded derivative that otherwise would
require bifurcation, SFAS No. 155 is effective for all financial instruments beginning after September 15, 2006. The
Company is currently evaluating the effect of the adoption of SFAS No. 155 on its consolidated financial position or
results of operations,

The FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, Fair Value Measurements,
September 2006. The new standard provides guidance on the use of fair value in such measurements. It also
prescribes expanded disclosures about fair value measurements contained in the financial statements. Financial
staternent disclosures will be revised to conform to the new guidance. The Company is in the process of evaluating
whether the adoption of the new standard will have a significant effect on its consolidated financial position or
results of operations. The pronouncement, including the new disclosures, is effective as of the first quarter of 2008,

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities. SFAS No. 159 expands opportunities to use fair value measurement in financial reporting and permits
entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. SFAS No. 159 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company has not decided if it will early adopt
SFAS No. 159 or if it will choose to measure any eligible financial assets and liabilities at fair value.

Other recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB (including its Emerging Issues Task Force), the
AICPA, and the SEC did not, or are not believed by management to, have a material impact on the Company’s
present or future consolidated financial staterments.
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On February 20, 2007, the Company entered into a unit purchase agreement with certain private investors
pursuant to which it sold an aggregate of 4,566,995 shares of IDM common stock and warrants to purchase up to
782,568 shares of IDM common stock for a total of $12,896,142 (excluding any proceeds that might be received
upon exercise of the warrants). The purchase price of each share of common stock sold in the financing was $2.82,
the closing bid price of IDM common stock immediately preceding the closing of the transactions, and the purchase
price for the warrants was $0.022 for each share of common stock underlying the warrants. The warrants are
initially exercisable at $3.243 per share. If the Company issues additional common shares in certain non-exempt
transactions for a price less than $3.243, the exercise price will be adjusted downward based on a broad-based
weighted average formula provided in the warrants, but in no event will the exercise price be less than $2.82 per
share. Upon a Change in Control (as defined) in which the Company receives cash consideration, the Company (or
the successor entity) shall purchase any unexercised warrants from the holder for cash in an amount equal to its
value computed using the Black-Scholes pricing mode! with prescribed guidelines.

The closing of the financing occurred on February 20, 2007. In connection with the financing, the Company
agreed to register for resale the shares of common stock sold in the financing, including the shares of common stock
underlying the warrants, within 30 days of the closing (the “Resale Registration Statement”™). Pursuant to the terms
of the vmt purchase agreement, the Company is subject to various penalties up to approximately $1.6 million on an
annual basis, in the event that the Resale Registration Statement has not been filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) within 30 days after the closing date or is not declared effective within 90 days after the
closing date or is not available for resale’s by the purchasers or other specified events have occurred as set forth in
the unit purchase agrecment.

In the event the Company issues additional equity securities in a subsequent offering during a 180 day period
beginning on the date that the Resale Registration Statement is declared effective by the SEC, the purchasers in the
financing have a right of first refusal to purchase their pro rata share of such equity securities subject to certain terms
and conditions as more fully set forth in the unit purchase agreement. Also, pursuant 1o the terms of the unit
purchase agreement, the purchasers are prohibited from directly or indirectly offering or selling the securities
purchased on or prior to May 21, 2007.

As discussed in Note 9, certain stockholders of IDM 8. A. held their shares in a plan d”¢pargne en action (PEA).
In connection with the Combination, all holders of shares held in a PEA entered into a Put/Call Agreement with the
Company. Pursuant to the terms of the Put/Call Agreement, holders of PEA shares have the right to require the
Company to purchase. and the Company has the right to require such holders to sell, the PEA shares for a period of
30 days after the closing of its first offering of equity securities completed after the Combination date with net
aggregate proceeds of at least 10} times the U.S. dollar amount payable 1o the holders of all PEA shares, excluding
any issuance of equity securities in a strategic partnering, licensing, merger or acquisition transaction. Subsequent
to the closing of the financing on February 20, 2007, the Company notified the holders of the PEA shares that it was
exercising its right under the Put/Call Agreement to require such holders to sell their respective PEA shares to the
Company. The aggregate purchase price for the 44,291 PEA shares remaining as of the date the Company provided
such notice will be approximately $122,000, payable in cash, and is expected to close in April 2007.

In January 2007, the Company received a grant through a new French Government sponsored program to
conduct research and clinical studiés related to macrophages with antibodies and cancer vaccine antigen formu-
lations. The Company expecis to receive approximately $1.3 million in total over 3 years under this grant.
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17. Unaudited quarterly financial information

The following tables present unaudited quarterly financial information, for the eight quarters ended Decem-
ber 31, 2006. The Company believes this information reflects all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring
adjustments) that the Company considers necessary for a fair presentation of such information in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The results for any quarter are not necessarily
indicative of results for any future period (in millions, except per share data):

1st Quarter  2nd Quarter  3rd Quarter  d4th Quarter

Year Ended December 31, 2006

Revenues .. ........coiviinnennnnnn $ 23 $ 3.0 $ 30 $ 3.0
Loss from operations ... .............. (6.2) (6.0) “4.2) 52)
Netloss......oooeiniiiieianns (6.6) (7.0) (3.9) 59
Basic and diluted net loss per share(a) .... (0.50) _ (0.52) 0.29) {0.44)

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

Year Ended December 31, 2005

REVENUES . .. .ot i e e $ 16 $ 16 $ 21 $ 33
Loss from operations . ................ (5.3) 5.1 (20.4) (9.3)
Netloss . . ..ot “@.7 4.7 (20.2) (9.7)
Basic and diluted net loss per share. ...... (0.55) (0.55) (1.87) (0.74)

(a) The sum of the four quarters will not agree to year total due to rounding within the quarter.

F-39




(This page intentionally left blank}




Corporafe

Information

= Board of Directors
Jecn-Loup Rometlemonne, M.D.
Chief Executive Officer

Robert Beck, M.D.
Vice President and Chief Information Cfficer
Fox Chase Cancer Center

Jean Deleage, Ph.D.
Managing Director
Alte Pariners

Donald Drakeman, Ph.D.
Formerly President and Chief Executive Officer, Director
Medarex, Inc,

Sylvie Gregoire, Pharm.D.

Executive Chair

Formerly Chief Execufive Officer, GlycoFi, Inc. and
VP, Fegulatory Affairs, Biogen, Inc.

Michael G, Grey
Presiclent & Chief Executive Officer, Director
SGX Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

John 2. McKeamn, Ph.D.
Formerly Chief Executive Officer & President, Director
Kalypsys, Inc.

Edward E. Penhoet, Ph.D.
Director
Alta Pariners

m Executive Officer
Jean-Loup Romet-Lemonne, M.D.
Chief Executive Officer

m Corporate Headquarters
9 Parker, Suite 100

Irvine, CA 92618

Phone: (949) 470 4751

Web Address: www.idm-pharma.com

m Stock Listing
Our common stock is traded on the NASDAG Global Market under
the symbol, "IDML"

» Annual Meeting of Stockholders
Our annual meeting of stockhalders will be held ot 8:00 AM on
June 14, 2007, ot IDM Pharmg, Inc. @ Parker, Irvine, CA.

s Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Ernst & Young LLP

4370 Lo Jollo Village Drive, Suite 500

San Diego, CA 92122

= Transfer Agent & Registrar
American Stock Transfer & Trust

59 Maiden Lane

New York, NY 10038

Phone: (800) 937-5449, or (718) 921-8200
Web address:  www.amstock.com

m Corporate Counsel
Cooley Godward Kronish LLP
440) Eostgate Mall

San Diego, CA 92121

m Investor Relations Contact
Iro Leiderman

Managing Director

The Trout Group, LLC

740 Broodway, Suite 903

New York, NY 10003

Phone: {212) 477 9007 ext. 21

m SEC Form 10-K

A copy of our onnual report filed with the Securifies and Exchange
Commission on Form 10-K is available without charge by calling or
writing fo the address provided above.




.,

IDM Pharma, Inc.

9 Parker, Suite 100
Irvine, CA 92618
www.idm-pharma.com




